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03 December 2025

To
All Shareholders of ACI Formulations PLC (ACI FL)
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC)
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms (RJSCF)
Dhaka Stock Exchange PLC (DSE) 
Chittagong Stock Exchange PLC (CSE) 
Other Stakeholders of ACI Formulations PLC (ACI FL)

Dear Concern, 

Re: Annual Report of ACI Formulations PLC (ACI FL) for the year ended 30 June 2025.

We are pleased to enclose a copy of ACI FL’s Annual Report together with the Audited Financial Statements as 
on 30 June 2025, statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity, and statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2025 along with notes 
thereto of ACI Formulations PLC for your kind information and record.

General review of this report, unless explained otherwise, is based on the financials of ‘ACI FL’.
 
With best regards,

Yours truly,

Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman
Company Secretary

Letter of Transmittal
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This forward-looking statements include the Company’s business prospects, future developments, 
trends and conditions in the industry it operates, its strategies, plans, objectives and goals, operations, 
margins, overall market condition and risk management. The Annual Report reveals management's 
viewpoints based on the year's events as well as future events and the Company's proposition. These 
statements do not provide assurance against certain risks and uncertainties. Thus, the actual future 
outcome and trends expected in the statements may vary due to the following factors:

Changes in national, 
economic and 
financial conditions

Volatility of capital 
market

Geopolitical
impact

Changes in 
Government policy

Changes in corporate 
Tax and VAT structure

Changes of interest 
rate

Unexpected ecological 
and demographic 

changes
Instabilities of price 
in the foreign 
exchange market

Forward-looking Statements

Inconsistency of competitors, suppliers and pricing
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Corporate Information

Company Profile

  Statutory Position

  Chief Financial Officer : Mr. Md. Monir Hossain Khan
  Company Secretary : Mr. Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman 
  Head of Internal Audit & Compliance : Mr. Amitava Saha 

  Auditors

 Statutory Auditor : Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co., Chartered Accountants
  Governance Compliance Auditor : Al-Muqtadir Associates, Chartered Secretaries & Consultants

  Advisors

  Legal Advisor : Barrister Nihad Kabir

  Contact Address
  Registered Office ACI Centre, 245 Tejgaon Industrial Area, Dhaka-1208
   Phone # (8802) 226605101
   Fax # (8802) 226605119
   Email # info@aci-bd.com
   Web # www.aci-bd.com/acifl/ 

  Investors Relation’s Office 9 Motijheel C/A, Dhaka-1000
   Phone # (8802) 41054104-10
   Email # monir@aci-bd.com

 Factory Location Rajabari, Sreepur, Gazipur
   Phone # (8802) 0682555135

  Principal Bankers

 Standard Chartered Bank
 The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Ltd.
 Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC
 BRAC Bank PLC
 Prime Bank PLC 
 City Bank PLC
 Bengal Commercial Bank PLC
 Al-Arafah Islami Bank PLC 
 ONE Bank PLC
 Jamuna Bank PLC
 Pubali Bank PLC
 Mercantile Bank PLC

 Basic Information
Full Name : ACI Formulations PLC Authorized Capital (Taka) : 50,00,00,000

 Incorporation Date : 29 October 1995 Issued & Paid Capital (Taka) : 47,25,00,000
 Registration No : C-29594 (882)/95 Number of Shares : 4,72,50,000
 Company Type : Public Limited Face Value (Taka)  : 10 
 Number of Employees : 994 Year End : 30 June



ACI Formulations in Brief 
ACI Formulations PLC was established as a subsidiary of Advanced Chemical Industries PLC in 1995. The 
Company obtained listing with both Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges in 2008. The principal activities of 
the Company are manufacturing and marketing of a number of agrochemical, paints and homecare products.

The company’s Crop Care business is one of the most renowned names and leading agrochemical manufacturers 
and suppliers in Bangladesh. Since 1996, the business is contributing to the agriculture sector by enabling 
farmers protect their crops from diseases, insects and weeds thereby increasing farm production. The business 
offers a complete range of cost effective solutions for the farmers through formulating and marketing 
insecticides, herbicides, fungicides, miticides and etc.

In 2013, ACI Formulations PLC started distribution of paint products in Bangladesh in partnership with globally 
renowned AkzoNobel. In 2016, the Company started manufacturing paint products in its own manufacturing 
facility in Gazipur. Currently, the Company is serving the Bangladesh market with global paints and coatings 
brands under the brand name of Dulux, International and Duwel in all major paint categories including decorative 
paints, protective coatings, marine coatings, and powder coatings. 

ACI Formulations PLC also produces homecare products in both Pest & Non-pest Category. Some products of     
S.C. Johnson & Son, Inc., are manufactured by the Company under contract which is distributed by Advanced 
Chemical Industries PLC.

Board of Directors

 Mr. M Anis Ud Dowla Chairman
 Dr. Arif Dowla Director
 Dr. A.K.M. Fareyzul Haque Ansarey Director
 Mr. Golam Mainuddin Independent Director
 Ms. Nasreen Sattar Independent Director
 Mr. Juned Ahmed Choudhury Director
 Ms. Shusmita Anis  Managing Director

Board Audit Committee
• Ms. Nasreen Sattar Chairman
• Dr. A.K.M. Fareyzul Haque Ansarey Member
• Mr. Juned Ahmed Choudhury Member
• Mr. Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman Secretary

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
 Mr. Golam Mainuddin Chairman
 Ms. Nasreen Sattar Member
 Mr. Juned Ahmed Choudhury Member
 Mr. Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman Secretary

 Subsidiary Companies
 Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd.
 ACI AgroChem Limited
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Milestones

Acquired as subsidiary,
Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd.

Incorporated the subsidiary, 
ACI AgroChem Limited

Name change to 
ACI Formulations PLC

Listed with DSE
and CSE

1995

2013

2008 Incorporation of
ACI Formulations Limited

2022

2025



Annual Report 2024-2025 l Page 7

Board of Directors’ Profile

Mr. M Anis Ud Dowla
Chairman

Date of Appointment : 29 October 1995
Engaged with the Company : 30 years

Mr. M Anis Ud Dowla, the Chairman of ACI 
Formulations PLC, is one of the most successful 
personalities in Bangladesh business circle.      
Mr. Dowla has maintained a high profile, and has 
provided leadership to the business community 
in different capacities. He has considerable 
contribution in the field of Industrial Relations of 
Bangladesh.

Qualifications
Mr. M Anis Ud Dowla completed his Graduation in 
Physics from the University of Dhaka, and had  
his Masters in Public Administration from Karachi 
University with a scholarship from the Asia 
Foundation. During his professional career,        
he earned abundant expertise from the global 
arena participating innumerous conferences, 
seminars etc.

Director & Chairman in ACI Group
• Advanced Chemical Industries PLC
• ACI Salt Limited
• ACI Pure Flour Limited
• ACI Motors Limited 
• ACI Foods Limited 
• ACI Agrolink Limited 
• ACI HealthCare Limited 
• ACI Edible Oils Limited 
• Creative Communication Limited 
• ACI Trade Services Limited
• ACI Biotech Limited 
• INFOLYTX Bangladesh Limited 
• ACI Marine and Riverine Technologies Limited 
• ACI AgroChem Limited
• ACI Premio Plastics Limited
• ACI Logistics Limited 
• Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd 
• ACI Shwapno e-Commerce Limited
• ACI Avionics and Airlines Services Limited 
• ACI Herbal and Nutraceuticals Limited
• ACI Biosciences Limited
• ACI Godrej Agrovet Private Limited
• pladis ACI Bangladesh Limited
• Colgate-Palmolive ACI Bangladesh Pvt. Limited
• Stochastic Logic Limited
• Dowla Agricultural Development Company Limited
• Consolidated Chemicals Limited 
• ACI Foundation (a non-profit organization) 

• Bangladesh Seed Association

President in Other Entities

• Bangladesh Association of Publicly Listed Companies
• Metropolitan Chamber of Commerce & Industries, 

Dhaka in 1977, 1978, 1995 and 2010
• Bangladesh Employers' Federation for the terms in 

1975-1976, 1976-1977, 1991-1992, 1992-1993, 
2003-2004 and 2004-2005

Former President

• Pioneer Insurance Company Limited
• Credit Rating Agency of Bangladesh
• Member of the Board of Trustees of the Independent 

University of Bangladesh

Directorship in Other Organizations

Experience

Mr. Dowla served in the British Oxygen Group     
of UK in Pakistan, Bangladesh and Kenya for          
27 years, including 12 years as Managing 
Director of Bangladesh Oxygen Ltd. In 1987, he 
became the Group Managing Director of the 
three ICI companies in Bangladesh. With 
experience gathered while working with two 
British multi-nationals for over 32 years,           
Mr. Dowla has continued to maintain the 
multinational culture and management style       
in ACI, with special emphasis on quality, 
productivity and customer services.

Director & Chairman in ACI Group
• Advanced Chemical Industries PLC
• ACI Salt Limited
• ACI Pure Flour Limited
• ACI Motors Limited 
• ACI Foods Limited 
• ACI Agrolink Limited 
• ACI HealthCare Limited 
• ACI Edible Oils Limited 
• Creative Communication Limited 
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Board of Directors’ Profile

Dr. Arif Dowla
Director

Date of Appointment : 09 February 2003
Engaged with the Company : 22 years
Retired and re-elected on : 29 December 2024

Dr. Arif Dowla has been playing a pivotal role in 
advancing both the industrial and agricultural 
sectors in Bangladesh. His innovative business 
strategies and commitment to technology 
adoption have significantly contributed to the 
diversification of the ACI Group's operations, 
establishing it as the largest turnover-based 
conglomerate in the country. His leadership and 
vision continue to shape the future of ACI, 
making it a key player in Bangladesh’s economic 
landscape.

Qualifications
Dr. Dowla obtained Ph.D. in Mathematics from 
the University of California, USA. He is a member 
of the American Mathematical Society and        
the Society of Quantitative Analyst, New York,   
as well. 

Directorship in ACI Group
• Advanced Chemical Industries PLC (Managing Director)
• ACI Salt Limited 
• ACI Pure Flour Limited
• ACI Motors Limited
• ACI Foods Limited
• ACI Agrolink Limited
• ACI HealthCare Limited
• ACI Edible Oils Limited 
• ACI Logistics Limited 
• Creative Communication Limited
• ACI Trade Services Limited
• ACI Biotech Limited
• INFOLYTX Bangladesh Limited
• ACI Marine and Riverine Technologies Limited
• ACI AgroChem Limited
• ACI Premio Plastics Limited
• ACI Shwapno e-Commerce Limited
• ACI Avionics and Airlines Services Limited
• ACI Herbal and Nutraceuticals Limited
• ACI Biosciences Limited
• ACI Godrej Agrovet Private Limited
• ACI CO-RO Bangladesh Ltd.
• pladis ACI Bangladesh Limited
• Colgate-Palmolive ACI Bangladesh Pvt. Limited
• Stochastic Logic Limited
• Dowla Agricultural Development Company Limited
• Consolidated Chemicals Limited
• ACI Foundation (a non-profit organization)

• Pioneer Insurance Company Limited from 2002 to 2009
• Metropolitan Chamber of Commerce and Industry
• Mutual Trust Bank PLC and former Chairman of this Bank 

(2012-2014) 

Directorship in Other Organizations

• Honorary Consul of Belgium in Bangladesh since 
September 2013

• Included in the Forum of Young Global Leader 
Honorees 2009 by the World Economic Forum

Recognitions

Experience

Dr. Arif Dowla was inducted as Director of the 
Company in 2003. He is the Managing Director of 
the parent company, Advanced Chemical 
Industries PLC and functional head of                
ACI Group. He has significant contribution in    
the advancement of Industrial as well as 
Agricultural sector of the country. His business 
strategy and various backward and forward 
linkages have diversified the Group business in 
manifold resulting ACI a largest turnover-based 
conglomerate in Bangladesh.

Directorship in ACI Group
• Advanced Chemical Industries PLC (Managing Dire
• ACI Salt Limited 
• ACI Pure Flour Limited
• ACI Motors Limited
• ACI Foods Limited
• ACI Agrolink Limited
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Dr. A. K. M. Fareyzul Haque Ansarey
Director

Date of Appointment : 01 March 1995 
Engaged with the Company : 30 Years 

Dr. A. K. M. Fareyzul Haque Ansarey has created 
new business models in the Agricultural sector   
in Bangladesh, and made many outstanding 
contributions to improving the agricultural 
productivity and food security of the country.    
Dr. Ansarey also fortifies a technologically   
reliant company with his adept high-profile 
management acumen.

Qualifications
Dr. A. K. M. Fareyzul Haque Ansarey, esteemed 
for his Doctorate in Ecology.

Managing Directorship in ACI Group
• ACI Motors Limited 
• ACI Agrolink Limited
• ACI Marine and Riverine Technologies Limited
• ACI Premio Plastics Limited

Directorship in ACI Group
• ACI Salt Limited 
• ACI Avionics and Airlines Services Limited 
• ACI CO-RO Bangladesh Ltd. 
• ACI Godrej Agrovet Private Limited

Experience

With an expansive career in the chemical 
industry, including pivotal roles at multinational 
corporations like Ciba-Geigy and national 
enterprises such as Shetu Corporation Limited, he 
infuses confidence in harnessing the Company’s 
business potential. Dr. Ansarey, a promoter of  
ACI Formulations PLC, has conscientiously steered
its direction as a Director since March 1995, 
paralleled by a prosperous tenure as the 
Executive Director of Agribusinesses at Advanced 
Chemical Industries PLC. In his current role as 
President of the ACI Agribusinesses Division, his 
leadership permeates through various facets of 
the organization.

ey

Managing Directorship in ACI Group
• ACI Motors Limited 
• ACI Agrolink Limited
• ACI Marine and Riverine Technologies Limited
• ACI Premio Plastics Limited
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Board of Directors’ Profile

Mr. Golam Mainuddin
Independent Director

Date of Appointment : 09 June 2020 
Engaged with the Company : 5 Years

Mr. Golam Mainuddin has made notable 
contributions to Bangladesh’s corporate 
management and economic landscape, with 
extensive leadership across the agro-based 
and industrial sectors. His strategic insights, 
professional excellence, and commitment to 
governance have significantly elevated 
industry standards.

Qualifications
Achieved notable academic and scholastic 
accomplishments in Masters of Science from 
Dhaka University. Attended and participated in 
many seminars and courses to enhance his 
skills and knowledge throughout his esteemed 
career.

Directorship of Other Entities
• Chairperson and Independent Director of Apex Footwear 

Limited
• Director and Chairman of Membership and Finance 

Committee, Metropolitan Chambers of Commerce and 
Industries (MCCI)

• Director of Advanced Chemical Industries PLC
• Former Director of Infrastructure Investment Facilitation 

Company (IIFC), ERD, Ministry of Finance, Government 
of Bangladesh for over 10 years

• Former Vice-Chairman of Bangladesh Employers’ 
Federation

• Former Director of Federation of Bangladesh Chambers 
of Commerce and Industry for four terms

• The Government of Bangladesh declared him a CIP 
(Commercially Important Person) since 2010 for his 
tremendous contribution in Business Industry

• Lifetime Achievement Award by CMO Asia (Asia’s Best 
Employer Brand Award organization) in 2018

• Special Achievement Award from Balipara Foundation, 
India, for contributions towards environmental 
conservation and community development.

Recognitions

Experience

Mr. Golam Mainuddin was the Chairman of British 
American Tobacco Bangladesh PLC (2008-2024) 
for the last 16 years and retired in the year 2024. 
After obtaining his Master of Science (First class 
first) from Dhaka University in the year 1967,  
Mr. Mainuddin pursued the first 25 years of his 
career in the agro-based industry followed by 
corporate management over the last 26 years. 
He was appointed as Director of British American 
Tobacco Bangladesh in the year 1986. The 
company then created a new position of Deputy 
Managing Director for him in the year 1997 and 
continued to carry out different responsibility till 
his retirement from the management in 2008. 
Over the 42 years in BAT Bangladesh and holding 
different responsibility, he was instrumental in 
bringing level playing field and discipline in the 
Tobacco Industry.

ctorship of Other Entities

He has recently published a book in Bangla called ’50 Years   
in Multinational companies’ where he documents his 
extraordinary journey showcasing his unwavering dedication, 
exemplary leadership and significant contributions to the 
corporate arena.

• Effective Negotiations in Areas of Rapid Change – 
Harvard John F. Kennedy School

• Building Relationships That Work – Wharton Business School
• Presentation and Media Handling Skills – conducted by BBC
• Capstone Course – NDC, Bangladesh
• Completed various management and product 

development courses in the UK.

Professional Development & Training
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Ms. Nasreen Sattar
Independent Director

Date of Appointment : 30 January 2025 
Engaged with the Company : About 1 year

She brings over 23 years of experience in the 
financial sector, with an extensive career in both 
national and international banking. From 1986 to 
2009, she held various leadership roles at ANZ 
Grindlays Bank and Standard Chartered Bank, 
including serving as CEO in Afghanistan, with a 
focus on strategic initiatives and operational 
management. She has also conducted training 
sessions for women to develop their leadership 
soft skills mainly in the banking sector.

Qualifications
Ms. Sattar is a graduate in English Literature. She 
authored a memoir, "My Kabul Story" detailing 
personal experiences while living in Afghanistan, 
based on her daily journal entries.

Experience

Ms. Nasreen Sattar currently serves as an 
Independent Director on the Board of ACI PLC, 
ACI Formulations PLC, and Robi Axiata PLC. She 
is a member of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee of ACI PLC. Previously, she served as 
an Independent Director, and Audit Committee 
member at Mutual Trust Bank PLC, and prior to 
that, held a similar position at IPDC Finance PLC. 
She is the Chairman of Consumark Limited, and 
a Board member of Gulshan Literacy Program.
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Board of Directors’ Profile

Mr. Juned Ahmed Choudhury was President of 
Alliance Francaise, Chittagong, and EC Member 
for two decades. He was was decorated Knight of 
the Order of Arts and Letters by the Government 
of France for his contribution to promotion of 
better Bangladesh-France relationship in the 
fields of language and culture.

Qualifications

Mr. Juned Ahmed Choudhury obtained B. A 
(Hons.) degree in Economics from Dhaka 
University in 1957 and Master of Public 
Administration from Karachi University in 1959. 
He received training on Personnel Management in 
Public and Private Organizations at the National 
School of Administration in Paris; and on 
Industrial Relations at the Institute of Labour 
Studies in ILO, Geneva.

Experience

Mr. Choudhury was Director of Shell Oil Company 
Ltd., and Public Affairs Adviser of Bangladesh 
Shell Petroleum Development B.V. He served   
ACI PLC as Independent Director for the period 
2012 to 2018 in two consecutive tenures.          
Mr. Choudhury holds the record of being a 
Member of the Labour Court, Chittagong 
Division, representing Employers, for ten 2-year 
terms, 1969-89. He was EC Member of 
Bangladesh Employers' Association, and its 
Vice-Chairman in 1972-74.

Mr. Juned Ahmed Choudhury
Director

Date of Appointment : 17 August 2021 
Engaged with the Company : 4 years 
Retired and re-elected on : 29 December 2024 
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Ms. Shusmita Anis is a prominent business 
personality in Bangladesh, widely respected for 
her strategic vision, leadership and sense of 
corporate responsibility. Ms. Anis continues to 
inspire innovation, uplifting communities and 
impactful growth of the business.

Experience

Ms. Shusmita Anis was inducted as Director of 
ACI Formulations PLC in 2003 and appointed as 
the Managing Director of the Company in 2012. 
She has also been a Director of Advanced 
Chemical Industries PLC since 2000 and 
performing as a Member of the Audit Committee. 
She was the Director of Pioneer Insurance 
Company Limited and Vice-President of 
Bangladesh Employers’ Federation.

Ms. Shusmita Anis
Managing Director

Date of Appointment : 09 February 2003
Engaged with the Company : 22 years 

Qualifications

Ms. Shusmita Anis completed her graduation in 
Fine Arts in Graphics Design from San Jose, 
California, USA.

Director & Chairman in ACI Group
• Advanced Chemical Industries PLC
• ACI Logistics Limited 
• ACI Foods Limited
• Creative Communication Limited
• ACI Pure Flour Limited
• ACI Salt Limited
• ACI Trade Services Limited
• Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd. 
• ACI AgroChem Limited
• ACI Premio Plastics Limited 
• ACI Shwapno e-Commerce Limited 
• Stochastic Logic Limited
• Consolidated Chemicals Limited
• Dowla Agricultural Development Company Limited
• ACI Foundation (a non-profit organization)
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Board of Directors’ Profile

Mr. Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman has been 
entrusted with Board Secretariat of ACI Group. His 
leadership in Corporate, Legal and Administration 
departments reinforces ACI’s adherence to best 
practices in corporate governance. Mr. Rahman 
demonstrates a strong commitment to maintain 
high operational integrity.

Qualifications

In the year of 2010 the Institute of Chartered 
Secretaries of Bangladesh recognized him as       
a qualified Chartered Secretary. He completed 
both LL.B. (Hons.) and LL.M. from University       
of Dhaka. He earned Post Graduate Diploma       
in Human Resources Management (PGDHRM) 
from Bangladesh Institute of Management (BIM) 
in 2013.

Experience

Mr. Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman joined 
Advanced Chemical Industries PLC as the 
Company Secretary in July 2018. He is currently 
serving as Director, Corporate Affairs, ACI PLC as 
well as head of Administration and Estate & Legal 
Affairs. In addition to this, previously, he worked 
with Heidelberg Cement Bangladesh PLC, Bata 
Shoe Company (Bangladesh) Limited, Square 
Pharma and Rangs Properties Limited in various 
capacities.

Mr. Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman
Company Secretary

Date of Appointment : 22 July 2018 
Engaged with the Company : 7 years

• Fellow member of Institute of Chartered Secretaries 
of Bangladesh

• Former Member on the part of the owners in the 2nd 

Labour Court, Dhaka (2020-2023), selected and 
appointed by the Government of Bangladesh

• Member of the Labor Law Sub-Committee of 
Bangladesh Employers’ Federation

Engagement in Other Entities
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Notice of the 29th Annual General Meeting

ACI Formulations PLC
Registered Office Address: ACI Centre, 245 Tejgaon Industrial Area, Dhaka 1208

Notes

Notice is hereby given that the 29th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of ACI Formulations PLC will be held on 
Sunday, 28 December 2025 at 10:00 am. The AGM will be held virtually using digital platform through the 
following link: https://agmbd.live/aci-formulations2025

AGENDA
1) To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2025 

together with Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon;

2) To declare recommended dividend for the year ended 30 June 2025;

3) To elect/re-elect Directors;

4) To appoint Statutory and Compliance Auditors for the year 2025-2026 and to fix their remunerations;

5) To approve appointment of Independent Director.

Dhaka
04 December 2025 

To Join AGM

a. The Shareholders whose names appeared in the Members/Depository Register as on the Record Date 
i.e. 19 November 2025, will be eligible to attend the virtual AGM and receive the dividend;

b. Members can join the AGM using their Laptop, PC, Mobile or Tab providing their 
respective names, 16-digit BO/Folio numbers and total number of Shares. 
Members can also find the link easily by scanning the QR Code given;

c. The members will be able to submit their questions/comments and vote 
electronically 24 hours before commencement of the AGM and during the AGM;

d. The Shareholders are requested to submit their written option to receive dividend 
to the Company’s Share Office on or before 18 December 2025. In case of 
non-receipt of such option within the stipulated date, the dividend will be paid off 
as deemed appropriate by the Company;

e. The Proxy Form, duly completed, stamped at BDT. 100 must be deposited at the Share Office of the 
Company at 9 Motijheel Commercial Area, Dhaka-1000 at least 48 hours before the time fixed for the 
Meeting;

f. The Annual Report 2024-2025 will be available in Company’s website: www.aci-bd.com/acifl/

By Order of the Board

Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman
Company Secretary
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14
14 November 2024

Thursday

Quarter One
Adoption of unaudited
first quarter financial

statements ended
30 September 2024

30
30 January 2025

Thursday

Quarter Two
Adoption of unaudited

second quarter financial
statements ended
31 December 2024

29
29 April 2025

Tuesday

Quarter Three
Adoption of unaudited
third quarter financial

statements ended
31 March 2025

03
03 December 2025

Wednesday

Annual Report
Issuance of

Annual Report

19
19 November 2025

Wednesday

Record Date
Record Date in lieu

of Book Closure

28
28 October 2025

Tuesday

Annual
Adoption of audited
financial statements
for the year ended

30 June 2025

04
04 December 2025

Thursday

AGM Notice
Notice of 29th Annual

General Meeting

28
28 December 2025

Sunday

AGM Day
29th Annual

General Meeting

22
22 January 2026

Thursday

Dividend Payment
Payment of Dividend to the

shareholders whose name would 
appear in the register of the 

Company on record date



Value Added Statement

 Particulars 2024-2025 2023-2024

  Taka in Million % Taka in Million %

Gross Turnover  5,353    5,116  

Less: Purchase of materials & service  3,655    3,568   

Value added  1,698  100%  1,548  100%

Applications

Government  523  30.8%  520  33.6%
Employee benefits  676  39.8%  658  42.4%
Depreciation  47  2.8%  47  3.1%
Shareholders dividend  118  7.0%  95  6.1%
Reserves and Surplus  334  19.7%  229  14.8%

 Total  1,698  100%  1,548  100%

Government

Employee Benefits

Depreciation

Shareholders Dividend

Reserves and Surplus
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30.8%

39.8%

2.8%

7.0%

19.7%

2024-2025

33.6%

3.1%

6.1%

14.8%

2023-2024

42.4%



Financial Highlights and Analysis

Shareowners' Equity
(Taka in Million)

Earnings Per Share
(Taka)

Net Sales & Profit Before Tax
(Taka in Million)

Turnover Contribution by Business Unit

      Business Unit 2024 - 2025 2023 - 2024
A Corp Care & Public Health 75.96% 77.35%
B Aerosol 14.05% 14.61%
C Paint 9.67% 7.66%
D Toilet Cleaner (Vanish) 0.29% 0.29%
E Mosquito Coil 0.03% 0.09%

July-Jun 
2024-2025
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July-Jun 
2023-2024

A
B

C

D
E

A
B

C

D
E

Net Sales
Profit Before Tax

July 2019-
June 2020

July 2021-
June 2022

July 2022-
June 2023

July 2023-
June 2024

July 2024-
June 2025

July 2020-
June 2021

3,4
22

12
6

3,8
63

29
1

4,2
46

32
8
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July 2020-
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4.51
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July 2024-
June 2025
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3,1173,009
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June 2023

3,055

July 2023-
June 2024

July 2024-
June 2025

3,260
3,567



Comparative Statistics

Comparison of Turnover & Costs

 For the year ended  For the year ended
 30 June 2025 % 30 June 2024 %

Turnover (Gross)  5,353.09  100  5,096.75  100 

Cost of Materials  3,064.25   57.24   3,045.17   59.75 

Expenses  637.30   11.91   538.27   10.56 

Salaries, Wages & Benefits paid to Employees  676.22   12.63   657.89   12.91 

Duties & Taxes paid to Government Exchequer  523.11   9.77   500.29   9.82 

Profit  452.21   8.45   355.12   6.97 

Total      5,353.09   100.00   5,096.75   100.00 

   Particulars  July 19-  July 20-  July 21- July 22- July 23- July 24- 
 June 20  June 21  June 22 June 23 June 24 June 25 
 Taka in million
 Authorized capital   500.00   500.00   500.00   500.00   500.00   500.00 
 Issued & paid-up capital   450.00   450.00   472.50   472.50   472.50   472.50 
 Current assets   3,563.12   3,236.64   4,054.75   4,142.31   4,931.64   5,834.76 
 Tangible fixed assets (gross)    2,176.81   2,694.88   2,709.38   2,769.48   2,817.77   2,894.92 
 Shareowners' equity   2,406.74   3,009.38   3,117.06   3,055.40   3,260.38   3,566.89 
 Turnover (net)   3,422.45   3,863.35   4,246.34   4,958.31   4,933.52   5,170.19 
 Gross profit   1,065.17   1,125.50   1,217.24   1,315.43   1,425.73   1,665.38 
 Profit before tax   125.57   290.45   328.36   311.81   420.94   485.72 
 Profit after tax   92.45   213.26   242.68   235.11   323.10   367.32 
 Dividend   90.00   157.50   118.13   118.13   94.50   118.13 
 Current ratio (times)   1.17   1.27   1.25   1.24   1.22   1.23 
 Quick ratio (times)   0.76   0.77   0.83   0.75   0.91   0.92 
 Return on equity (%)   3.84   7.09   7.79   7.69   9.91   10.30 
 Inventory turnover (times)   1.85   2.14   2.23   2.23   2.76   2.38 
 Debtors turnover (times)   2.02   2.69   3.56   3.78   3.64   3.69 
 Fixed assets turnover (times)   1.80   1.63   1.80   2.03   1.94   1.94 
 Net asset per share (Taka)   53.48   63.69   65.97   64.66   69.00   75.49 
 Market price per share (Taka)   110.20   148.20   158.10   156.20   126.80   126.90 
 Earnings per share (Taka)   2.05   4.51   5.14   4.98   6.84   7.77 
 Dividend per share (Taka)   2.00   3.50   2.50   2.50   2.00   2.50 
 Dividend rate ( %)   20.00   35.00   25.00   25.00   20.00   25.00 
 Dividend payout ratio (%)   97.35   73.85   48.68   50.24   29.25   32.16 
 Price earnings ratio (times)   53.76   32.83   30.78   31.39   18.54   16.32 
 Dividend yield (%)   1.81   2.36   1.58   1.60   1.58   1.97 
 Number of employees   1,113   1,047   982   985   1,034   994 

Taka in Million

Cost of Materials

Expenses

Salaries, Wages & Benefits Paid
to Employees

Duties & Taxes Paid to
Government Exchequer

Profit

Analysis of Turnover (%)
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11.91%

57.24%

12.63%

9.77%

8.45%

2024-2025

10.56%

59.75%

12.91%

9.82%
6.97%

2023-2024
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Assalamu Alaikum,

Looking back on the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2025, I am pleased to share our accomplishments, 
identify the challenges we have faced, and outline 
our vision for the future.

Bangladesh witnessed massive political upheaval 
that shook the nation to the core. The turmoil was 
followed by a period of excitement around a building 
a democratic and vibrant country.

Avoiding distractions, ACI Formulations concentrated 
on improving the quality of their business. They 
developed a better credit management system and 
improved the margin of their products. 

The construction of a R&D centre in ACI Formulation 
factory will open a new window of possibilities for 
the business. In particular, novel formulations of 
products more suited to Bangladesh’s agricultural 
requirements will be a source of competitive 
advantage for the company.

I thank the senior management of ACI Formulation 
for staying focused on their business excellence 
during the period of turmoil and uncertainty. 

To our customers and partners, we appreciate your 
continued loyalty and collaboration.

To our regulators and government agencies, thank 
you for creating an environment in which businesses 
like ours can thrive.

Finally, I would also like to take this opportunity to 
thank all our shareholders for your unwavering trust 
and support. Your confidence in our leadership and 
vision has been invaluable, and we remain deeply 
committed to delivering value and growing our 
business for the benefit of all stakeholders.

M Anis Ud Dowla
Chairman, ACI Group
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Statement of Corporate Governance
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Statement of Corporate Governance
In ACI FL Corporate Governance (CG) is a maxim that is intertwined in responsibility, compliance, transparency 
and finally accountability. As a part of it, ACI FL acknowledges good corporate governance as the essential 
element for success in business and recognizes that it is to be established by means of an effective CG Regime. 
Accordingly, ACI FL emphasizes on stronger diligence to business, all operations being transparent and invites 
larger involvement of the stakeholders. Aspiring on that, the Company has always strived to remain vigilant on 
good governance and good business conduct so as to create and maintain value for shareholders, safeguard 
stakeholders' interest and justify investor confidence. In this respect the Directors of ACI FL are also committed 
to meeting the highest standards of governance and disclosure. And with that aim, the Board ensures the 
integrity and firm attention of its employees, supported by a comprehensive framework of policies, guidelines and 
internal control. The Directors are conscious of their own responsibilities in supervision and direction of affairs of 
the Company in conformity with the practices of sound corporate governance. In fulfillment of those 
responsibilities, the Directors have set for themselves the principles that will be followed in their own involvement 
in the oversight functions and in setting up clear guidelines for the executive management.

The Governing Board
The Board of Directors of ACI FL, being the highest 
authority in the Company, is constituted by a body of 
knowledgeable persons and includes core competencies 
considered relevant in the context of the Company. To 
further ensure a balanced representation, the Board also 
includes Independent Directors, who are very resourceful 
and dignified members of the society. Thus, the Board of 
ACI FL is a compact body and meets all the criteria 
required under the BSEC governing Code. Further details 
about members of the Board are appended at the 
appropriate parts in this report.

Composition of the Board
The Board consists of 7 (seven) members drawn from the 
major shareowners and business professionals. Mr. M Anis 
Ud Dowla is the Chairman of the Board and Ms. Shusmita 
Anis is the Managing Director. Of the seven Directors, four 
are non-executive Directors including two Independent 
Directors. The non-executive Directors are, however, 
available whenever business operations call for their 
attention and involvement.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board
The Board is the supreme authority of the Company to 
oversee its operations through appropriate delegation, 
monitoring, control and reporting. The Directors hold the 
ultimate responsibility of conducting the activities of the 
Company in accordance with law and in the interest of its 
shareowners and other stakeholders, keeping in view the 
long-term interest and aspirations of the Company, while 
also discharging Company’s legal obligations to its 
shareowners.

Functioning of the Board
The Directors meet together for the dispatch of the 
business and regulate the meetings and proceedings 

according to the needs of the Company. Every Board 
meeting is preceded by service of Notice well ahead of 
scheduled time. Notice with agenda supported by working 
papers for every meeting of the Board are sent to all 
Directors well in advance so that they can come up with 
their considered views and can actively participate at the 
deliberations. During the meeting, the Board gets a 
thorough review of the performance of the Company 
through a PowerPoint presentation by the Managing 
Director. All pertinent matters are discussed in details and 
decisions are taken based on thorough considerations. 
Questions arising at any meeting are decided by a 
majority of votes. However, there is a procedure 
supported by the Articles of Associations of the Company 
which allows taking care of any urgent matter through 
Resolution by Circulation. Such circular resolution is 
adopted by the Directors present in Bangladesh, without 
having to call a formal Board Meeting. To make it 
transparent, such resolutions passed by circulation are 
subsequently tabled at the immediately following Board 
meeting and included in the minutes accordingly.

Management through People
The directors believe that a successful Board directs and 
not manage; rather they manage the management. And 
with that spirit, the Board has delegated adequate 
operational and financial authorities to the Managing 
Director which empowers her to set up the organizational 
structure, recruit appropriate people, empower them to 
manage the Strategic Business Units and functional areas 
and provide them guidance for achievement of the 
desired results. 

As the apex corporate authority, the Board is kept 
informed of the goals, targets and initiatives of the 
Business Units and apprised of the financial performance 
on a regular quarterly basis. 
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The Managing Director is in charge of operations of the 
Company and manages the affairs of the Company 
through close consultation with relevant people from 
within the Company and outside experts. 

Empowerment of People
The Board has given clear guidelines to the Managing 
Director to ensure that there is appropriate delegation of 
authority and clear statement of accountability of the 
management staff all the way down to the supervisory 
level and that performance of the individual is judged on 
the basis of clearly set measurable goals and through 
objective assessment of their achievements.

Reporting and Communication
The Managing Director reviews and approves the 
strategic plans of each Business Unit every quarter. She 
also reviews monthly report and commentary on the 
sales and financial performance of business from the 
heads of businesses and the activities of the functional 
and service heads. An elaborate MIS system is in place.

Communication with Shareowners
The Board considers that good governance involves 
openness and trustful cooperation among all stakeholders 
concerned, including the shareowners of the Company. 
Shareowners, being the ultimate controllers of the 
Company, deserve to be informed in all corporate 
respects required under the law. Annual General Meeting 
(AGM) is the highest forum for interaction between 
shareowners and management of the Company. 
Accordingly, the Company holds the AGM regularly and in 
time. The shareowners are informed about the AGM well 
in advance and meeting materials are dispatched to them 
with priority abiding by laws and guidelines. The Directors 
attending the Annual General Meeting note the views, 
aspirations and suggestions of the shareowners and 
institutional stakeholders offered at the AGM and consider 
them with utmost attention. The Managing Director also 

brings to the notice of the Board any written 
communication received by her from the shareowners.

Internal Control and Risk Management
The Managing Director has to satisfy the Board that 
adequate internal check and controls are in place through 
appropriate MIS and employment of Internal Audit team 
to check and validate the expenses and the systems in 
operation. To further strengthen the controls, the 
Company has introduced ISO 9001:2015 Quality 
Management System, under which all activities are 
carried out on the basis of Standard Operating

Procedures. These standard procedures are updated on a 
regular basis in line with ISO requirements. The 
Company has also introduced ISO 14001:2015 
Environmental Management System, and as a result has 
undertaken a task of continuing improvement through 
annual goals. Internal Audit department has been 
strengthened with induction of qualified and experienced 
personnel, demonstrating the Board's commitment to 
ensure that adequate risk management and internal 
control systems are in place across the Company. 

Independent Director
In compliance with the Corporate Governance Code of 
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC), 
the Board of Directors of the Company includes two 
Independent Directors namely, Mr. Golam Mainuddin and 
Ms. Nasreen Sattar. Ms. Nasreen Sattar is the Chairman of 
the Board of Audit Committee and Mr. Golam Mainuddin is 
the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee. The Independent Directors of the Company 
have been elected amongst the senior corporate leaders 
and bureaucrats of the country who are elite members of 
the society having requisite qualifications as prescribed by 
BSEC.
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Appointment of Independent Director
The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed   
Ms. Nasreen Sattar as Independent Director of the 
Company for an initial tenure of three years with effect 
from 30 January 2025. Ms. Sattar has also been 
appointed as Chairman of the Board of Audit Committee. 
The Board requested the shareholders to confirm the 
appointments at their 29th Annual General Meeting. The 
brief resume along with required information of the 
Independent Director is available under the ‘Directors’ 
Profile’ of this report.

Distinctive Role of Chairman and 
Managing Director
According to the Governance Code, the positions of 
Chairman and Managing Director are being held by 
separate individuals and their roles and responsibilities 
are clearly established, set out in writing and which are 
distinct from each other to ensure transparency and 
better governance. The Chairman is a non-executive 
director and responsible for smooth functioning of the 
Board, while the Managing Director acts as the Chief 
Executive Officer and in charge of the day-to-day 
operations of the Company.

Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal 
Audit & Compliance and Company Secretary
Under requirements of the BSEC Governance Code, the 
Company has in place the above three key positions held 
by three qualified professionals. Mr. Md. Monir Hossain 
Khan, a Fellow Chartered Accountant, acts as the Chief 
Financial Officer and Mr. Amitava Saha, acts as the Head 
of Internal Audit & Complince. Mr. Mohammad Mostafizur 
Rahman, a Fellow Chartered Secretary, is the Company 
Secretary of the Company, and is responsible for overall 
governing compliance of the Company and performs as 
the bridge between the Board, Management and 
Shareholders. The roles, responsibilities and duties of 
these three key positions have clearly set forth in writing 
by the Board.

The Board Audit Committee
Following the Code of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 
Commission (BSEC), the Board has constituted an Audit 
Committee for the Company the details of which are 
stated in the Audit Committee Report forming part of this 
Annual Report. The Committee comprises of 3 (three) 
Members from the Board of Directors. All members of the 
Audit Committee are financially literate and enable to 
scrutinize and interpret financial statements while 
discharging their duties and responsibilities as member of 
the Committee. The Chairman of the Committee is an 

Independent Director having the requisite qualification in 
line with BSEC Code. The Company Secretary acts as the 
Secretary of the Committee, as required by the BSEC 
Code. The Chief Financial Officer and Head of Internal 
Audit and Compliance attend all meetings of the 
Committee regularly as special invitees.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during FY 
2024-2025. The key responsibilities of the Audit 
Committee include:

1. Review and monitor the integrity of the financial 
reporting system and ensure that Company complies 
with the accounting policies, principles and applicable 
standards;

2. Review and appraisal of the performance of the 
internal audit and internal control system;

3. Review of the risks associated with the Company's 
business operation including mitigation and 
awareness plan;

4. Overseeing hiring and performance of external 
auditors;

5. Other matters as per terms of reference as well as 
time to time requirements of the Regulators.

Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee (NRC)
In compliance with the Corporate Governance Code, the 
Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held   
on 28 October 2020 constituted a Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee as a sub-committee of the 
Board with the following non-executive Directors:

Mr. Golam Mainuddin, Independent Director - Chairman

Ms. Nasreen Sattar, Independent Director - Member

Mr. Juned Ahmed Choudhury, Director - Member

Mr. Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman, Company Secretary - Secretary 

A detailed Terms of Reference (ToR) and Policy of the 
NRC has also been approved by the Board

The terms of reference of the Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee and Policy include,         
among other items, the determination of the Company's 
policy on unique remuneration for Executive Directors, 
the review, recommendation and/or approval of 
remuneration to Directors, the review and approval of 
the Company's remuneration policy, the creation of 
evaluation criteria for Independent Directors and the 
Board of Directors, identifying persons who are eligible to 
become Directors and who may be appointed to senior 
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management in accordance with the criteria laid down and 
recommending the appointment or removal of such 
persons to the Board and discharging such other functions 
and exercising such other powers as the Board of 
Directors may delegate/direct from time to time. During 
the financial year 2024-2025, one (1) meeting of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) was 
conducted on 06 November 2024.

Reviewing of Business and Financial 
operations
The operations of the Company are regularly supervised, 
monitored and guided by the Board. The purpose of 
business review is to ensure strategic control and 
follow-up of results based on the prevailing strategic 
objectives and value considerations. Financial reviews 
provide the internal quarterly results follow-up for the 
Company. The purpose is to provide an analysis of the 
economic and financial situations, which will then form the 
basis for external reporting and presentations, and to 
provide quality assurance for the financial reporting.

Independent Scrutinizer
As per the BSEC’s Directive no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2009/193/08
dated 10 March 2021, the Board in its 142nd meeting held 
on 28 October 2025 appointed M/s Jasmin & Associates, 
Chartered Secretaries, as the Independent Scrutinizer to 
observe the 29th AGM of the Company to be held on 
Sunday, 28 December 2025 ensuring the facility to 
exercise the voting rights of shareholders on the 

resolution proposed to be considered at the AGM. The 
due process of election and detailed information of  
voting result shall be authenticated by the Independent 
Scrutinizer and be reported to BSEC accordingly.

Governance in Subsidiary Companies
ACI Formulations PLC (ACI FL) has 2 (two) subsidiary 
companies under its corporate canopy. ACI FL, being the 
holding company, applies the same governance strategy 
in its subsidiaries. In that exercise, the Company has duly 
implemented the following as per requirements of the 
BSEC CG Code:

a) Provisions relating to the composition of the Board of 
holding company has also been applied in the 
composition of the Board of the subsidiary 
companies;

b) The Board Directors of subsidiary companies include 
one Independent Director from the Board of the 
holding company;

c) The minutes of the Board meeting of the subsidiary 
companies are placed for review at the following 
Board meeting of the holding company;

d) The minutes of the respective Board meeting of the 
holding company duly record that the Board has also 
reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary companies; and

e) The Board Audit Committee of ACI FL duly reviews 
the financial statements, in particular the 
investments made by its subsidiary companies.
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The Audit Committee Report presented under Condition No. 5 (7) of the Corporate Governance Code as 
adopted on 3 June 2018 by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) provides an insight on 
the functions of the Audit Committee during 2024-2025.

Report of the Audit Committee
For the year ended 30 June 2025

Audit Committee in ACI Formulations PLC is a 
sub-committee of the Board of Directors that assists the 
Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities by 
ensuring that the financial statements reflect true     
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and 
by effective monitoring of the business. The Audit 
Committee acts on behalf of the Board and is 
responsible to it. The jurisdiction of the Audit 
Committee extends over the Company covering risk 
management with special emphasis on ensuring 
compliance with all applicable legislation and regulation.

Composition and Meetings

Chairman : Ms. Nasreen Sattar,
  Independent Director 

Member : Dr. A.K.M. Fareyzul Haque Ansarey,   
Director

Member : Mr. Juned Ahmed Choudhury,  
Director

Secretary  : Mr. Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman,   
Company Secretary

A total of 4 (four) meetings of the Audit Committee 
were held during the year under report. Company 
Secretary functioned as the ex-officio Secretary to the 
Committee as per regulatory guidelines. In addition to 
that the Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit 
and Compliance attended the meetings on invitation 
and other officials attended as and when the 
Committee required the presence to clarify any issue.

The detailed responsibilities of Audit Committee are 
well defined in the Terms of Reference (ToR). However, 
the major roles of the Audit Committee are mentioned 
below: 

(a) To review the quarterly and annual financial 
statements before submission to the Board for 
approval, ensure adequacy of internal audit 
function, examine Management’s Discussions and 
Analysis of important and pertinent issues, review 

statement of all related party transactions on a 
random basis and ensure action on Management 
Letters or Letter of Internal Control weakness 
issued by statutory auditors etc.;

(b) To oversee the financial reporting process, hiring 
and performance of external auditors;

(c) To monitor choice of accounting policies, and 
principles, and their adjustment, where so 
required;

(d) To oversee risk management, internal controls 
arrangements and compliance with legal and 
regulatory requirements;

(e) To review the activity and performance of the 
Internal Audit function.

The Audit Committee reports on its activities to the 
Board of Directors. Audit Committee also immediately 
reports to the Board of Directors on: 

a) report on conflicts of interests;

b) suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or 
material defect in the internal control system; 

c) suspected infringement of laws, rules and 
regulations including those relating to securities; 

d) any other matter which needs disclosure to the 
Board of Directors.

The Committee considered the scope and methodology 
of the audits, as well as the independence, objectivity 
and qualification of the external auditors. The Audit 
Committee reviewed the external audit works and 
concluded that the financial reporting was satisfactory 
and in compliance with generally accepted accounting 
principles in Bangladesh and that the audit was 
satisfactorily conducted. In connection with financial 
reporting, the Audit Committee also reviewed the 
Company's financial statements. The Audit Committee 
concluded that all reported financial results have been 
presented in accordance with applicable rules. 
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Dhaka, 28 October 2025

The Audit Committee also reviewed ACI FL's 
self-assessment of Corporate Governance practices, 
based on a checklist provided by Bangladesh Securities 
and Exchange Commission (BSEC). The Committee 
concluded that Corporate Governance practices within 
ACI FL generally exceeded the standards laid down. 

Besides these, the Audit Committee reviewed risk 
identification, assessment and mitigation methodologies, 
process and management. The Committee concluded 
that risk management was reasonably satisfactory, with 
the formulation of highly structured and well-defined 
risk categories, as well as the identification and review 
of the major risks affecting ACI FL’s flow of operations 
and their impact in upcoming years. 

The Audit Committee will continue to monitor the 
progress made by Internal Audit Division for "Risk  
Based Audit" by conducting critical examination           
of random samples of Corporate Governance and   
Ethics compliance issues, and ensuring the 
clearance/resolution of outstanding items. 

Summary of activities during the year
During the year under review the Committee, inter alia, 
focused on the following activities:

a) Reviewed and recommended the Annual Financial 
Statements for the year ended on 30 June 2025 to 
the Board for approval;

b) Reviewed the Management Letter from external 
auditors for the year under review along with 
management's responses on the findings; 

c) Reviewed the Auditors' Certification on Corporate 
Governance compliance;

d) Reviewed the performance of the external auditors 
during the year, their appointment and 
remuneration for the next year and recommended 
the same to the Board for consideration;

e) Reviewed and ensured that the internal control 
system including financial and operational 
controls, accounting system, and reporting 
structure are satisfactory;

f) Endorsed the internal audit plan 2025-2026 and 
reviewed the progress against the approved 
internal audit plan 2024-2025;

g) Reviewed the regular reports submitted by the 
Head of Internal Audit and Complince and oversee 
the progress on implementation of Management 
responses against internal audit findings; 

h) Reviewed the actions taken by the management 
for implementation of Audit Committee 
observations on issues deliberated in Audit 
Committee reports; 

i) The Committee placed its reports regularly to the 
Board for reviewing and monitoring the activities 
recommended on the internal control system, 
compliance with rules and regulation of the 
regulatory bodies; 

j) The Committee reviewed unaudited quarterly 
Financial Statements during the year under 
review and recommended those to the Board for 
its approval;

k) Based on the above review and discussion,      
the Audit Committee is of the view that the 
internal control and compliance procedures are 
satisfactory to present a true and fair view of the 
activities and financial status of the Company; 

l) Reviewed the financial statements of the 
subsidiary companies and recommended the 
same to the Board for consideration;

m) Reviewed the capital investments made by the 
subsidiary companies.

Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman
Secretary of the Committee

Nasreen Sattar
Chairman of the Committee



The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of ACI FL is one of its Board sub-committees that 
assists the Board generally in formulation of policy with regard to defining qualifications, positive 
attributes, experiences, remuneration for Directors and Top-Level Executives of the Company.

Report of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
For the year ended 30 June 2025

Dear Shareholders,

This report provides an overview of how the Committee operates, an insight into the Committee’s 
activities and its role. A brief of the NRC and its roles, responsibilities and functions are given below:

Composition and Meetings
The NRC of ACI Formulations PLC comprises 3 (three) members who are exclusively Non-Executive 
Directors, including two Independent Directors. The Committee consists of:

Mr. Golam Mainuddin, Independent Director - Chairman

Ms. Nasreen Sattar, Independent Director - Member

Mr. Juned Ahmed Choudhury, Director - Member

Mr. Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman, Company Secretary - Secretary

A total of 1 (one) meeting was held during the financial year 2024-2025. A record of the Members’ 
attendance at the NRC meetings during 2024-2025 is given below:

Committee members Attendance % (Percentage)
Mr. Golam Mainuddin 1 100
Mr. Juned Ahmed Choudhury 1 100

Major Responsibilities of NRC 
The role of the NRC shall be to oversee, among others, the following matters and make report with 
recommendations to the Board:

a) The NRC is an independent Committee and responsible or accountable to the Board and to the 
shareholders;

b) NRC is responsible to supervise, among others, the following matters and make report along with its 
recommendations to the Board:

(i) formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of 
a director and recommend a policy to the Board relating to the remuneration of directors and 
top level executives, considering the following:

(a) that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, 
retain and motivate suitable directors to run the Company successfully;

(b) that the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate 
performance benchmarks; and

(c) that remunerations to directors and top-level executives involve a balance between fixed 
and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the 
working of the Company and its goals.
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(i) devising a policy on Board’s diversity taking into consideration of age, experience, gender, 
ethnicity, educational background and nationality;

(ii) identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in top 
level executive position in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend their 
appointment and removal to the Board;

(iii) formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and members 
of the Board;

(iv) identifying Company’s needs for employees at different levels and determine their selection, 
transfer or replacement and promotion criteria; 

(v) developing, recommending and reviewing annually the Company’s human resources and 
training policies;

(vi) establishing the levels of pay and benefits of top level executives. For this purpose 'top level 
executive' means and includes the Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), 
Additional or Deputy Managing Director (AMD or DMD), Chief Operating Officer (COO), Chief 
Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secretary (CS), Head of Internal Audit and Compliance 
(HIAC), Head of Administration and Human Resources or equivalent positions and same level 
or ranked or salaried officials of the Company;

(vii)   reviewing and authorising changes to pay or benefits policy covering all employees;

(viii) reviewing and recommending on periodic/annual employee assessments and their increment 
proposals, if any;

(ix) furthermore, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee will also be authorised to 
recommend collective awards for negotiated pay settlements; and

(x) reviewing and recommending Company's Codes of Conduct (CoC) for the Chairman, Board 
members, CEO and other senior executives.

Appraisal of the Board 
Directors in the Company Board are also subject to appraisal and assessment about their respective 
performances and collective wisdom. The NRC is responsible for ensuring ability and effectiveness of 
the Board. With that in view, the Committee carries out yearly evaluation of Board's work modalities, 
functional performances as well as its level of monitoring of internal control over financial reporting 
for preparation of the financial statements and the safeguarding of Company assets. Such evaluation 
process is led by the Chairman and assisted by the Company Secretary. For this purpose, directors 
are required to complete a yearly confidential pre-set questionnaire. The evaluation includes an 
annual review of administration of the Board and its committees covering their operations, serving of 
meeting notices, agenda, reports and information produced for consideration and its overall 
relationship with the Management.

The NRC Policy
The Company follows a nomination and remuneration policy the benchmark of which relies on 
standards and also recognizable in the market context and sufficient to fit and meet the current and 
future needs of the Company. The broad criteria in that respect are as follows:
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(a) Nomination criteria - 

(i) To follow a selection process that is absolutely transparent in all respects;

(ii) To pursue a policy that is compatible to international standards;

(iii) To only recognize core competencies considered relevant in the context of the Company; 

(iv) To follow general diversity in age, qualification, expertise and gender disciplines;

(v) To identify the Company’s needs for employees at different levels and determine their selection, 
transfer or replacement and also promotion principles.

(b) Remuneration (basic) criteria - 

(i) The structure, scale and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain 
and motivate suitable directors and/or managers to run the Company effectively;

(ii) The context of packages including remuneration/benefits monthly, yearly and in long run are 
categorically laid down and meets appropriate performance benchmarks;

(iii) There is a clear balance in benefits between fixed and incentive pay of the directors and senior 
management reflecting short and long-term performance goals and objectives of the Company;

(iv) The remuneration/compensation/benefits (or in whatever form) payable to the directors and senior 
managers shall be determined by the NRC and recommended to the Board for approval;

(v) The remuneration to be paid to the whole-time directors shall be in accordance with the provisions 
(if any) laid down in the Articles of Association of the Company; 

(vi) Increments (if any) to the existing structure of remuneration shall be determined by the NRC and 
recommended to the Board for approval.

(c) Detailed scope of remuneration strategy -

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will review all aspects of the terms and conditions of the 
services of Directors and top level executives. It will also cover the pay and benefits policy for the rest of 
the organization. The overall scope and criteria of the NRC with respect to remuneration will encompass 
the following aspects:

(i) To recognize that the remuneration & benefits package is a major cost, but which is also a 
significant management instrument which must be used strategically and positively with a clear 
view of the cost/benefit implications of any pay proposal;

(ii) To review the volume and terms and conditions of all benefits in kind while ensuring that the reward 
practices are aligned to the Company's reward strategy;

(iii) To identify the market competitors of the same type, level and caliber where employment and 
recruitment policies are pursued in nearly same measurement;

(iv) To ensure arrangement for regular surveys of remuneration and benefits in peer companies to 
obtain a reliable measure of the market;

(v) To formulate and justify a pay and/or remuneration level compatible to the market with appropriate 
relative position recognizing that the Company will need to attract and retain managers and 
professionals of high caliber;

(vi) To ensure that any changes to the packages are based on the market and which are affordable. The 
remuneration review process should consider inflation level which is reflected also with those of the 
comparator companies and based on normal practice amongst the peer companies;

(vii) To ensure reviewing the reward packages as a whole, seeking overall competitiveness and market 
comparability;

(viii) To review the individual components of the total reward package to determine by examining market 
trends, the benefit value of each element and adjust the package to achieve the greatest perceived 
value for cost;

(ix) To ensure that the remuneration package is at all times fully in compliance with individual taxation 
and other legal requirements, whilst at the same time maximizing legitimate individual pay 
advantages;
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Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman
Secretary of the Committee

Golam Mainuddin
Chairman of the Committee

(x) To maintain an effective system of job evaluation to ensure that the applicable grade structure is 
maintained at management level;

(xi) To consider the employment terms and conditions of the unionized employees, management staff, 
directors and/or expatriates, if any, separately;

(xii) To grant prior approval to collective pay/benefit awards for unionized employees. The NRC may 
authorize the Managing Director or any relevant management member of the Company to negotiate 
pay/benefit settlements with recognized Trades Unions or Collective Bargaining Agent within 
predetermined limits, while any agreement being notified to the Committee members on completion 
of negotiations;

(xiii) To also ensure that the employment and retirement benefit packages comply with the best practice 
guidelines.

Functionality and management of NRC
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will formally meet at least once in a year or more frequently 
depending on necessity. The annual format for managing the Nomination and Remuneration Committee will 
be somewhat as follows:

• Committee secretary (who is the Company Secretary) initiates the raw planning and finalises the 
date for the forthcoming NRC meeting with the Chairman of the Committee and ensures ultimate 
membership attendance at the meetings;

• The Head of Human Resources compiles background data for the next meeting and communicates to 
the Company Secretary who prepares agenda for submission to the Committee members for 
pre-reading;

• Members agree on agenda and the key areas of focus in advance with the Chairman for the 
forthcoming meeting;

• The NRC meeting, convened by the secretary, goes into session with necessary quorum being 
present and followed by due preparation of minutes of the meeting by the Committee secretary;

• The draft minutes are circulated to the Committee members for study, review and concurrence. 
Signed/initialed copies of the minutes are returned to the secretary; 

• Minutes of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings are subsequently considered and 
approved at regular meetings of the Board;

Overall, ACI Formulations PLC, being a responsible Company, pursues a uniformly transparent strategy in all 
respects. Accordingly, its nomination and remuneration policy, evaluation criteria, activities and basic 
constitution of NRC, as a Board sub-committee, are reflected at a glance in the Annual Report of the 
Company for general information of all.

Major Activities of the NRC during the period were as follows:
• The NRC reviewed the mix and composition of the Board;

• The NRC reviewed the background of the independent Directors, their level of independence and 
performance attributes of the Board as a whole;

• Recommended the appointment of the Independent Director.

Dhaka, 28 October 2025
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ACI Formulations PLC’s Board pursues a dividend 

policy which is flexible and designed to ensure a 

steady cash income for the investors with 

occasional extra gain by way of interim dividend 

and stock dividend if the cash flow permits.

A portion of the profit of the Company is put in 

investors’ fund for future appropriation, either in 

equity or to make up for any shortfall, in case in 

any year the profit is not adequate and in that 

case the fund can be used to meet the 

expectations of shareowners. 

The Dividend Policy is the result of many interactions 
over the years between the sponsors and other 
shareowners which have developed a general 
understanding of the expectations and the dividend 
declaration has been based on that understanding. 

The Dividend Policy has stood the test of time and 
has enabled the Company to fulfil the expectations 
of the shareowners. 

This policy is dynamic and will change over time as 
the sponsors’ perceive the change in the 
expectations of the general shareowners.

Dividend Distribution Policy

CASH DIVIDEND

 PARTICULARS AMOUNT IN TAKA
 Dividend for 2008 to 2021 13,159,768

NB: Unclaimed Dividend of Tk.12,734,415 transferred to the Capital Market Stabilization Fund (CMSF).  

CASH DIVIDEND

 PARTICULARS AMOUNT IN TAKA
 Dividend for 2022 530,630 
 Dividend for 2023 327,316 
 Dividend for 2024 415,335 

Total 1,273,281

STOCK DIVIDEND

 PARTICULARS Number of Shares
 Dividend for 2008 200
 Dividend for 2011 600

Total 800

NB: 800 Number of Bonus Shares as Unclaimed Stock Dividend from 2008 to 2020 transferred to the Capital 
Market Stabilization Fund (CMSF).  

A detail information (year-wise) is also available at Company’s website: www.aci-bd.com/acifl/ 

Information of Unpaid and Unclaimed Dividend
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CSR Activities and Employee Welfare Initiatives

CSR activities during the period

Winter Cloth Drive: 
As a part of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), ACI 
Formulations PLC (ACI FL) organizes an annual “Winter 
Cloth Distribution” program to provide warmth and 
comfort to underprivileged communities during the 
challenging winter season. This initiative reflects ACI’s 
dedication to social welfare and is further strengthened 
by the active participation of employees inspired by the 
slogan, “An effort to be someone’s reason to smile.” 
Through this program, ACI FL distributed blankets 
across the northern and southern regions of 
Bangladesh, continuing its tradition of making a 
meaningful difference in the lives of those in need.

At ACI FL, we believe our employees are our greatest 
asset and the cornerstone of our success. We          
are dedicated to fostering a workplace culture that 
aligns closely with the company’s mission, vision, and 
values. ACI FL consistently prioritizes employee  
safety, welfare, and well-being through comprehensive 
programs and initiatives—ensuring both the 
professional growth of our workforce and the 
sustainable success of the organization.

Employee Welfare Initiatives:
ACI FL, with a workforce of approximately a       
thousand dedicated professionals, has consistently 
been recognized as one of the most preferred 
employers in the country. The organization is 
committed to upholding employee welfare, fostering a 
culture where every team member passionately 
contributes to the growth of the company, society, and 
the nation.

ACI FL has implemented several key initiatives to 
ensure robust employee welfare, including:

Food and Nutrition:
ACI FL places a strong emphasis on the health            
and well-being of its employees. This commitment        
is demonstrated through the construction of a    
modern, well-ventilated factory canteen, equipped with 
contemporary amenities to ensure a comfortable dining 
experience. The facility provides employees with access 
to healthy and nutritious meals during work hours. In 
addition, ACI FL supplies tiffin to all workers, further 
reinforcing the company’s dedication to supporting 
employee nutrition, overall well-being, and workplace 
productivity.

Work with Recreation:

ACI FL organizes an Annual Sports Day and Cultural 
Programs for its employees to promote team     
bonding, celebrate diversity, and encourage physical 
fitness—activities that collectively enhance productivity 
and foster a positive work environment.

During the Holy month of Ramadan, ACI FL hosts an 
“Iftar Mahfil” to nurture unity and harmony among 
employees from diverse backgrounds. The event also 
includes a special prayer for the well-being of the 
organization, society, and the nation, reflecting the 
company’s ongoing commitment to community values 
and shared purpose.

Medical and Health Benefits
ACI FL provides comprehensive medical treatment       
to employees and their families, ensuring timely and 
effective health support through partnerships with 
renowned hospitals across the country. To facilitate 
this, ACI FL has agreements with a substantial network 
of hospitals, clinics, and diagnostic centers. In addition 
to treatment services, ACI organizes various 
vaccination drives, health awareness programs, and 
wellness campaigns throughout the year, 
demonstrating its commitment to the ongoing health 
and well-being of its workforce.

Free Medical Campaign for Farmers:

As part of its commitment to the health and     
well-being of Bangladesh's agricultural communities, 
ACI FL organized the country. These initiatives     
offered essential health screenings to underprivileged 
farmers and their families, promoting preventive      
care and enabling early detection of potential health 
issues. By supporting the well-being of farmers, ACI FL 
aims to enhance the productivity and sustainability                
of Bangladesh’s agricultural sector, contributing to 
long-term growth and resilience.

Educational Assistance

Scholarship:

As a responsible corporate citizen, ACI FL consistently 
focuses on education, skills development, and 
knowledge enhancement for individuals both within the 
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organization and in the broader community. As part of 
this commitment, ACI FL provides annual scholarships 
to the children of its employees. In 2025, twenty bright 
students were awarded scholarships by the company. 
ACI FL believes that today’s students are the future of 
the nation, and by nurturing them effectively, the 
company contributes to securing a brighter and more 
prosperous future for Bangladesh.

School Campaign:
ACI FL recognizes the importance of nurturing future 
generations engaged in agriculture. Through a recent 
school campaign across 13 locations, ACI FL provided 
students with a variety of educational activities aimed 
at fostering brand awareness and increasing knowledge 
about Bangladesh's agricultural heritage. By sparking 
curiosity about the vital role of agriculture in the 
nation’s well-being, the company aims to inspire a new 
generation of passionate individuals who can drive 
innovation and progress in the sector for years to come.

Tree Plantation:
As part of its long-term sustainability vision, ACI FL 
organized a large-scale tree plantation program across 
50 locations across the country. This initiative not     
only contributed to restoring ecological balance but  
also generated lasting environmental benefits for  
future generations, reinforcing the company’s 
commitment   to greener communities. The activities 
included eco-friendly farming workshops and extensive 
tree-planting drives, during which thousands of 
saplings were planted. Interactive sessions were also 
conducted to educate participants on recycling and 
conservation practices. Through this initiative, ACI FL 
aimed to raise environmental awareness, promote 
ecosystem restoration, and encourage sustainable 
farming—emphasizing the collective responsibility 
required to create a greener and more sustainable 
future.

Flood Relief Support:
ACI FL stood firmly alongside flood-affected families     
in the Cumilla and Chattogram regions through              
a well-coordinated relief program. Essential supplies, 
including food, clean water, clothing, and hygiene    
kits, were distributed to help communities recover   
from    the devastation. Beyond material support, the 
company’s team offered guidance, encouragement, and 
resources to restore livelihoods and rebuild hope. This 

initiative reflects the company’s commitment to social 
responsibility, resilience-building, and the well-being of 
communities during times of crisis.

Safety and Security:

The company promotes occupational health and safety 
by educating employees about the benefits of 
maintaining good health, a proper diet, and practicing 
workplace safety. 

The Company has modern fire safety alarms, fire 
extinguishers, and emergency exits at all its premises 
to protect employees in case of emergencies.

Online Health and Safety Programs
To ensure physical well-being, the Company is 
continuously arranging online health and safety 
programs for every employee. Collaborating with top 
hospitals and renowned health practitioners, these 
health and safety programs are targeted to create 
awareness among employees on alarming health 
hazards. The most notable health and safety programs 
arranged by ACI HR are as follows:   

Health Awareness session on “How to Manage 
Back Pain & Neck Pain, Prevent Injuries, and 
Effectively Manage Trauma”:

An online session titled “How to Manage Back Pain        
& Neck Pain, Prevent Injuries, and Effectively Manage 
Trauma” was organized to promote employee       
health awareness and preventive care. The session 
featured Lt. Col. (Dr.) Md. Zamil Zaidur Rahim,    
Senior Consultant, Orthopedics & Trauma at Evercare 
Hospital, Dhaka, is a highly esteemed expert in the 
field of orthopedics. Dr. Zamil shared valuable insights 
on identifying early symptoms, maintaining proper 
posture, incorporating stretching and ergonomic 
practices in daily routines, and adopting a balanced 
lifestyle to prevent musculoskeletal injuries. The 
interactive session helped employees gain practical 
knowledge to better manage pain, improve physical 
well-being, and enhance overall productivity at work.

Dengue Awareness:

Amid the dengue surge, HR made a graphical 
awareness communication to raise awareness on the 
issue. This communication focused on prevention, 
detection, and remedy for dengue fever. 



Agriculture remains a cornerstone of Bangladesh’s 
economy, engaging nearly half the population and 
contributing about 15% to GDP. Ensuring food security 
for a growing population requires continuous 
improvement in productivity through quality inputs 
and modern practices. The Crop Care Division           
is committed to this mission, providing             
reliable insecticides, fungicides, herbicides, and 
growth-promoting solutions that help farmers increase 
yields. We aim to strengthen food security while 
empowering farmers toward sustainable growth.

The year was one of the most challenging in the 
agrochemical industry. Ongoing wars and geopolitical 
tensions stressed the macroeconomic environment. 
Bangladesh experienced major political turmoil in the 
first quarter, bringing unforeseen challenges such as 
supply chain disruptions, port congestion, foreign 
exchange volatility, and banking stress. Rising raw 
material and utility costs further strained operations, 
while devastating floods in the southern region 
severely affected farmers. Despite these setbacks and 
a 10% industry decline, ACI Crop Care grew 3%. This 
was made possible by the relentless efforts of our 
dedicated team.

The Herbicide portfolio suffered due to flooding but 
maintained prior-year sales. In the Granular 
Insecticide segment, we have degrown by 5% due to 
the ban on our major product Carbofuran which had a 
significant market share. Powder Insecticides held 
market share with Pyrazin 70WDG. Liquid Insecticides 
grew 12%, led by Acmix 55 EC, while Pilarex gained 
traction in rice. The Fungicide portfolio achieved 25% 
growth, with Xtramil and Aciflo performing strongly. 
Xtramil retained its top position in the segment.

Flora, our proven plant energizer, boosted rice, 
vegetable, and fruit yields, growing 25% and showing 
strong expansion potential.

Biological solutions are gaining prominence. In FY 
2024–25, our biopesticide portfolio grew by 108%, 
the highest growth across categories. Nimbicidine, our 
flagship product, expanded by over 25%. We are 
committed to sustainable agriculture, strengthening 
focus on biological in line with regulatory priorities.

ACI Crop Care continues to seek eco-friendly 
molecules for Bangladesh. Crop-wise field trials are 
underway to complement existing solutions, and we 
are collaborating with global MNCs to introduce new 
molecules. Progress, however, has slowed due to 
regulatory administrative changes.

Long-term relationships with channel partners and 
farmers remain central to our strategy. Through field 
visits, demonstrations, and personal interactions, our 
team delivers tailored recommendations, ensuring 
timely solutions. Collaboration with the Department of 
Agricultural Extension (DAE) has expanded awareness 
and farmer education. Rising living costs have 
reduced the purchasing power, making farmers opt for 
lower-cost solutions. Our team advises cost-effective 
options, supported by real-time insights on pest 
outbreaks, disease trends and good agronomic 
practices.

As a trusted sector leader, we recognize our 
responsibility to underserved communities. Guided   
by this commitment, we expanded CSR initiatives, 
including medical camps for farming families, school 
awareness programs, tree plantations, winter clothing 
drives, and direct humanitarian aid during the 
southern floods.

AkzoNobel, our global partner, is a leader in paints, 
with ACI Formulations PLC manufacturing under two 
segments: Decorative Paints and Marine & Protective 
Coatings. In Decorative Paints, our brands Dulux and 
Duwel performed strongly. We enriched the Dulux 

Directors' Report to the Shareowners
 For the year ended 30 June 2025
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portfolio with three launches—Velvet Touch 
(Diamond Glo), Promise Smart Choice Interior, and 
WeatherShield Prime Coat. The latter, an advanced 
water-based sealant, protects exteriors from 
weather damage. Decorative paints grew 
significantly, expanding market share.

The Marine and Protective Coatings segment, 
represented by International Paint (IP), was hit 
hard by political unrest and stalled mega-projects. 
Despite this, overall paint sales still grew 32%.

Partnerships with the Real Estate & Housing 
Association of Bangladesh (REHAB) enhanced brand 
promotion in Dhaka, Chittagong, and smaller 
towns, helping us expand into new urban and rural 
markets. With a growing customer base, stronger 
distribution channels, and deeper stakeholder 
engagement, AkzoNobel Paint has significant 
growth potential.

Home Care Solutions has two categories: Pest 
Control and Non-Pest.

In Pest Control, ACI Aerosol remains the flagship, 
contributing BDT 726 million in sales. With more 
than 50 years of consumer trust, it continues as the 
most dominant name in the segment, backed by 
loyalty and consistent visibility.

In Non-Pest, the Air Care segment grew 22% to 
BDT 415 million. Angelic Air Freshener led with a 
36% market share, driven by diverse fragrances 
and an impactful ATL campaign with focused 
distribution.

Vanish Toilet Cleaner maintained a strong presence 
in the Lavatory Care category, delivering sales of 
over 200,000 units. With solid distribution coverage 
and growing brand recognition, Vanish Toilet 
Cleaner continues to build a sustainable foundation 
for long-term growth.

Overall, Home Care Solutions navigated external 
turbulence, sustained consumer trust, and unlocked 
growth through disciplined execution.

ACI Neem Original delivered 51% sales growth, 
reaching BDT 87 million. Rising consumer 
preference for natural products fueled momentum. 
Expanded distribution, refreshed communication 
highlighting daily use, and eco-friendly 
campaigns—including signature tree plantation 
initiatives—strengthened its brand identity.

Our Gazipur factory supports agrochemical 
operations while serving global clients such as SC 
Johnson and AkzoNobel. Operations are evolving 
into a next-generation manufacturing hub with 
advanced production lines, strong quality systems, 



Annual Report 2024-2025 l Page 37

and a culture of excellence. Lean manufacturing, 
automation, and real-time digital monitoring 
boosted productivity, safety, and quality. Capacity 
expansion enabled broader product formulation, 
improving margins and driving cost efficiency 
through local value addition. Environmental 
stewardship is ensured through an Effluent 
Treatment Plant (ETP) that neutralizes liquid waste 
before safe discharge and a high-temperature 
incinerator for hazardous solid waste.

The Agrochemical Research and Development 
Centre, a specialized division of ACI Formulations 
PLC, is a state-of-the-art lab for testing, formulation 
development, and innovation. It supports 
agrochemicals, food, water, and environmental 
sample testing, and is on track to achieve ISO 
17025:2017 certification. Equipped with advanced 
instruments and staffed by skilled scientists, the 
Centre ensures quality, safety, and regulatory 
compliance while driving continuous innovation.

ACI AgroChem Limited, a subsidiary holding 90% 
shares, focuses on registering, manufacturing, 
distributing, and marketing agri-input products. 
Several new molecules and formulations are in 
advanced stages of regulatory approval. Their 
introduction will strengthen crop protection, support 
farmers, and contribute to national food security.

Bangladesh continues to face serious challenges, 
but our team is adapting continuously. Through new 
initiatives and an unwavering commitment to 
farmers, we remain focused on improving 
productivity. By strengthening partnerships and 
maintaining market presence, ACI is building a 
more inclusive and sustainable agricultural 
ecosystem.

Together, we can create an agricultural sector that 
is more productive, resilient, safe, equitable, and 
better prepared for tomorrow’s challenges.



Financial Results
For the year ended 30 June 2025, total revenue of ACI Formulations PLC was 
Taka 5,170 million which was Taka 4,934 million for comparative year FY 
2023-24. Gross profit increased by 16.81% mainly due to the reduction of 
raw material prices. In the reported financial year, profit before tax (PBT) 
was Tk. 486 million and profit after tax (PAT) was Taka 401 million against 
Taka 421 million and Taka 323 million of FY 2023-24 respectively. This 
resulted Earnings per Share Taka 7.77 from Taka 6.84 of last year.

Key Operating & Financial Information at a Glance
The key operating and financial information for the year 2024-25 along with 
the preceding five years are presented below:

Taka in million  

  July 2024- July 2023- July 2022- July 2021- July 2020- July 2019-
 Particulars June 2025 June 2024 June 2023 June 2022 June 2021 June 2020
 Turnover (net)             5,170       4,934 4,958 4,246 3,863 3,422 
 Gross profit             1,665       1,426 1,315 1,217 1,126 1,065 
 Profit before tax                486         421 312 328 291 126 
 Profit after tax                367       323 235 243 213 92 
 Earnings per share (Taka) 7.77 6.84 4.98 5.14 4.51 2.05 
 Issued & paid capital 473 473 473 473 450 450 
 Shareowners' equity 3,567 3,260 3,055 3,117 3,009 2,407 
Net asset value per share (Taka) 75.49 69.00 64.66 65.97 63.69 53.48 
 Net operating cash flows
 per share (NOCFPS) (Taka) 0.58 14.73 0.23 7.22 12.78 14.85 

 Number of employees 994 1034 985 982 1,047 1,113 
 Total contribution to
 National Exchequer 523 519 469 418 343 244

Appropriation of Profit
Considering the financial results of the Company during the year and free 
reserve carried over and in line with following a consistent dividend policy, 
the Directors recommended appropriation of net profit as follows:

Figures in Taka 

 Particular For the year ended  For the year ended
    30 June 2025 30 June 2024
Un-appropriated profit         1,251,181,046 1,022,579,017 
Add: Net profit after tax            367,321,869 323,102,029 
Less: Remeasurement of defined benefit plan  - - 
Total profit available for appropriation         1,618,502,916  1,345,681,046 
Appropriation of profit:  

  Final Dividend Proposed:
   Cash Dividend  118,125,000 94,500,000 
   Stock Dividend - - 
Total Dividend           118,125,000          94,500,000 
Balance carried forward 1,500,377,916 1,251,181,046 

With the balance carried forward and with future ploughing back of the 
profit, Directors are confident that company will be able to maintain prudent 
dividend policy in coming years.
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Gross Profit Margin Profit A er Tax MarginGross Profit Margin Profit A er Tax Margin
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July 24-
June 25

Turnover
(Taka in Million)

Profit after Tax
(Taka in Million)

July-23
June-24

July-24
June-25

July-23
June-24

July-24
June-25

Turnover
(Taka in Million)

Profit after Tax
(Taka in Million)

5,1704,934 323
367

Appropriation of Profit
(Taka in Million)

Retained Earnings
Cash Dividend
Stock Dividend

July 19-
June 20

July 21-
June 22

July 22-
June 23

July 23-
June 24

July 20-
June 21

July 24-
June 25

1,023730 782 907 1,251 1,501

90
135

118
118

94.5

23

118



Dividend
The Board of Directors is pleased to recommend 
cash dividend @ 25% on face value of Tk. 10 per 
share (i.e. Taka 2.50 per share) for the year ended 
30 June 2025 to those shareowners whose names 
were appeared in the Share Register of Members of 
the Company or in the Depository list of CDBL on the 
Record Date which is 19 November 2025.

Contribution to The National Exchequer
For the year ended 30 June 2025, the company 
contributed Taka 523 million to the National Exchequer 
in the form of corporate tax, custom duty and Value 
Added Tax (VAT). This is equivalent to 10.12% of the 
Company's gross sales revenue for the year 2024-25.

Cost of Goods Sold and Profit Margins
For the year ended 30 June 2025, cost of goods sold 
was Taka 3,505 million (67.79% of net revenue) 
which was Taka 3,508 million (71.10% of net 
revenue) during the FY 2023-24, resulting a 
decrease of 3.31% cost due to favorable material 
cost variance in international market over FY 
2023-24. This has resulted to increase gross profit 
margin by 16.81% than last year. Gross profit 
margin was Taka 1,665 (32.21% of net revenue) 
during the year ended 30 June 2025 as against Taka 
1,426 (28.90% of net revenue) of FY 2023-24. 
Aligning with the positive movement of gross profit 
and other income led to register PAT 7.10% in FY 
2024-25 against 6.55% of FY 2023-24.

Related Party Transactions
All transactions with related parties are made on a 
commercial basis and the basis was the principle of 
"Armlength Transaction". Details of related party 
transaction are disclosed in the Note - 38 of the 
Financial Statements.

Disclosure For Significant Deviation
Despite macro-economic challenges, revenue of ACI 
Formulations PLC registered 4.80% growth during 
the reported financial year as reflected in Statement 
of Profit or Loss. During the reported financial year, 
gross margin was increased by 16.81% due to 
decreasing price in international market. During the 
reported financial year, Other income decreased by 
42% due to reduced dividend income and disposal of 
aged assets. Due to these collective outcomes, in 
the reported financial year, Profit Before Tax (PBT) 
was Taka 486 million and Profit After Tax (PAT) was 
Taka 401 million resulting in Earnings per Share for 
Taka 7.77. On the other hand, Net Operating Cash 
Flows Per Share (NOCFPS) decreased to Tk 0.58 due

to purchase raw materials price in the international 
market to ensure availability of products for the 
upcoming season.

Consolidation of Accounts
The financial statements of the subsidiary companies, 
Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd. and ACI AgroChem 
Limited have duly been consolidated with the financial 
statements of ACI Formulations PLC as per 
requirements of the Companies Act-1994, Bangladesh 
Securities and Exchange Commission's guidelines and 
in line with the International Accounting Standards 
(IASs)/IFRSs adopted by Bangladesh. However, 
separate reports including the audited financial 
statements, auditors’ and directors’ report for the 
subsidiary companies is provided at the respective 
section of this report.

Segment-wise performance
Segment-wise performance has been shown in 
Note-7(ii) of the notes to the accounts of the 
financial statements. 

Risk and Concern 
The Company is aware of the different risks 
associated with doing business and is prepared to 
counter those risks through systematic approach. 
However, business may be affected by risks and 
uncertainties presently not known to us or that we 
currently believe to be immaterial. Financial risks 
management has been disclosed in the Note - 35 of 
the Financial Statements.

Extraordinary Gain/Loss
No extra-ordinary gain or loss exists during the   
year as prescribed by the International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Utilization of Proceed (Public Issue) 
No proceed has been raised by the Company 
through public issue, right issue and any 
instruments during the year under review. And, the 
financial results of the Company have continued to 
grow as reflected in the annual financial statements 
of the Company.

Preparation and Fair Presentation of 
Financial Statements
The Financial statements prepared by the 
management of the Company present a true and fair 
view of Company's state of affairs, result of its 
operation and changes in equity and cash flows.

Annual Report 2024-2025 l Page 39



Page 40 l Annual Report 2024-2025

Books of Accounts
The books of accounts of the Company have been 
maintained in accordance with provisions of the 
Companies Act 1994. 

Accounting Policies
Appropriate accounting policies have been 
consistently applied in preparation of the Financial 
Statements and that the accounting estimates are 
based on reasonable and prudent judgment..

Application of IAS or IFRS to the 
Financial Statements
International Accounting Standards (IASs) and 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) 
have been followed in preparation of the financial 
statements.

Internal Control
Internal Control Policies in ACI Formulations (FL) is 
designed to ensure operational efficiency, reliable 
financial reporting and sound governance within and 
outside the Company. Accordingly, the Board of 
Directors of the Company is of the opinion that the 
system of Internal Control is sound in design and 
has been effectively implemented and monitored. 

Declaration/Certification of CEO & CFO
The declaration or certification by the Chief 
Executive Officer (CEO) and the Chief Financial 
Officer (CFO) to the Board of the Company as 
prescribed under the Codes of Corporate Governance 
issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 
Commission is disclosed in Annexure - IV of this 
report.

Management Discussion & Analysis
The discussion and analysis duly signed by the 
Managing Director of the Company presenting, 
among others, the detailed analysis of the company’s 
operations, financial position, performance, risk and 

concern, accounting policies & estimation to the 
financial statements any changes thereof have been 
disclosed in Annexure-III of this report.

Board of Directors
The Board of Directors of the Company consists of   
7 (seven) members including 2 (two) Independent 
Directors. The majority of members of the Board are 
non-executive. The list and details of Directors are 
available under the ‘Directors Profile’ of this report.

Re-election of Directors
By operation of Article 47 of the Company's Articles 
of Association Mr. M Anis Ud Dowla and Dr. A. K. M. 
Fareyzul Haque Ansarey retire by rotation at the  
29th AGM and being eligible, offer themselves for 
re-election. The brief resume along with required 
information of the re-elected Directors are available 
under the ‘Directors Profile’ of this report. 

Independent Director
In compliance with the Corporate Governance    
Code of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 
Commission (BSEC), the Board of Directors of the 
Company includes two Independent Directors,     
Ms. Nasreen Sattar and Mr. Golam Mainuddin.      
Ms. Nasreen Sattar is the Chairman of the Board of 
Audit Committee. The Independent Directors of the 
Company have been elected amongst the senior 
corporate leaders and bureaucrats of the country 
who are elite members of the society having 
requisite qualifications as prescribed by BSEC.

Appointment of Independent Director
The Board of Directors of the Company has 
appointed Ms. Nasreen Sattar as Independent 
Director of the Company for an initial tenure of three 
years with effect from 30 January 2025. Ms. Sattar 
has also been appointed as Chairman of the Board 
Audit Committee. The Board requested the 
shareholders to confirm the appointments at their 
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remuneration of Directors has been mentioned in 
Note-31 and Note-38(b) of the Financial Statements.

Shareholding Pattern
The pattern of shareholding as on 30 June 2025 of 
the Company as prescribed by the Code of 
Corporate Governance issued by the Bangladesh 
Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) is 
furnished in Annexure-II of this report. 

Minority Interest
The Board of Directors ensures that the Company 
operates within the limit of its charter supported by 
the laws and Codes of Corporate Governance with 
regard to the rights of its minority shareholders are 
protected from any direct or indirect abusive actions 
by, or in the interest of, the controlling shareholders. 
However, for contingency, there has been effective 
means of redress. 

Appointment of Auditors
The existing Auditors of the Company, M/s. Hoda 
Vasi Chowdhury & Co., Chartered Accountants, 
completed their audit works for the year ended on 
30 June 2025. They are eligible for re-appointment 
as per BSEC notification. M/s. Hoda Vasi Chowdhury 
& Co., Chartered Accountants, expressed their 
interest to be appointed as auditors of the Company 
for the FY 2025-2026 at a fee of Tk. 8,38,530/- plus 
VAT. Accordingly, Board recommends the appointment 
to the shareholders of the Company.

Corporate Governance Compliance 
Status
ACI Formulations PLC believes in sustainable 
business development through quality assurance, 
customer focus, innovation, fairness, transparency 
and compliance, and continuous improvement for 
enriching the quality of life of the people. However, 
the Board and management of the Company are 
committed to continuously strive for the highest 
standards and ethics in governance practices with a 
view to safeguarding the interest of its shareowners 
and innumerable stakeholders as well. In this 
connection, we are pleased to confirm that the 
Company has meanwhile complied with all the 
requirements under the Corporate Governance Code 
adopted by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 
Commission. The compliance checklist for the year 
ended 30 June 2025 in this regard is appended in 
Annexure – V of the Directors' Report. However, the 
Corporate Governance Compliance Certificate as 
provided by M/s. Al-Muqtadir Associates, Chartered 
Secretaries & Consultants, is also enclosed in 
Annexure-VI of this report.

29th Annual General Meeting. The brief resume along 
with required information of the Independent 
Director is available under the ‘Directors Profile’ of 
this report.

Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee (NRC)
In compliance with the Corporate Governance Code, 
the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting 
held on 28 October 2020 has constituted a 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee as a 
sub-committee of the Board. The Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee is formed with the 
following non-executives Directors:

Mr. Golam Mainuddin, Independent Director - Chairman
Ms. Nasreen Sattar, Independent Director - Member
Mr. Juned Ahmed Choudhury, Director - Member
Mr. Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman, Company Secretary - Secretary

A detailed Terms of Reference (ToR) and Policy of the 
NRC has also been approved by the Board

The terms of reference of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and Policy include, among 
other items, the determination of the Company's 
policy on unique remuneration for Executive 
Directors, the review, recommendation and/or 
approval of remuneration to Directors, the review 
and approval of the Company's remuneration   
policy, the creation of evaluation criteria for 
Independent Directors and the Board of Directors, 
identifying persons who are eligible to become 
Directors and who may be appointed to senior 
management in accordance with the criteria laid 
down and recommending the appointment or 
removal of such persons to the Board and 
discharging such other functions and exercising such 
other powers as the Board of Directors may 
delegate/direct from time to time. During the 
financial year 2024-2025 one (1) meeting of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) 
was conducted on 06 November 2024.

Board Meeting & Attendance
During the financial year 2024-25, a total number of 
4 (four) meetings of the Board of Directors were 
held to transact Company’s affairs. The Attendance 
record of the Directors are furnished in Annexure-I 
of this report.

Remuneration to Directors
During the year, the Company has paid a total of 
BDT 15,000/- as meeting attendance fees. The 



and Innovation. These guiding principles empower our 
people to work with confidence, foster collaboration, 
and embrace a spirit of co-creation. Throughout the 
year, we actively promote these values through various 
initiatives to help employees internalize our philosophy.

As industries evolve through advancements in data and 
technology, ACI remains committed to preparing its 
workforce for the future. We deliver comprehensive 
learning and development programs through both 
digital platforms and in-person training. Upskilling 
opportunities are further strengthened by online 
courses, network-based workshops, knowledge-sharing 
initiatives, and curated learning resources—ensuring 
our team stays agile, future-ready, and positioned for 
success.

Acknowledgements
The Board of Directors firmly believes that ACI 
Formulations PLC has the necessary strengths, 
resources and commitments to further propel the 
Company to newer heights. The performance of the 
Company during the period under review, even with so 
many challenges confronted, demonstrates the 
resolves and determination of the Board, Management 
and overall the peoples in the Company. At this 
occasion, the Board expresses on record their 
appreciation to the partners of ACI Formulations PLC, 
shareowners, suppliers, customers, bankers, 
regulators, media and all other well-wishers for their 
support and patronage to bring the company to this 
level. We value their continued support to fulfill our 
mission to improve the lives of people.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we thank all         
the employees of ACI Formulations for their hard work 
and dedication to overcome the adversities and 
uncertainties to create a positive impact on the quality 
of life of the people. 

Going Concern
The Board is of the opinion that the Company is indeed 
a going concern. This is recognized through 
appropriate enquiries and analyses, which establishes 
that the resources are adequate to support the 
operations and that sufficient business opportunities 
exist to justify the organization as a going concern and 
the Directors analyze the financial statements 
accordingly to ensure that. Accordingly, the Financial 
Statements are prepared on a going concern basis and 
there is no doubt, whatsoever, upon the Company's 
ability to continue as going concern.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
CSR is a central function of ACI FL and the projects 
and programs under CSR are selected on basis of their 
relevance to the business objectives of the Company. 
We are conscious of our responsibility to manage a 
sustainable business organization which requires a 
strong team to manage CSR and at the same time 
respect the social aspirations concerning us. 

The People of ACI FL
At ACI FL, our greatest strength lies in our dedicated 
and highly skilled workforce. The exceptional quality of 
our human capital sets us apart, with every employee 
playing a crucial role in achieving our goals. We 
recognize our dynamic team as the driving force behind 
our success and sustained growth.

Our priority is to foster a workplace culture that is open, 
inclusive, and adaptable. We ensure that every 
individual understands their responsibilities to both the 
Company and the wider community. To nurture diverse 
talent, we emphasize innovation, inclusivity, leadership, 
and fairness and equitable treatment for all employees.

Since its inception, ACI Formulations has been guided 
by a strong set of values: Transparency, Fairness, 
Customer Focus, Quality, Continuous Improvement, 

Dhaka, 28 October 2025
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On behalf of the Board

Shusmita Anis
Managing Director Golam Mainuddin

Independent Director
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Annexure-I
Number of Board Meetings and Attendance of Directors

Annexure-IIAnnexure-II
Pattern of Shareholding

As per condition no. 1 (5) (xxiii) of the Corporate Governance Code 2018 issued by Bangladesh Securities 
and Exchange Commission, the pattern of shareholding along with name wise details as on 30 June 2025 
are as follows:

Condition no. Name of Shareholders Position No. of Shares held % of Shares held

1(5) (xxiii) (a) Parent/Subsidiary/Associated Companies and other related parties

  Advanced Chemical Industries PLC N/A 25,269,409 53.48%
1(5) (xxiii) (b) Directors:
 Mr. M Anis Ud Dowla Chairman 4,730,906 10.01%
 Dr. A.K.M Fareyzul Haque Ansarey Director 1,185,975 2.51%
 Advanced Chemical Industries PLC, 
 Represented By, N/A 25,269,409 53.48%
       Dr. Arif Dowla Director 4,253 0.009%
    Ms. Shusmita Anis Director 3,071 0.006%
   Mr. Juned Ahmed Choudhury Director                   - -   
 Mr. Golam Mainuddin Independent Director                   - -   
 Ms. Nasreen Sattar Independent Director                   -                   -  

Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, Head of Internal Audit and Compliance:
 Ms. Shusmita Anis Chief Executive Officer 3,071 0.006%
 Mr. Md. Monir Hossain Khan Chief Financial Officer                   -               -   
 Mr. Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman Company Secretary                   -              -   
 Mr. Amitava Saha Head of Internal Audit                   -              -   
1(5) (xxiii) (c) Executives (Other than Directors, CEO, CS, CFO and Head of Internal Audit and Compliance):
 - - - -   
1(5) (xxiii) (d) Shareholders holding 10% or more voting interest in the Company:

 Advanced Chemical Industries PLC Parent Company 25,269,409 53.48%

 Mr. M Anis Ud Dowla Chairman 4,730,906 10.01%

As per condition no. 1 (5) (xxii) of the Corporate Governance Code 2018 issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 
Commission, the number of Board Meetings held and the Attendance by each Director during the Financial Year 
2024-2025 are as follows:

Name Position Meeting Held Meeting Attended Remarks

Mr. M Anis Ud Dowla Chairman 4 2 -
Dr. Arif Dowla Director 4 4 -
Dr. A.K.M. Fareyzul Haque Ansarey Director 4 4 -
Mr. Golam Mainuddin Independent Director 4 4 -

Mr. Abdul-Muyeed Chowdhury Independent Director 4 1 Expired tenure on
     23-10-2024

Ms. Nasreen Sattar Independent Director 4 1 Appointed on
     30-01-2025

Mr. Juned Ahmed Choudhury Director 4 4 -
Ms. Shusmita Anis Managing Director 4 4 -
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• The Board granted leave of absence to the members who were unable to attend Board meetings as per laws.



Annexure-III
Management Discussion and Analysis

As per condition no. 1 (5) (xxv) of the Corporate Governance Code 2018 issued by Bangladesh Securities 
and Exchange Commission, the Management’s Discussion & Analysis are as follows:

Accounting policies and estimation for preparation of financial statements
The Company follows International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and International Accounting 
Standards (IASs) along with local regulations applicable for preparation of financial statements. Detail 
description of accounting policies and estimation used for preparation of the financial statements of the 
Company are disclosed in the notes 4 and 6 to the financial statements.

Changes in accounting policies and estimation
The Company has been following consistent policies and estimation. There are no such changes in 
accounting policies or estimation which has material impact on financial statements.

Comparative analysis of financial performance and financial position as well as 
cash flows for current financial year with immediately preceding five years
Major areas of financial performances and financial position as well as cash flows for the financial year 
2024-25 with immediate preceding five years are as follows

Figures in million except ratios and percentage (BDT)
  
 Particulars  

July 19- July 20- July 21- July 22- July 23- July 24-
 June 20 June 21  June 22 June 23 June 24 June 25
 Net Turnover 3,422 3,863 4,246 4,958    4,934 5,170
 Gross profit 1,065 1,126 1,217 1,315    1,426 1,665
 Profit before tax 126 290 328 312     421 486
 Profit after tax 92 213 243 235    323 367
 Earnings per share (Taka) 2.05 4.51 5.14 4.98 6.84 7.77
 EBITDA 416 479 515 576 701 825
 Issued & paid capital 450 450 473 473 473 473
 Shareowners' equity 2,407 3,009 3,117 3,055 3,260 3,567
 Net asset value (NAV) per share (Taka)     53.48     63.69 65.97 64.66 69.00 75.49

 Net operating cash flows per 
 share (NOCFPS) (Taka) 14.85 12.78 7.22 0.23 14.73 0.58

Despite macro-economic challenges, the Company was able to maintain a consistent growth in the bottom 
line over despite similar top line of the analyzed periods as depicted in the analysis enumerated above. 
Price negotiation from international market had some impact on the overall profitability of the Company. 

Comparison of financial performances and financial position as well as cash flows 
with peer industry scenario
The Company is diversified business conglomerate having several businesses in different sectors. 
Accordingly, the company has no such peer company to draw a reasonable comparison.

Explanation of the financial and economic scenario of the country and the globe
The global economy demonstrated modest resilience during FY2024–25, with growth remaining around 3%. 
Despite trade tensions, geopolitical risks, and inflation divergence, fiscal expansion and easing financial 
conditions supported recovery. Notably, the global economy absorbed US trade policy shocks better than 
expected, according to the IMF. Additionally, the global AI boom contributed positively to productivity and 
investment, with private AI investment rising significantly and adoption expanding across industries.
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Bangladesh navigated a challenging year marked by political transition and widespread flooding. These 
factors affected agriculture, industry, and services, resulting in a provisional GDP growth of 3.97% 
compared to the previous year’s 4.22%. Inflation reached its highest level in over a decade, averaging 
10.03%, with food inflation at 10.70% and non-food inflation at 9.47%. Rising import costs, energy prices, 
and currency depreciation squeezed business margins and reduced consumer purchasing power. Although 
inflation eased slightly toward year-end, its impact on enterprises remained significant. Energy price 
adjustments were significant. Industrial gas tariffs rose by 33%, and electricity prices increased by 8.5% at 
the retail level. These hikes, coupled with limited domestic gas exploration, strained industrial 
competitiveness and added inflationary pressure.

Despite these headwinds, the external sector showed cautious recovery. Exports grew by 9.5% between 
July and March, led by the RMG sector. Foreign exchange reserves improved to $26.7 billion by June 2025, 
supported by strong remittance inflows and external financing. The exchange rate of the Bangladeshi Taka 
depreciated moderately, but the FX market remained more stable than the previous year.

Looking ahead, Bangladesh enters the next fiscal period with cautious optimism. Key priorities include 
stabilizing inflation, enhancing energy security, and boosting investor confidence. The upcoming budget and 
on-going reforms are expected to strengthen fiscal discipline and support structural improvements. 
Opportunities lie in export diversification, digital transformation, and remittance growth. With coordinated 
policy efforts and resilience across sectors, Bangladesh is well-positioned to navigate challenges and build 
momentum toward sustainable growth.

Risk and concerns issues related to the financial statements, explaining such risk 
and concerns mitigation plan of the company
The Company has exposure to the Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk and Market Risk arising from the financial 
statements. The detail explanation of risk and concerns along with the Risk Management Framework are 
explained in the note 35 to the financial statements published in this annual report.

The Company has taken sufficient steps and controls effectively consistently round the year to mitigate the 
risk and concerns.

Future plan for company’s operation, performances and financial position
The Company has taken all sorts feasible plans, strategy and vision to continue the operations of the 
company for foreseeable future. This is relevant to share that company maintains a periodic action plans 
along with mid-term and long-term strategies to maintain the sustainability in its performances and 
financial position. 
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Annexure-IV
[As per condition No. 1(5) (xxvi)]
DECLARATION BY CEO AND CFO

Date: 28 October 2025

The Board of Directors
ACI Formulations PLC

Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on 30 June 2025.

Dear Sir,

Pursuant to the condition No. 1(5) (xxvi) imposed vide the Commission’s Notification No. 
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, Dated 3 June, 2018 under section 2CC of the Securities and 
Exchange Ordinance, 1969, we do hereby declare that:

(1) The Financial Statements of ACI Formulations PLC. for the year ended on 30 June 2025 have been 
prepared in  compliance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in the Bangladesh and any departure there from has been 
adequately disclosed;

(2) The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and 
reasonable basis, in order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view;

(3) The form and substance of transactions and the Company’s state of affairs have been reasonably and 
fairly presented in its financial statements;

(4) To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of internal 
control and maintenance of accounting records;

(5) Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the 
established policies and procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and

(6) The management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements 
is appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In this regard, we also certify that: 

i. We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 30 June 2025 and that to the best of 
our knowledge and belief:

a) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 
contain statements that might be misleading; 

b) These statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws.

ii. There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during   
the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the company’s Board of 
Directors or its members.

Sincerely yours,

Shusmita Anis
Managing Director

Md. Monir Hossain Khan
Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
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[As per condition No. 1(5) (xxvii)]

Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Commission’s Notification No. 
SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3 June 2018

(Report under Condition No. 9)

Contd.

Annexure-V
Status of Compliance 2024-25 with the Corporate Governance Code (CGC)

1(1) The number of Board members shall not be less than 5 (five) and more than 20 
(twenty);

1(2)(a) At least one-fifth (1/5) of the total number of directors shall be Independent 
Directors (ID);

1(2)(b)(i) IDs do not hold any share or holds less than 1% shares of the total paid-up 
shares of the Company;

1(2)(b)(ii) ID is not a sponsor and not connected with any sponsor or director or 
nominated director or shareholder or any of its associates, sister concerns, 
subsidiaries and parents or holding entities who holds one percent (1%) or 
more shares of the total paid-up shares and his or her family members shall not 
hold above mentioned shares;

1(2)(b)(iii) ID has not been an executive of the company in immediately preceding two 
financial years;

1(2)(b)(iv) ID does not have any pecuniary or otherwise relationship with the company or 
its subsidiary/associated companies;

1(2)(b)(v) ID is not a member or TREC holder, director or officer of any stock exchange;
1(2)(b)(vi) ID is not a shareholder, director excepting independent director or officer of any 

member or TREC holder of stock exchange or an intermediary of the capital 
market;

1(2)(b)(vii) ID is/was not a partner or an executive of company’s audit firms engaged in 
Statutory Audit or Internal Audit or Special Audit or Compliance Certification of 
the Codes during preceding three years;

1(2)(b)(viii) ID shall not be independent director in more than five listed companies;
1(2)(b)(ix) ID has not been convicted by a court of competent jurisdiction as a defaulter in 

payment of any loan or any advance to a bank or NBFI;
1(2)(b)(x) ID has not been convicted for a criminal offence involving moral turpitude;
1(2)(c) Appointment of ID shall be done by Board and approved by shareholders in the 

AGM;
1(2)(d) The position of IDs cannot remain vacant for more than ninety days.
1(2)(e) The tenure of office of an ID shall be for Three years, which may be extended 

for One tenure only
1(3)(a) ID shall be a knowledgeable individual with integrity who is able to ensure 

compliance with financial, corporate laws, regulatory requirements and can 
make meaningful contribution to the business;

1(3)(b)(i) ID is a Business Leader who is/was a promoter or director of an unlisted 
company having minimum paid-up capital of One Hundred million or any listed 
company or a member of any national or international chamber of commerce or 
business association

1(3)(b)(ii) ID is/was a Corporate Leader as top level executive as adopted by the code and 
a candidate with equivalent position of an unlisted company having minimum 
paid up capital of Tk. 100.00 million or of a listed company;

1(3)(b)(iii) ID was Former official of government in the position not below 5th Grade of the 
national pay scale and educational background of bachelor degree in economics 
or commerce or business or law;

1(3)(b)(iv) ID is/was University Teacher who has educational background in Economics or 
Commerce or Business Studies or Law;

1(3)(b)(v) ID is/was a professional or an advocate practicing in the HCD of Bangladesh 
Supreme Court or a CA,CMA, CFA, CCA, CPA and CS or equivalent qualification;

1(3)(c) The ID shall have at least Ten years of experiences in any field mentioned in 
clause (b);

1(3)(d) Special cases for relaxing qualifications or experiences with prior approval of 
the Commission.

Condition
No Title Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

There are 7 
Directors 

Two IDs in
the Board

As declared
by the IDs

Appointed at 
AGM

As declared
by the IDs

As declared
by the IDs

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

No such case

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

–

–

–

–

–

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

N/A

N/A

Complied

Status
Not-

Complied
Remarks
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Condition
No Title

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied
Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

1(4)(a) Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the companies is 
different individuals having clearly defined their respective roles and 
responsibilities by Board.

1(4)(b) This MD and CEO of a listed Company shall not hold the same position in 
another listed Company.

1(4)(c) Chairperson elected from among the non-executive directors of the company;

1(4)(d) The Board clearly defined respective roles for Chairman and the Managing 
Director;

1(4)(e) In absence of Chairman, the remaining members may elect one from 
non-executive directors as Chairperson for that particular Board’s meeting;

1(5)(i) An industry outlook and possible future developments;

1(5)(ii) Segment-wise or product-wise performance.
1(5)(iii) Risks and concerns including internal and external risk factors, threat to 

sustainability and negative impact on environment, if any;
1(5)(iv) A discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Profit Margin and Net Profit Margin, 

where applicable;
1(5)(v) A discussion on continuity of any extraordinary activities and their implications 

(gain or loss);
1(5)(vi) A detailed discussion and statement on related party transactions;
1(5)(vii) A statement of utilization of proceeds raised through public issues, rights issues 

and/or any other instruments;
1(5)(viii) An explanation if the financial results deteriorate after the company goes for 

Initial Public Offering (IPO), Repeat Public Offering (RPO), Rights Share Offer, 
Direct Listing, etc.;

1(5)(ix) An explanation on any significant variance between Quarterly Financial 
performances and Annual Financial Statements;

1(5)(x) A statement of Directors remuneration;
1(5)(xi) A statement on fair preparation of the financial statements by the management 

of the issuer company;
1(5)(xii) A statement that proper books of account of the issuer company have been 

maintained;
1(5)(xiii) A statement that appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied 

in the financial statements and that the accounting estimates are based on 
reasonable and prudent judgment;

1(5)(xiv) IAS / BAS / IFRS / BFRS, as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in 
preparation of the financial statements and any departure there-from has been 
adequately disclosed.

1(5)(xv) A statement that the system of internal control is sound in design and has been 
effectively implemented and monitored;

1(5)(xvi) A statement with regard to the protection of minority shareholders from 
abusive actions of controlling shareholders.

1(5)(xvii) A statement that there is no significant doubt upon the issuer company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern;

1(5)(xviii) An explanation that significant deviations from the last year’s operating results 
of the issuer company shall be highlighted and the reasons thereof shall be 
explained;

1(5)(xix) Key operating and financial data of at least preceding 5 (five) years shall be 
summarized;

1(5)(xx) An explanation on the reasons if the issuer company has not declared dividend 
(cash or stock) for the year;

1(5)(xxi) Board’s statement to the effect that no bonus share or stock dividend has been 
or shall be declared as interim dividend;

1(5)(xxii) The total number of Board meetings held during the year and attendance by 
each director;

1(5)(xxiii)(a) Parent / Subsidiary / Associated Companies and other related parties (name 
wise details); (i.e. Patterns of Shareholdings)

1(5)(xxiii)(b) Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, 
Head of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children (name wise details);

1(5)(xxiii)(c) Executives;

Complied

Status
Not-

Complied
Remarks

They are
different 

individuals

Compliance 
Declared

Dividend
declared
Stated in the 

Directors’ Report

No such case
in the year
Stated in the 

Directors’ Report

He is a 
non-executive 

director

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

–

–
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Contd.

1(5)(xxiii)(d) Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting interest in the 
company (name wise details).

1(5)(xxiv)(a) A brief resume of the director;
1(5)(xxiv)(b) Nature of expertise in specific functional areas;
1(5)(xxiv)(c) Names of companies in which the person also holds the directorship and 

membership of board committees;
 A Management’s Discussion and Analysis signed by CEO or MD
1(5)(xxv)(a) Presenting detailed analysis of accounting policies and estimation for 

preparation of financial statements;
1(5)(xxv)(b) Presenting detailed analysis of changes in accounting policies and estimation, if 

any;
1(5)(xxv)(c) Presenting detailed analysis of comparative analysis (including effects of 

inflation) of financial performance or results and financial position as well as 
cash flows for current financial year with immediate preceding five years 
explaining reasons thereof;

1(5)(xxv)(d) Presenting detailed analysis of compare such financial performance or results 
and financial position as well as cash flows with the peer industry scenario;

1(5)(xxv)(e) Presenting detailed analysis of briefly explain the financial and economic 
scenario of the country and the globe;

1(5)(xxv)(f) Presenting detailed analysis of risks and concerns issues related to the financial 
statements, explaining such risk and concerns mitigation plan of the company;

1(5)(xxv)(g) Presenting detailed analysis of future plan or projection or forecast for 
company’s operation, performance and financial position, with justification 
thereof, i.e., actual position shall be explained to the shareholders in the next 
AGM;

1(5)(xxvi) Declaration or certification by the CEO and the CFO to the Board as required 
under condition No. 3(3) disclosed as per Annexure-A;

1(5)(xxvii) The report and compliance certificate disclosed as per Annexure-B and 
Annexure-C;

1(6) Conducting Board meetings and recording the minutes of the meetings and 
keeping required books and records in line BSS as adopted by the ICSB;

1(7)(a) Code of conduct, based on the recommendation of the NRC for the Chairman of 
the Board, other board members and Managing Director of the company;

1(7)(b) Code of conduct as determined by the NRC shall be posted on the website of 
the company;

2(a) Composition of the Board of the subsidiary company;
2(b) Independent director of the holding company on the Board of the subsidiary 

company;

2(c) Review of minutes of the subsidiary company’s Board meeting by the holding 
company’s Board;

2(d) The minutes of respective Board meeting of the holding company shall state 
that they have reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary company

2(e) Review of financial statements of Subsidiary company by the Audit Committee 
of the holding company;

3(1)(a) The Board shall appoint a MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC;
3(1)(b) The positions of the MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC shall be filled by different 

individuals;

3(1)(c) The MD or CEO and HIAC of a listed company shall not hold any executive 
position in any other company at the same time;

3(1)(d) Respective roles, responsibilities and duties of the CFO, the HIAC and the CS;

3(1)(e) Removal of the MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC with approval of the Board and 
immediate dissemination to BSEC and stock exchange(s);

3(2) The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of the company shall attend the meetings of 
the Board;

3(3)(a)(i) Certification of CEO and CFO as to the review of financial statements with 
declaration that there is no materially untrue and misleading statement;

3(3)(a)(ii) Certification of CEO and CFO as to the true and fair view of the financial 
statements and affairs of the Company’s per applicable laws;

Condition
No Title

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Partially
Complied

_

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Status
Not-

Complied
Remarks

They are different 
individuals

Separate HIAC 
to be appointed 

soon

No such case in 
the reporting year

Given in the 
Directors’ Report

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -
- do -

In practice
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Condition
No Title

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied
Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied
Complied
Complied
Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

3(3)(b) Certification of CEO and CFO that to the best of their knowledge and belief 
there was no fraudulent, illegal transactions during the year;

3(3)(c) The certification of the MD or CEO and CFO shall be disclosed in the Annual 
Report

4(i) Board Audit Committee (BAC)
4(ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee
5(1)(a) BAC as a sub-committee of the Board;

5(1)(b) BAC shall assist the Board of Directors as to the the financial statements reflect 
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company;

5(1)(c) BAC is responsible to the Board. The duties of the BAC is clearly set forth in writing.

5(2)(a) BAC is composed of 3 (three) members.

5(2)(b) The Board appointed members of BAC who are non-executive directors and 
Chairperson is an ID.

5(2)(c) All members of BAC are “financially literate” and 1 (one) member have 
accounting or related financial management background and 10 (ten) years of 
such experience;

5(2)(d) Filling of casual vacancy in the BAC.
5(2)(e) The CS shall act as the Secretary of the Committee.
5(2)(f) The quorum of the BAC meeting have not constitute without ID
5(3)(a) The Board of Directors select 1 (one) ID as the Chairman of BAC;
5(3)(b) Election of Chairman of the particular meeting in absence of regular 

Chairperson of BAC recording the reasons of such absence in the minutes.
5(3)(c) Chairman of the BAC shall remain present in the AGM.

5(4)(a) BAC conducted four meetings in the financial year:

5(4)(b) The quorum of the meeting of BAC constituted in presence of either two 
members including ID or two third of the members , whichever was higher;

5(5)(a) Oversee the financial reporting process.

5(5)(b) Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles.
5(5)(c) Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that it is adequately 

resourced;
5(5)(d) Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors;
5(5)(e) Hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for review of the annual 

financial statements before submission to the Board for approval or adoption;
5(5)(f) Review with the management, the annual financial statements before 

submission to the Board for approval;
5(5)(g) Review with the management, the quarterly and half yearly financial 

statements before submission to the Board for approval
5(5)(h) Review the adequacy of internal audit function;
5(5)(i) Review the Management’s Discussion and Analysis before disclosing in the 

Annual Report;
5(5)(j) Review statement of all related party transactions submitted by the 

management;
5(5)(k) Review Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control weakness issued by 

statutory auditors;
5(5)(l) Oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and magnitude, level of 

expertise deployed and time required for effective audit and evaluate the 
performance of external auditors;

5(5)(m) Oversee whether the proceeds raised IPO or RPO or Rights Share Offer have 
been utilized per the purposes stated in relevant offer document or prospectus 
approved by the Commission;

5(6)(a)(i) The BAC shall report on its activities to the Board.
5(6)(a)(ii)(a) The BAC shall immediately report to the Board if any report on conflicts of 

interests
5(6)(a)(ii)(b) The BAC shall immediately report to the Board if any suspected or presumed 

fraud or irregularity or material defect identified in the internal audit and 
compliance process or in the financial statements;

There are 3 
members

The AC 
functioned as 
per CG Code

No such case
in the year

No such case
in the year

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -
- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

4 meetings 
held

Performed as 
per BSEC 
Guideline

In practice

In practice

–

–

–

–

Complied

Status
Not-

Complied
Remarks

N/A

Page 56 l Annual Report 2024-2025



Contd.

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied
Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

5(6)(a)(ii)(c) The BAC shall immediately report to the Board if any suspected infringement of 
laws, regulatory compliances including securities related laws, rules and regulations

5(6)(a)(ii)(d) The BAC shall immediately report to the Board if any other matter which the 
Audit Committee deems necessary.

5(6)(b) If any material impact on the financial condition and results of operation, 
unreasonably ignored by the management

5(7)  Reporting to the Shareholders and General Investors

6(1)(a) Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) as a sub-committee of the Board;
6(1)(b) The NRC shall assist the Board in formulation of the nomination criteria or 

policy for determining qualifications, positive attributes, experiences and 
independence of directors and top level executive as well as a policy for formal 
process of considering remuneration of directors, top level executive;

6(1)(c) ToR of the NRC shall be clearly set forth in writing covering the areas stated at 
the condition No. 6(5) (b).

6(2)(a) The Committee shall comprise of at least three members including an 
independent director;

6(2)(b) All members of the Committee shall be non-executive directors.
6(2)(c) Members of the Committee shall be nominated and appointed by the Board
6(2)(d) The Board shall have authority to remove and appoint any member of the Committee
6(2)(e) In case of death, resignation, disqualification, or removal of any member of the 

Committee or in any other cases of vacancies, the board shall fill the vacancy 
within 180 (one hundred eighty) days of occurring such vacancy in the Committee;

6(2)(f) The Chairperson of the Committee may appoint or co-opt any external expert 
and/or member(s) of staff to the Committee as advisor who shall be non-voting 
member, if the Chairperson feels that advice or suggestion from such external 
expert and/or member(s) of staff shall be required or valuable for the Committee;

6(2)(g) The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee.
6(2)(h) The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not constitute without attendance of at 

least an independent director
6(2)(i) No member of the NRC shall receive, either directly or indirectly, any 

remuneration for any advisory or consultancy role or otherwise, other than 
Director’s fees or honorarium from the company

6(3)(a) The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the NRC to be Chairperson of the 
Committee, who shall be an independent director

6(3)(b) In the absence of the Chairperson of the NRC, the remaining members may 
elect one of themselves as Chairperson for that particular meeting, the reason 
of absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes

6(3)(c) The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the annual general meeting (AGM) to 
answer the queries of the shareholders

6(4)(a) The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting in a financial year.
6(4)(b) The Chairperson of the NRC may convene any emergency meeting upon 

request by any member of the NRC
6(4)(c) The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall be constituted in presence of 

either two members or two third of the members of the Committee, whichever 
is higher, where presence of an independent director is must as required under 
condition No. 6(2)(h);

6(4)(d) The proceedings of each meeting of the NRC shall duly be recorded in the 
minutes and such minutes shall be confirmed in the next meeting of the NRC;

6(5)(a) NRC shall be independent and responsible or accountable to the Board and to 
the shareholders;

6(5)(b)(i)(a) NRC shall oversee, formulate & recommend to the Board regarding the level 
and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain 
and motivate suitable directors to run the company successfully;

6(5)(b)(i)(b) NRC shall oversee, formulate & recommend to the Board regarding the 
relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate 
performance benchmarks;

6(5)(b)(i)(c) NRC shall oversee, formulate & recommend to the Board regarding 
remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a balance between fixed 
and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives 
appropriate to the working of the company and its goals; 

Condition
No Title

Complied

Report of AC 
given in the 

AR

No such case 
in the 

reporting year

Practiced as 
per the CG 

Codes

No such case
in the year

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

In practice

In practice

Complied

–

–

–

Complied

Status
Not-

Complied
Remarks

–

–

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -
- do -

- do -

–

Performed as 
per BSEC 
Guideline
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Condition
No Title

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied
Complied
Complied
Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

Complied

6(5)(b)(ii) NRC shall oversee & make report with recommendation to the Board regarding 
devising a policy on Board’s diversity taking into consideration age, gender, 
experience, ethnicity, educational background and nationality;

6(5)(b)(iii) NRC shall oversee & make report with recommendation to the Board regarding 
identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be 
appointed in top level executive position in accordance with the criteria laid 
down, and recommend their appointment and removal to the Board;

6(5)(b)(iv) NRC shall oversee & make report with recommendation to the Board regarding 
formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors 
and the Board;

6(5)(b)(v) NRC shall oversee & make report with recommendation to the Board regarding 
identifying the company’s needs for employees at different levels and determine 
their selection, transfer or replacement and promotion criteria;

6(5)(b)(vi) NRC shall oversee & make report with recommendation to the Board regarding 
developing, recommending and reviewing annually the company’s human 
resources and training policies;

6(5)(c) The company shall disclose the nomination and remuneration policy and the 
evaluation criteria and activities of NRC during the year at a glance in its annual 
report;

 The issuer Company shall not engage its external or statutory auditors
7(1)(i) - to perform the appraisal or valuation services or fairness opinions of the 

company.
7(1)(ii) - to perform the financial information systems design and implementation of 

the company.
7(1)(iii) - to perform book-keeping or other services related to the accounting records 

or financial statements of the company.
7(1)(iv) - to perform broker-dealer services of the company.
7(1)(v) - to perform actuarial services of the company.
7(1)(vi) - to perform internal audit services or special audit services of the company.
7(1)(vii) - to perform any service that the Audit Committee determines of the company.
7(1)(viii) - to perform audit or certification services on compliance of corporate 

governance as required under condition No. 9(1) of the company.
7(1)(ix) - to perform any other service that creates conflict of interest of the company.
7(2) No partner or employees of the external audit firms shall possess any share of 

the company they audit at least during the tenure of their audit assignment of 
that company; his or her family members also shall not hold any shares in the 
said company;

7(3) Representative of external or statutory auditors shall remain present in the 
Shareholders’ Meeting (Annual General Meeting or Extraordinary General 
Meeting) to answer the queries of the shareholders;

8(1) The company shall have an official website linked with the website of the stock 
exchange;

8(2) The company shall keep the website functional from the date of listing;
8(3) The company shall make available the detailed disclosures on its website as 

required under the listing regulations of the concerned stock exchange(s) ;
9(1) Compliance Audit certification and its disclosure in the Annual Report;
9(2) Compliance certification professional shall be appointed by the shareholders in 

the AGM;
9(3) The directors of the company shall state, in accordance with the Annexure-C 

attached, in the directors’ report whether the company has complied with these 
conditions or not;

Complied

Status
Not-

Complied
Remarks

Given in
the Annual 

Report

Given in
the Annual

Report

As declared
by Auditors

Appointed
at AGM

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -
- do -
- do -
- do -

- do -

- do -

- do -

Given in AR
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Annexure-VI

Business Office 
House # 406, Apartment -6
Road: 8, Block - D
Bashundhara R/A, Dhaka-1229
Bangladesh 

Phones : 01730 340 340
e-mail : muqtadir@muqtadirbd.com
g-mail : akamuqtadir@gmail.com
VAT Reg : 1904l063900
BIN No : 000179575-0202 

Chartered Secretaries & Consultants
Al-Muqtadir Associates

Report to the Shareholders of ACI Formulations PLC
 on compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

[As required under code 1(5) (xxvii) of the BSEC Code of Corporate Governance]

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code by ACI Formulations PLC  
for the year ended on 30th June 2025. This code relates to the gazette notification no: 
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated the 3rd June 2018 (as amended) of Bangladesh Securities 
and Exchange Commission (BSEC).

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the Company. Our 
examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the Management in 
ensuring compliance to the conditions of Corporate Governance Code. This is a scrutiny and verification 
and an independent audit on compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as well as provisions 
of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered 
Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those standards are not inconsistent with any condition of 
the Corporate Governance Code.

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations or representations, which we have 
required, and after due scrutiny and verification thereof, we report that in our opinion and subject to the 
remarks and observations as reported in the connected Compliance Statement :

(a) The Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above 
mentioned Corporate Governance Code issued by the Commission, with the exception of code 
3(1)(c) where separate HIAC for the Company was still to be appointed.

(b) The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards 
(BSS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) as required by 
this Code.

(c) Proper books and records have been kept by the Company as required under the Companies Act 
1994, the securities laws and other relevant laws, and

(d) The standard of governance in the Company is satisfactory.

This report, however, is no endorsement about quality of contents in the Annual Report of the Company 
for the year 2024-25.

Dhaka, November 16, 2025

Al-Muqtadir Associates
Chartered Secretaries & Consultants

A.K.A. Muqtadir FCS
CEO & Chief Consultant
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Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ACI Formulations PLC and its subsidiaries (the "Group") as 
well as the separate financial statements of ACI Formulations PLC (the "Company"), which comprise the 
consolidated and separate statements of financial position as at 30 June 2025, and the consolidated and separate 
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated and separate statements of changes in 
equity and consolidated and separate statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
consolidated and separate financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements give true and fair view of the 
consolidated financial position of the Group and the separate financial position of the Company as at 30 June 2025, 
and of its consolidated and separate financial performance and its consolidated and separate cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and Company in accordance with the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), 
and Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC), and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the IESBA Code and the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) Bye Laws. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context 
of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
Key audit matters for the audit of consolidated and separate financial statements are as under:

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of ACI Formulations PLC

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
Chartered Accountants

National Office : BTMC Bhaban (6th & 7th Floor), 7-9 Karwan Bazar Commercial Area, Dhaka-1215, Bangladesh
Chattogram Office : Delwar Bhaban (4th Floor), 104 Agrabad Commercial Area, Chattogram-4100, Bangladesh

 Key areas Our responses

Carrying value (CV) of Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and its impairment

The items of PPE include the Group's and the 
Company's long-term assets, which flow 
economic benefits to the entities more than 
one year. Items of PPE is measured at cost or 
revaluation less accumulated depreciation. 
The items of PPE excluding leased assets and 
under-construction assets were revalued by 
the professional valuer in 2021 and also in 
2025 the land was revalued by the 
professional valuer on the basis of applicable 
methods. The carrying value of PPE 
represents significant portion of total assets, 
which is amounting to Tk 2,662 million 
(approximately) and Tk 2,662 (approximately) 
million respectively for the Company and the 
Group at the reporting date. In other words, 
for both the Company and the Group, 
approximately 31% of total assets are 
represented by PPE.

We have tested the design and operating effectiveness of key 
controls over PPE. Our audit procedures included, among 
others, considering the impairment risk of the assets.
Followings are our audit procedures on the carrying value and 
impairment risk of PPE:

• Reviewing basis of recognition, measurement and valuation 
of PPE;

• Performing due physical asset verification on sample basis at 
the year-end;

• Observing and reviewing procedures of PPE items acquisition, 
depreciation and disposal;

• Checking ownership of the major assets;
• Reviewing the capitalization criteria for recording the assets 

under the head of Capital-Work-in-Progress (CWIP) and its 
transfer to PPE as well as capital expenditure commitment;

• Reviewing the valuation report including the valuation 
methods applied and assumptions used to determine the fair 
value of land; 

Page 1 of 6
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 Key areas Our responses

Refer to the note no. 8 and 8(a) to the consolidated and separate financial statements 

Inter-company receivables

• Checking estimated rates of depreciation being used and 
assessing its fairness;

• Discussing with the management about the fair value of the 
assets and assessing independently whether the CV 
approximates the fair value at the reporting date;

• Evaluating the Group's assumptions in relation to recoverable 
amounts of the major PPE to identify if there is any 
requirement of recognition of impairment; and

• Finally, assessing the appropriateness and presentation of 
disclosures against relevant accounting standards. 

Our testing did not identify any issues with regard to CV of PPE 
and any indicators that would trigger impairment. 

The carrying value of the inter-company 
receivables of the Company was of Tk 2,051 
million (approximately) as at 30 June 2025 
representing 24% of total assets of the 
Company. At the time of conducting our audit 
of the separate financial statements of the 
Company, we have identified the recoverable 
value of the Company's inter-company 
receivables stated at amortized cost.
Management has conducted impairment 
assessment and calculated recoverable value 
of these inter-company receivables in 
accordance with IFRS 9: Financial 
Instruments. Therefore, it is a matter to 
consider whether those receivables might 
have been misstated due to non-recognition of 
impairment.

The carrying value of PPE is the function of 
depreciation charges on cost/ revaluated 
amount that involved estimation and the value 
of the land involved several assumptions and 
judgements thereof. Hence, it is a matter of 
consideration that the carrying value of PPE 
may be higher than the recoverable amount 
and the impairment charges thereon may not 
have been recognized. Therefore, it has been 
considered as a significant area of auditor's 
judgment and requires special attention.

We have evaluated the processes and controls put in place by 
the Company over inter-company transactions. Our substantive 
procedures in relation to the inter-company receivables 
comprise the followings:
• Analyzing and understanding the nature and reasons for 

inter-company receivable transactions;
• Reviewing board minutes relating to the approval of loans to 

the Group entities;
• Reviewing independently the financial capabilities of 

subsidiaries to meet the obligations and also, reviewing the 
financial statements of subsidiaries;

• Checking the transactions among the Group entities on 
sample basis;

• Obtaining confirmations from the Group entities at the 
reporting date on the closing balances of inter-company 
receivable and its reconciliation whenever necessary;

• Carrying out impairment test on the inter-company balances 
and independent review on the key indicators including trend 
of profitability, operating cash flows, and history of 
inter-company transactions etc.;

• Recalculating interest portion on the balances of 
inter-company receivables and recording thereof; and

• Finally, assessing the appropriateness and presentation of 
disclosures against relevant accounting standards.

Our testing did not identify any major issues with regard to 
inter-company receivables and any indicators that would trigger 
impairment at the reporting date.

At reporting date, the balance of Loans was 
amounting to Tk 3,888 million (approximately) 
for both the Company and the Group. In other 
words, approximately 77% of total liabilities 
respectively for the Company and the Group 
are represented by Loans. 

We evaluated the design and tested the operational 
effectiveness of the Group's key controls over the Loans. Our 
audit procedures included, among others, the followings:
• Understanding and reviewing the nature and types of Loans;
• Reviewing the board minutes for arrangements of the Loans;

Refer to the note no. 15 to the consolidated and separate financial statements

Short-term loan and Bank overdraft ("Loans")

Hoda Vasi
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Refer to the note no. 21, 22 and 22 (a) to the consolidated and separate financial statements

Revenue recognition

Refer to the note no. 28 and 28 (a) to the consolidated and separate financial statements

• Obtaining the confirmation from banks directly and cross 
checking the balances reported in the financial statements, 
loan statements and interest rates and other conditions 
associated with the Loans;

• Recalculating the interest related to Loans;
• Checking the adjustments or repayments of Loans through 

bank statements; 
• Checking whether there is any overdue payments and penal 

interests; and
• Finally, assessing the appropriateness and presentation of 

disclosures against relevant accounting standards.
Our procedures above did not identify any issues with regard to 
the Loans.

At year end the Company reported total 
revenue of Tk 5,170 million (approximately) 
and the Group, as a whole, reported total 
revenue of Tk 5,174 million (approximately).

Revenue is recognized when the performance 
obligation is satisfied by transferring goods or 
services to a customer, either at a point in 
time or over time. Goods or services are 
"transferred" when the customer obtains 
control of it. It is a matter of consideration 
whether revenue may be misstated due to 
recognition of sales transaction before 
performance obligation being satisfied.

Furthermore, revenue is measured at net of 
trade discounts, returns and allowances. 
Within a number of the Group's business 
categories, the estimation of discount 
recognized based on sales made during the 
year is material and considered to be complex 
and judgmental. Therefore, it is a matter of 
concern that revenue may be misstated as a 
result of faulty estimations over discounts and 
allowances.

We have assessed the design and operating effectiveness of 
key controls focusing on the followings:
• Segregation of duties in invoice creation and modification;
• Approved price list and specified terms of trade in place; 
• Authorization of credit terms to customers;
• Timing of revenue recognition; and
• Calculation of discounts and allowances.
Our substantive procedures in relation to the revenue 
recognition comprise the followings:
• Evaluating and observing whether proper segregation of 

duties put in place;
• Checking the samples of sales orders for evidence of proper 

credit approval by the appropriate personnel concerned and 
application controls for credit limits;

• Comparing prices and terms on samples of sales invoices to 
the authorized price list and terms of trade and also, 
examining application controls for authorized prices and 
terms;

• Obtaining supporting documentation for sales transactions 
recorded either side of year end as well as credit notes 
issued after the year end date to determine whether 
revenue was recognized in the correct period;

• Assessing the appropriateness of the Group's revenue 
recognition accounting policies, including those relating to 
discounts by comparing with applicable accounting standard;

• Testing the effectiveness of the Group's controls over the 
calculation of discounts and appropriate timing of revenue 
recognition;

• Assessing critically manual journals made to revenue to 
identify unusual or irregular items; and

• Finally, assessing the appropriateness and presentation of 
disclosures against relevant accounting standards.

Our testing did not identify any issues with regard to revenue 
recognition.

It is apparent that, the Company is using 
Loans to operate the business and also, to 
acquire non-current assets. These Loans 
might have been misstated due to 
non-recognition of Loans as well as accrued 
interest as per loan schedule. Therefore, it 
has been considered as key audit area.
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Other Matters
The Group comprises the parent, ACI Formulations PLC, and its subsidiaries namely Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd. 
and ACI AgroChem Limited. The financial statements of subsidiaries have been audited and the component 
auditors have been expressed an unmodified opinion on the financial statements on 30 June 2025.

Other Information: 
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information in the 
Annual Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
consolidated and separate financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated and 
Separate Financial Statements and Internal Controls

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial 
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994, the 
Securities and Exchange Rules, 2020 and other applicable laws and regulations in Bangladesh and for such 
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Group's and the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Group and the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's and the Company's financial reporting 
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
consolidated and separate financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Group and Company’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.

Hoda Vasi
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• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Group and Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that 
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business 
activities within the Group and Company to express an opinion on the consolidated and separate financial 
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group and Company 
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should 
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected 
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Companies Act, 1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules, 2020 and relevant 
notifications issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, we also report that:

a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) in our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Group and the Company so 
far as it appeared from our examination of these books;

c) the consolidated and separate statements of financial position and statements of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income along with the annexed notes 1 to 40 dealt with by the report are in agreement with 
the books of account; and

d) the expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the Group’s and Company’s business.

  Sk Md Tarikul Islam, FCA
  Partner
  Membership no: 1238
  Firm's Registration # CAF-001-057
  Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
 Dhaka, 28 October 2025 Chartered Accountants
  DVC: 2511021238AS278593
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In Taka Notes 30 June 2025 30 June 2024

Assets
Property, plant and equipment 8  2,662,168,376   2,536,705,205 
Right of use assets 9  23,291,179   31,748,853 
Investments 10  83,552,137   78,828,101 
Non-current assets   2,769,011,692   2,647,282,159
Inventories 12  1,469,898,002   1,271,843,585 
Trade receivables 13  1,318,352,169   1,195,759,799 
Other receivables 14  64,257,758   48,795,705 
Inter-company receivables 15  2,050,805,342   1,612,558,924 
Advances, deposits and prepayments 16  202,042,895   183,818,661 
Current tax assets 27  486,847,336   415,208,539 
Cash and cash equivalents 17  242,556,015   203,653,191 
Current assets   5,834,759,517   4,931,638,404
Total assets   8,603,771,210   7,578,920,563
Equity    
Share Capital 18  472,500,000   472,500,000 
Revaluation reserve   1,475,889,485   1,442,196,308 
Retained earnings   1,618,502,915   1,345,681,046 
Total equity   3,566,892,400   3,260,377,354
Liabilities   
Employee benefits 19  67,964,996   63,330,004 
Lease liability 9  29,330,977   20,781,579 
Deferred tax liabilities 20  199,583,032   190,481,333 
Non-current liabilities   296,879,005   274,592,916
Bank overdrafts 21  245,034,253   204,043,573 
Loans and borrowings 22  3,643,053,687   3,031,092,233 
Lease liability- current portion 9  13,156,751   12,852,795 
Trade payables 23  163,426,520   228,638,220 
Other payables 24  651,257,876   546,343,292 
Unclaimed dividend account 25  1,698,634   1,349,911 
Inter-company payables 26  22,372,085   19,630,269 
Current liabilities   4,739,999,806   4,043,950,293
Total liabilities   5,036,878,810   4,318,543,209
Total equity and liabilities   8,603,771,210   7,578,920,563

Net asset value (NAV) per share  34  75.49   69.00

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

ACI Formulations PLC
Statement of Financial Position
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Dated: Dhaka, 28 October 2025

As per our report of same date.

Sk Md Tarikul Islam, FCA
Partner

Membership no: 1238
Firm's Registration # CAF-001-057

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
Chartered Accountants

DVC:  2511021238AS278593

 Shusmita Anis Nasreen Sattar Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman
 Managing Director Director Company Secretary
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ACI Formulations PLC
Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income

   For the year ended For the year ended
In Taka Notes 30 June 2025 30 June 2024
Revenue 28  5,170,186,604   4,933,517,791  

Cost of sales 29  (3,504,811,379)  (3,507,789,587)
Gross profit   1,665,375,225   1,425,728,204 
Other income 30  43,290,708   74,316,546  
Administrative, selling and distribution expenses 31  (931,515,980)  (846,632,495)
Operating profit   777,149,952   653,412,256 
Finance costs, net 32  (265,863,877)  (210,312,752)
Profit before contribution to WPPF   511,286,075   443,099,504 
Contribution to WPPF   (25,564,304)  (22,154,975)
Profit before tax   485,721,771   420,944,529 
Income tax expense 33
   Current tax   (118,060,119)  (108,024,384)
   Deferred tax income/(expense)   (339,783)  10,181,885  
     (118,399,902)  (97,842,499)
Profit after tax   367,321,869   323,102,029 
Other comprehensive income    
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:    
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan    -   -   
Related tax    -   -   
    -   -   
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment   42,455,093   -   
Related tax    (8,761,916)  -   
    33,693,177   -   
Other comprehensive income, net of tax   33,693,177   - 
Total comprehensive income   401,015,046   323,102,029 
Earnings per share  34  
Basic earnings per share   7.77   6.84  

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Dated: Dhaka, 28 October 2025

As per our report of same date.

Sk Md Tarikul Islam, FCA
Partner

Membership no: 1238
Firm's Registration # CAF-001-057

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
Chartered Accountants

DVC:  2511021238AS278593

 Shusmita Anis Nasreen Sattar Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman
 Managing Director Director Company Secretary
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  Share Revaluation Retained TotalIn Taka  capital reserve earnings

Balance at 1 July 2024   472,500,000   1,442,196,308   1,345,681,046   3,260,377,354 
Total comprehensive income     
Profit after tax   -   -   367,321,869   367,321,869 
Other comprehensive income net of tax   -   33,693,177   -   33,693,177 
Total comprehensive income   -   33,693,177   367,321,869   401,015,046 
Transactions with owners of the company     
Contributions and distributions     
Final dividend paid for the year 2023-24   -   -   (94,500,000)  (94,500,000)
Issue of bonus shares   -   -   -   - 
Total transactions with owners of the company  -   -   (94,500,000)  (94,500,000)
Transactions recognised directly in equity    
Realisation of revaluation surplus   -   -   -   - 
Total transactions recognised directly in equity  -   -   -   - 
Balance at 30 June 2025   472,500,000   1,475,889,485   1,618,502,915   3,566,892,400 

   
  Share Revaluation Retained TotalIn Taka  capital reserve earnings 

Balance at 1 July 2023   472,500,000   1,442,196,308   1,140,704,017   3,055,400,325 
Total comprehensive income     
Profit after tax   -   -   323,102,029   323,102,029 
Other comprehensive income net of tax   -   -   -   - 
Total comprehensive income   -   -   323,102,029   323,102,029 
Transactions with owners of the company     
Contributions and distributions     
Final dividend paid for the year 2022-23   -   -   (118,125,000)  (118,125,000)
Issue of bonus shares   -   -   -   - 
Total transactions with owners of the company  -   -   (118,125,000)  (118,125,000)
Transactions recognised directly in equity    
Realisation of revaluation surplus   -   -   -   - 
Total transactions recognised directly in equity  -   -   -   - 
Balance at 30 June 2024   472,500,000   1,442,196,308   1,345,681,046   3,260,377,354 

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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   For the year ended For the year ended
In Taka Notes 30 June 2025 30 June 2024

Cash flows from operating activities       

Cash receipts from customers and others   5,049,721,980   4,952,351,292 

Cash paid to suppliers and employees   (4,551,384,781)  (3,898,619,461)

Cash (used in)/generated from operating activities   498,337,199   1,053,731,831 

 Paid to WPPF   (22,154,976)  (16,410,955)

 Interest paid   (259,209,896)  (171,748,406)

 Income tax paid   (189,698,916)  (169,527,876)

    (471,063,789)  (357,687,237)

Net cash (used in)/from operating activities*  17.3   27,273,410   696,044,594 

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment   (130,783,737)  (144,098,016)

Sales proceeds from Disposal   7,339,009   17,096,608 

Dividend received   20,753,200   33,205,120 

Investment    4,724,036   (16,214,156)

Net cash (used in)/from investing activities   (97,967,492)  (110,010,445)

Cash flows from financing activities    

Inter-company debts received/(paid)   (434,235,681)  (924,142,006)

Proceeds from loans and borrowings   611,961,454   418,461,512 

Payment for lease obligation   (14,999,282)  (13,225,843)

Dividends paid   (94,151,277)  (122,477,841)

Net cash (used in)/from financing activities   68,575,212   (641,384,178)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   (2,118,869)  (55,350,028)

Opening cash and cash equivalents    (390,382)  54,894,798 

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes   31,014   64,847 

Cash and cash equivalents at reporting date   (2,478,238)  (390,382)

Closing balance represents

Cash and cash equivalents 17  242,556,015   203,653,191 

Bank overdraft 21  (245,034,253)  (204,043,573)

    (2,478,238)  (390,382)

Net operating cash flows per share (NOCFPS) 34  0.58   14.73 

* See Note 17.3 for reconciliation of net operating cash flow.

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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In Taka Notes 30 June 2025 30 June 2024

Assets
Property, plant and equipment 8(a)  2,662,176,829   2,536,750,503  
Right of use assets 9(a)  23,291,179   31,748,853  
Investments 10(a)  61,603,803   56,879,767  
Intangible assets 11  5,147,792   5,147,792  
Non-current assets   2,752,219,602    2,630,526,915
Inventories 12(a)  1,469,898,002   1,271,843,585  
Trade receivables 13(a)  1,320,125,075   1,196,658,026  
Other receivables 14  63,685,472   48,795,705  
Inter-company receivable 15(a)  2,046,815,513   1,605,921,413  
Advances, deposits and prepayments 16(a)  202,407,056   184,287,572  
Current tax assets 27(a)  485,296,241   414,436,891  
Cash and cash equivalents 17(a)  244,488,432   206,681,633  
Current assets   5,832,715,789    4,928,624,825
Total assets   8,584,935,391    7,559,151,741
Equity    
Share Capital 18  472,500,000   472,500,000  
Revaluation reserve   1,475,889,485   1,442,196,308  
Retained earnings   1,619,233,892   1,342,955,670  
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company   3,567,623,377    3,257,651,978
Non controlling interest   2,182,473    1,985,444
Total equity   3,569,805,850    3,259,637,422
Liabilities    
Employee benefits 19  67,964,996   63,330,004  
Lease liability 9(a)  29,330,977   20,781,579  
Deferred tax liabilities 20(a)  199,583,033   190,481,333  
Non-current liabilities   296,879,005    274,592,916
Bank overdrafts 21  245,034,253   204,043,573  
Loans and borrowings 22(a)  3,643,053,687   3,031,092,233  
Lease liability- current portion 9(a)  13,156,751   12,852,795  
Trade payables 23(a)  163,743,066   228,954,766  
Other payables 24(a)  651,564,146   546,628,124  
Unclaimed dividend account 25  1,698,634   1,349,911  
Current liabilities   4,718,250,536    4,024,921,402
Total liabilities   5,015,129,541    4,299,514,318
Total equity and liabilities   8,584,935,391    7,559,151,741

 Net Asset Value (NAV) per share  34(a)  75.51    68.94

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Dated: Dhaka, 28 October 2025

As per our report of same date.

Sk Md Tarikul Islam, FCA
Partner

Membership no: 1238
Firm's Registration # CAF-001-057

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
Chartered Accountants

DVC:  2511021238AS278593

 Shusmita Anis Nasreen Sattar Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman
 Managing Director Director Company Secretary
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   For the year ended For the year ended
In Taka Notes 30 June 2025 30 June 2024
Revenue 28(a)  5,174,065,309   4,935,454,455 
Cost of sales 29(a)  (3,504,811,379)  (3,507,789,587)
Gross profit   1,669,253,930   1,427,664,868 
Other income 30(a)  43,290,708   74,316,546 
Administrative, selling and distribution expenses 31(a)  (932,144,517)  (847,164,127)
Operating profit   780,400,121   654,817,287 
Finance costs, net 32(a)  (264,072,320)  (208,996,898)
Profit before contribution to WPPF   516,327,801   445,820,389 
Contribution to WPPF   (25,564,304)  (22,154,975)
Profit before tax   490,763,497   423,665,414 
Income tax expense: 33(a)   
   Current tax   (119,448,463)  (108,757,461)
   Deferred tax income/(expense)   (339,783)  10,181,885 
     (119,788,246)  (98,575,576)
Profit after tax   370,975,251   325,089,838 
Other comprehensive income    
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:    
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan    -   - 
Related tax    -   - 
    -   - 
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment   42,455,093   - 
Related tax    (8,761,916)  - 
    33,693,177   - 
Other comprehensive income, net of tax   33,693,177   - 
Total comprehensive income   404,668,428   325,089,838 
Profit attributable to:    
Owners of the Company   370,778,222   324,944,114 
Non-controlling interest   197,029   145,724 
    370,975,251   325,089,838 
Earnings per share  34(a)  
Basic earnings per share   7.85   6.88 

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Dated: Dhaka, 28 October 2025

As per our report of same date.

Sk Md Tarikul Islam, FCA
Partner

Membership no: 1238
Firm's Registration # CAF-001-057

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
Chartered Accountants

DVC:  2511021238AS278593

 Shusmita Anis Nasreen Sattar Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman
 Managing Director Director Company Secretary
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ACI Formulations PLC
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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   For the year ended For the year ended
In Taka Notes 30 June 2025 30 June 2024 

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts from customers   5,052,726,006   4,953,948,563 

Cash paid to suppliers and employees   (4,551,850,278)  (3,898,879,745)

Cash (used in)/generated from operating activities   500,875,727   1,055,068,818 

 Payment for WPPF   (22,154,976)  (16,410,955)

 Interest paid   (257,418,339)  (170,432,552)

 Income tax paid   (190,307,812)  (169,912,800)

    (469,881,128)  (356,756,307)

Net cash (used in)/from operating activities*  17.3(a)   30,994,600   698,312,512 

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment   (130,783,737)  (144,098,016)

Sales proceeds from Disposal   7,339,009   17,096,608 

Dividend received   20,753,200   33,205,120 

Investment    4,724,036   (16,214,156)

Net cash (used in)/from investing activities   (97,967,492)  (110,010,445)

Cash flows from financing activities

Inter-company debts received/(paid)   (439,052,895)  (926,179,262)

Proceeds from loans and borrowings   611,961,454   418,461,512 

Payment for lease obligation   (14,999,282)  (13,225,843)

Dividends paid   (94,151,277)  (122,477,841)

Net cash (used in)/from financing activities   63,757,998   (643,421,434)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   (3,214,894)  (55,119,367)

Opening Cash and cash equivalents    2,638,060   57,692,581 

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes   31,014   64,847 

Closing cash and cash equivalents at reporting date   (545,821)  2,638,060 

Closing balance represents    

Cash and cash equivalents 17(a)  244,488,432   206,681,633 

Bank overdraft 21  (245,034,253)  (204,043,573)

    (545,821)  2,638,060 

Net Operating Cash Flows Per Share (NOCFPS)  34(a)   0.66   14.78 

* See Note 17.3(a) for reconciliation of net operating cash flow.  

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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ACI Formulations PLC
Notes to the Financial Statements

as at and for the year ended 30 June 2025

1 Reporting entity

1.1 Company profile
 ACI Formulations PLC (the "Company") is a company incorporated in Bangladesh. It was incorporated as 

a private limited company on 29 October 1995 and converted to a public limited company on 4 May 2005. 
The Company was listed with both Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) and Chittagong Stock Exchange 
Limited (CSE) on 30 October 2008. The registered office of the Company is at 245 Tejgaon Industrial 
Area, Dhaka-1208, Bangladesh. The Company went into commercial operations on 1 July 1998. 
Advanced Chemical Industries PLC (ACI Limited now ACI PLC) incorporated in Bangladesh is the 
immediate as well as ultimate parent of the Company. The consolidated financial statements of the 
Company as at and for the year ended 30 June 2025 comprise the Company's and its subsidiaries 
(together referred to as the "Group" and individually as "Group entities") interest in controlled entities.

1.2 Nature of business
  The principal activities of the Company are manufacturing and marketing of a number of agrochemical 

and consumer products. 

● Agrochemical products (Crop Care & Public Health) are directly marketed by the Company with the 
use of depot facilities of ACI PLC. 

● Some products of S. C. Johnson & Son, Inc., are manufactured by the Company under contract 
which is distributed by ACI PLC.

● Paint products are manufactured and marketed by the Company under license from Akzo Nobel 
N.V., and distributed with logistics support from ACI PLC.

1.3 Description of subsidiaries 

 Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd.
 The Company acquired 98% shares of Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd. The initial effective date of 

acquisition was 28 February 2014. Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd generate its revenue through royalty 
fees based on the renewed agreement with ACI PLC effective from 1 July 2024 for a tenure of 5 years; 
and being engaged in the manufacturing of products under the Neem brand name. Since the Subsidiary 
showed profitability during the year, its ability to operate as a going concern is not at risk.  

 ACI AgroChem Limited 
 ACI AgroChem was incorporated on 22nd June 2022 as a limited Company. The principal activities of the 

Company is to manufacture and marketing of various kinds of agricultural input like chemical including 
other allied and general chemical. The Company is yet to start its operation. ACI Formulations holds 90% 
shares of ACI AgroChem Limited. 

2 Basis of accounting

2.1 Statement of compliance 
 The separate financial statements as well as consolidated financial statements have been prepared in 

accordance with International Accounting Standards (IASs), International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 2020 and other applicable laws and 
regulations. 
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2.2 Date of authorisation 
 The audited consolidated financial statements as well as separate financial statements for the year ended 

30 June 2025 were authorised by the Board of Directors on October 28, 2025 for publication.

2.3 Basis of measurement
 The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis under the historical 

cost basis except for certain assets, which are stated either at revalued amount or fair market value as 
explained in the accompanying notes. 

3 Functional and presentation currency
 These financial statements are presented in Bangladesh Taka (Taka/Tk/BDT), which is the functional and 

presentation currency of the Group. The amounts in these financial statements have been rounded off to 
the nearest Taka, unless otherwise indicated. In some instances the total may not match with the sum of 
individual balance due to rounding off. 

4 Use of judgments and estimates 
 In preparing these separate and consolidated financial statements, management has made judgments, 

estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of 
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to estimates are 
recognised prospectively. 

4.1 Assumptions and estimation uncertainties 
 Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a 

material adjustment for the year ended 30 June 2025 is included in the following notes:

Note - 8 & 8(a) Property, plant and equipment 
Note - 9 & 9(a) Leases 
Note - 12 & 12(a) Inventories 
Note - 13 & 13(a) Trade receivables
Note - 14  Other receivables 
Note - 15 & 15(a) Inter-company receivables
Note - 19 Employee benefits
Note - 20 & 20(a) Deferred tax liabilities
Note - 27 & 27(a) Current tax liabilities/(assets)
Note - 36 Commitment and contingencies 

4.2 Fair value 
 When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market observable data as far as 

possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used 
in the valuation techniques as follows:

● Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

● Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

● Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs).



 If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability are categorised in different levels of 
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level 
of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. 

 The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting 
period during which the change has occurred. 

5 Reporting period 
 The financial period of the Company covers one year from 1 July to 30 June and is being followed 

consistently. 

6 Significant accounting policies
 The Group has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in these 

financial statements. 

 Set out below is an index of the significant accounting policies, the details of which are available on the 
current and following pages: 

(a) Current versus non-current classification 

(b) Offsetting 

(c) Basis of consolidation 

(d) Revenue from contract with customers 

(e) Foreign currency transactions 

(f) Employee benefits 

(g) Finance income and finance costs 

(h) Income tax 

(i) Investment 

(j) Inventories  

(k) Property, plant and equipment 

(l) Intangible assets  

(m) Leases  

(n) Financial instruments 

(o) Share capital 

(p) Impairment 

(q) Provisions 

(r) Going concern 

(s) Contingencies 

(t) Statement of cash flows 

(u) Earnings per share (EPS)

(v) Events after the reporting period 

(w) Dividends

(x) Materiality and aggregation  

(a) Current versus non-current classification 
 The Group presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on current/non-current 

classification. An asset is current when it is: 

i) expected to be realised in normal operating cycle, or 
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ii) due to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

iii) held primarily for the purpose of trading, or 

iv) used or exchanged to settle a liability within twelve months after the reporting period.

 All other assets are classified as non-current.

 A liability is current when it is: 

i) expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, or 

ii) due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

iii) held primarily for the purpose of trading, or 

iv) there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months 
after the reporting period. 

 The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

(b) Offsetting 
 The Group reports separately both assets and liabilities, and income and expenses, unless required by 

an applicable accounting standard or offsetting reflects the substance of the transaction and such 
offsetting is permitted by applicable accounting standard.

 Cash receipts and payments on behalf of customers when the cash flows reflect the activities of the 
customer rather than those of the entity and cash receipts and payments for items in which the turnover 
is quick, the amounts are large, and the maturities are short are presented net in the statement of cash 
flows.

(c) Basis of consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries 

 Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the 
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its 
activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights presently exercisable are taken into account. 
The financial statements of subsidiaries have been included in the consolidated financial statements 
from the date that control commences until the date that it ceases. The accounting policies of 
subsidiaries have been changed when necessary to align them with the policies adopted by the 
Company.

(ii) Non-controlling interests 

 Non-controlling interest (NCI) is the equity interest in a subsidiary not attributable to ACI 
Formulations PLC. NCI is measured at subsidiaries' proportionate share of identifiable net asset. 

(iii) Loss of control 

 When the Company loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets (including any 
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, any related NCI and other components of the equity at 
their carrying amount at the date when control is lost. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in the 
profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value when control 
is lost. 

(iv) Transactions eliminated on consolidation 

 Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised income and expenses arising from 
intra-group transactions are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. 
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(d) Revenue from contract with customers 
 Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Group 

recognises revenue when it transfers control over a good or service to a customer. The following table 
provides information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations in 
contracts with customers:  

(e) Foreign currency transactions 
 The financial statements have been prepared in BDT/Taka, which is the Company's functional currency. 

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the books at the exchange rate prevailing on the date 
of such transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies at the date of financial position 
are translated into BDT at the exchange rate prevailing at that date, with foreign currency differences 
being recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of 
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of transaction. 

(f) Employee benefits 

(i) Short-term employee benefits 

 Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is 
recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive 
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the 
obligation can be estimated reliably.

(ii) Defined contribution plans (provident fund) 

 The Company operates a recognised provident fund scheme where employees contribute 8% of 
their basic salary with equal contribution by the Company. The provident fund is being considered 
as defined contribution plan being managed by a Board of Trustees.   

(iii)  Defined benefit plans (gratuity) 

 The Company operates a funded gratuity scheme, provision in respect of which is made annually 
covering all its permanent eligible employees. The Employees' Gratuity Fund is being considered as 
defined benefit plan.  

 Defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which amounts to be paid as 
retirement benefits are determined by reference to employees' earnings and/or year of services. 

Type of product or service Revenue recognition under IFRS 15

Revenue is recognized when or as a performance obligation is satisfied 
by transferring a good or service to a customer, either at a point in 
time or over time. A good or service is ‘transferred’ when or as the 
customer obtains control of it. Customers obtain control of goods at 
point of delivery or over time. 

The entity assesses whether it transfers control over time by following 
prescribed criteria for satisfying performance obligation. If none of the 
criteria is met then the entity recognizes revenue at point of time at 
which it transfers control of the goods to the customer.

Revenue is measured net of value added tax, trade discount, returns 
and allowances (if any). In case of cash delivery, revenue is recognised 
when delivery is made and cash is received by the Group.

Sale of goods or services 
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The rate used to discount post employment benefit obligations is determined by reference to the 
rate stated in the actuarial report. Actuarial valuation of gratuity scheme has been made as on 30 
June 2023 by independent actuarial valuer to assess the adequacy of the liabilities provided for the 
schemes, which concluded that provision accounted for in the Statement of financial position is 
sufficient. 

(iv) Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF)  

 The Company operates funds for workers as 'Workers' Profit Participation Fund' and 5% of the profit 
before charging such expense have been transferred to this fund as per section 234 of the Labour 
Act 2006 (amended in 2013). 

(g) Finance income and finance costs  
 The Group's finance income and finance costs include:

● interest income; 

● interest expense;

 Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method. 

(h) Income tax  
 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the 

extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in OCI (Other Comprehensive Income). 

(i) Current tax 

 Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the 
year and any adjustment to tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of 
current tax payable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid that reflects 
uncertainty related to income tax, if any. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain 
criteria are met. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting 
date. The applicable tax rate for the Company is currently 22.5%.  

(ii) Deferred tax 

 Deferred tax asset or liability is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation 
purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for: 

- temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is 
not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. 

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill. 

- temporary difference related to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that the Group is 
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that 
they will. 

 Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible 
temporary differences to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against 
which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such 
reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improve.

 The Group’s existing accounting policy for uncertain income tax treatments is consistent with the 
requirements in IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments, which became effective on 1 
January 2019. 

Annual Report 2024-2025 l Page 79



(i) Investment
 In separate financial statements of the Company, investment in subsidiaries has been carried at cost as 

per IAS 27: Separate Financial Statements. All other investments have been categorised in accordance 
with IFRS 9. 

 Investment in subsidiaries has been accounted for as per IFRS 10: Consolidated Financial Statements. 
The investment is eliminated in full against the equity of acquired subsidiary, which is measured at fair 
value at the date of acquisition as per IFRS 3: Business Combinations. 

(j) Inventories  
 Inventories except materials in transit are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The 

cost of inventories is based on the weighted average method, and includes expenditure incurred in 
acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to 
their existing location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work-in-progress, cost 
includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operation capacity. 

 Allowance for inventory is periodically recognised mainly on the basis of failure in quality control testing, 
net realisable value, non compliance testing, near to expiry etc. Net realisable value is the estimated 
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling 
expenses.

 Material in transit represents the cost incurred up to the date of the statement of financial position for 
the items that were not received till to the date of the statement of financial position. Inventory losses 
and abnormal losses are recognised as expenses.  

(k) Property, plant and equipment 

(i) Recognition and measurement 

 Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost or revaluation less accumulated 
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. The items of property, plant and equipment 
were revalued in the year 2004, 2010, 2015, 2021 and 2025 by a firm of professional valuers on 
the basis of applicable methods including market value method, premise on the accompanying 
narrative information and valuation methodology. Capital work-in-progress represents the cost 
incurred for acquisition and/or construction of items of property, plant and equipment that were not 
ready for use at the end of 30 June 2025 and these are stated at cost. 

 Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of asset. The cost of self 
constructed asset includes the cost of material and direct labour, any other costs directly 
attributable to bringing the assets to the working condition for their intended use.  

(ii) Subsequent costs 

 The cost of replacement or upgradation of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised 
in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied 
within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. All other repair and 
maintenance expense are charged to income statement as incurred. 

(iii) Depreciation  

 All items of property, plant and equipment have been depreciated on straight line basis over the 
estimated useful life of each item of property, plant and equipment. Depreciation on additions is 
charged in full when the asset becomes available for use. Depreciation is charged at the rates 
varying from 2.5% to 20% depending on the estimated useful lives of assets. No depreciation is 
charged for land and capital work in progress, as land has unlimited useful life and CWIP has not 
yet been placed in service.  
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 The revalued items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated based on their revalued 
amount at the date of revaluation over their remaining estimated useful lives. 

 The estimated useful lives of initially recognised property, plant and equipment are as follows: 

In Year 30 June 2025 30 June 2024
Building 40  40 
Plant and machinery 10  10 
Equipment and machinery 5-10  5-10 
Electrical and other office appliances  5-10  5-10 
Furniture and fixture 10  10 
Motor vehicles  5  5 

 Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and 
adjusted if appropriate. No revision in respect of items of property, plant and equipment was done 
for the year ended 30 June 2025. 

(iv) Capitalisation of borrowing costs 

 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a 
qualifying asset are included in the cost of that asset as per IAS 23: Borrowing cost. The capitalisation 
rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs of Group's borrowings for this purpose and the 
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the asset is ready for intended use. 

(v) Impairment 

 The carrying amount of the non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets 
(considered as disclosed separately under respective accounting standards), are reviewed at each 
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication 
exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. 

 However, no such conditions that might be suggestive of a heightened risk of impairment of assets 
existed at the reporting date.  

(vi) Retirement and disposals

 An asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use 
and subsequent disposal. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an asset is 
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset 
and is recognised as gain or loss from disposal of asset in profit or loss. When revalued assets are 
disposed of, the amounts included in the revaluation surplus are transferred to retained earnings.  

(l) Intangible assets  
 Intangible assets consist of goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is measured at cost less 

accumulated impairment losses. During the year no external or internal indication was found which may 
trigger impairment. 

(m) Leases 
 Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding liabilities at the inception of a contract 

and measured in accordance with IFRS 16. The right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter of 
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.  

 At the commencement date, lease liabilities are measured at an amount equal to the present value of the lease 
payments for the underlying right-of-use assets during the lease term. The lease payment are discontinued 
using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined, or the Company's 
incremental borrowing rate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost.

 Payments associated with all short-term leases (with a lease term of 12 months or less) and certain 
leases of all low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. 
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(n) Financial instruments 
 Non-derivative financial instruments comprise of investments in shares and term deposit, trade 

receivable, inter-company receivable, other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, 
inter-company payables, other payables, bank overdraft, share capital and interest-bearing borrowings. 

(i) Financial assets 
 The Group initially recognises receivables and deposits issued on the date when they originate. All 

other financial assets are initially recognised on the trade date, when the entity becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

 The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred, or it 
neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not 
retain control over the transferred asset.  

 The Group's financial assets comprise trade receivable, intercompany receivable, other receivables, 
refundable deposits and cash and cash equivalents.

 Trade, inter-company and other receivables 

 Trade, inter-company and other receivables are initially recognised at the transaction price. These 
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less 
allowance for impairment loss of receivables using expected credit loss model. 

 Cash and cash equivalents 

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and all call deposits with original maturities of 
three months or less. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of 
the Group's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the 
purpose only of the statement of cash flows.

 Investment in term deposit 

 The Group has the positive intent and ability to hold term deposit to collect contractual cash flows, 
and as such financial assets are classified as amortised cost (original classification under IAS 39 was 
held to maturity).  

(ii) Financial liabilities 
 The Group initially recognises financial liabilities on the transaction date at which the Group 

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the liability. The Group recognises such financial 
liability when its contractual obligations arising from past events are certain and the settlement of 
which is expected to result in an outflow from the entity of resources embodying economic benefits. 

 The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or 
cancelled, or expired.  

 The Group's financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables and interest - bearing 
borrowings. 

 The Group recognises such financial liability when its contractual obligations arising from past 
events are certain and the settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow from the entity of 
resources embodying economic benefits. 

(iii) Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability  
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of 

financial position when, and only when, the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset the 
amounts and intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously. 
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(o) Share capital 
 Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares, net of any tax effects, are 

recognised as a deduction from equity. Income tax relating to transaction costs of an equity transaction 
are accounted for in accordance with IAS 12: Income Taxes. 

(p) Impairment  

(i) Financial assets  

 Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective 
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes:  

- default or delinquency by a debtor; 

- restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group would not consider 
otherwise;  

- indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy;  

- adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers; or  

- observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in expected cash flows from a 
group of financial assets.  

 Financial assets measured at amortised cost 

 The Group considers evidence of impairment for these assets at both an individual asset and a 
collective level. All individually significant assets are individually assessed for impairment. Those 
found not to be impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred 
but not yet individually identified. Assets that are not individually significant are collectively 
assessed for impairment. Collective assessment is carried out by grouping together assets with 
similar risk characteristics. 

 In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses historical information on the timing of recoveries 
and the amount of loss incurred, and makes an adjustment if current economic and credit conditions 
are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or lesser than suggested by historical trends.

 An impairment loss is calculated using expected credit loss model as prescribed in IFRS 9. 
Impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the 
Group considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts 
are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be 
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, then the previously 
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. 

(ii) Non-financial assets 

 At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other 
than biological costs, inventories and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any 
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated.  

 For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that 
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other 
assets or CGUs (Cash Generating Units). 

 The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less 
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. 

 An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds 
its recoverable amount. 
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(q) Provisions  
 A provision is recognised if, as a result of past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive 

obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimate. If it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits are required to settle 
the obligation, the provision are reversed. 

(r) Going concern  
 The Group has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future. For this reason 

the management continues to adopt going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. The 
current resources of the Company provide sufficient funds to meet the present requirements of its 
existing business. 

(s) Contingencies 

(i) Contingent liability 

 Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the company; or a present obligation that arises from past events but 
is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be 
measured with sufficient reliability.  

 The Group discloses contingent liability in the financial statements. A provision is recognised in the 
period in which the recognition criteria of provision is met. 

(ii) Contingent asset 

 Contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the company.

 The Group does not recognise contingent asset. Only when the realisation of the related economic 
benefits are visually certain should recognition take place provided that it can be measured reliably 
because, at that point, the asset is no longer contingent. 

(t) Statement of cash flows 
 Cash flows from operating activities are presented under direct method as per IAS 7: Statement of cash 

flows.

(u) Earnings per share (EPS)  
 The Group presents basic earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. basic EPS is calculated by 

dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company / Group by the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.  

 Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting profit or loss for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders 
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential 
ordinary shares, if any. However, dilution of EPS is not applicable for these financial statements as there 
was no potential dilutive ordinary shares during the year ended 30 June 2025.
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(v) Events after the reporting period 
 Events after the reporting period that provide additional information about the Group's position at the 

reporting date or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate are reflected in the 
financial statements. Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the 
notes when material. 

(w) Dividends  
 Final dividend distribution to the Group's shareholders are recognised as a liability in the financial 

statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Group's shareholders at the Annual 
General meeting, while interim dividend distributions are recognised in the period in which the dividends 
are declared and paid. 

(x) Materiality and aggregation  
 Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the financial statements. Items of 

dissimilar nature or function are presented separately unless they are immaterial. 

7 Operating segments 

(i)  Basis for segmentation 

 The Group has the following four strategic business units, which are reportable segments. These business 
units offer different products and services, and are managed separately because they require different 
technology and marketing strategies. For each of the strategic business units, the Group's CEO reviews 
internal management reports at least on quarterly basis.  

Reportable segments Operations 

Crop Care and Public Health (CC & PH) To manufacture and sell crop care and public health products

Mosquito coil (M. Coil) To manufacture and sell mosquito coil products

Aerosol To manufacture and sell aerosol and air freshener products

Paint To manufacture and sell paint products 
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9 Leases 
The Group has rent agreements for depots, warehouses, outlets, and other uses for the business. Rent 
agreements having non-cancellable (either by agreement or in substance) tenor of 12 months or more 
have been charged through right of use assets. Short term rent agreements have been charged 
directly as expense. Information about such leases for which the Group is a lessee is presented below:

i. Right-of-use assets

  In Taka  30 June 2025  30 June 2024 
 Right-of-use assets   23,291,179   31,748,853 

 Additions during the year   6,834,612   815,235

ii. Lease liability 

  In Taka  30 June 2025  30 June 2024 
 Non-current portion of lease liability   ii(a)   29,330,977   20,781,579 
 Current portion of lease liability   ii(b)   13,156,751   12,852,795 
     42,487,728   33,634,374

ii(a). Non-current portion of lease liability 

  In Taka  30 June 2025  30 June 2024 
 Leased rent   14,168,547   18,715,042 
 Leased vehicle   15,162,430   2,066,537 
     29,330,977   20,781,579

ii(b). Current portion of lease liability 

  In Taka  30 June 2025  30 June 2024 
 Leased rent   9,981,730   12,486,557 
 Leased vehicle   3,175,021   366,238 
     13,156,751   12,852,795

 iii. Reconciliation of rent expense   

  In Taka Note 30 June 2025  30 June 2024 
 Amount recognised in profit or loss 
 Charge on right-of-use rent agreements  31  15,292,286   16,461,316 
 Interest on lease liabilities   32  2,559,448   3,211,364 
 Expense for short term rents 31  11,187,390   9,913,526 

Amount recognised in profit or loss under IFRS 16   29,039,124   29,586,206 

Rent paid (excluding IFRS 16 adjustment)   27,032,772   28,401,726
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9(a) Consolidated leases 

i. Right-of-use assets

  In Taka  30 June 2025  30 June 2024 
  Right-of-use assets   23,291,179   31,748,853

ii. Lease liability 

  In Taka  30 June 2025  30 June 2024 
Non-current portion of lease liability 

 Leased rent   14,168,547   18,715,042 
 Leased vehicle   15,162,430   2,066,537 
     29,330,977   20,781,579

Current portion of lease liability 
 Leased rent   9,981,730   12,486,557 
 Leased vehicle   3,175,021   366,238 
     13,156,751   12,852,795

10 Investments

  In Taka Note 30 June 2025  30 June 2024 
 Investment in subsidiary 10.1  21,948,334   21,948,334 
 Investment in FDR 10.2  61,528,803   56,804,767 
 Investment in shares of ACI Motors Limited   75,000   75,000 

    83,552,137   78,828,101

ACI Motors Limited is a subsidiary of ACI PLC and consolidated by ACI PLC.   

10.1 Investment in subsidiary
                                        30 June 2025   30 June 2024
    Face value Called and
   Number of per paid up Share-
   shares share capital per share holding Value Value 
    Taka Taka % Taka Taka

Name of subsidiary
 Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd  4,900  100 100 98  3,948,334   3,948,334 
 ACI Agrochem (Pvt.) Ltd  1,800,000  10 10 90  18,000,000   18,000,000 
 Total investment in subsidiary      21,948,334   21,948,334 

10.2 Investment in FDR includes amounting to Taka 2,022,500 which is kept as lien against service 
received from Titas Gas Transmission and Distribution Co. Limited. Therefore, the Company has no 
intention to encash the said amount and recorded as long term investment.  

10(a) Consolidated investments  

  In Taka  Note  30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Investment in FDR 10.2  61,528,803   56,804,767 
 Investment in shares of ACI Motors Limited   75,000   75,000 
     61,603,803   56,879,767 
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11 Intangible assets

  In Taka    30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Goodwill on acquisition:
 Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd   5,147,792   5,147,792 
     5,147,792   5,147,792 

12 Inventories 

  In Taka    30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Raw and packing materials   546,149,798   545,672,909 
 Finished goods   618,605,377   597,674,287 
 Goods in transit   310,760,608   127,314,326 
 Other inventories (engineering stores and diesel)   26,585,979   28,063,413 
 Allowance for inventory   (32,203,760)  (26,881,349)
     1,469,898,002   1,271,843,585

 In view of innumerable items of inventories and diversified quantities, inventories are presented group-wise.

12(a) Consolidated inventories  

  In Taka    30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Raw and packing materials   546,149,798   545,672,909 
 Finished goods   618,881,668   597,950,578 
 Goods in transit   310,760,608   127,314,326 
 Other inventories (engineering stores and diesel)   26,585,979   28,063,413 
 Allowance for inventory   (32,480,051)  (27,157,640)
    1,469,898,002   1,271,843,585

13 Trade receivables
    30 June 2025  30 June 2024
   Dues over Dues below

In Taka 6 months 6 months Total Total

 Related party  5,818,983   1,274,737   7,093,720   7,596,425 
 Other than related parties  510,260,620   1,055,895,077   1,566,155,697   1,451,984,729 
       1,573,249,417   1,459,581,154 
 Less: Provision for doubtful debts    (254,897,247)  (263,821,355)
       1,318,352,169   1,195,759,799 

 In view of innumerable number of debtors, it is not practicable to disclose the amount of receivable against each 
specific debtors.

13(a) Consolidated trade receivables
    30 June 2025  30 June 2024
   Dues over Dues below

In Taka 6 months 6 months Total Total
 Related parties  5,818,983   1,274,737   7,093,720   7,596,425 
 Other than related parties  511,606,484   1,056,322,118   1,567,928,602   1,452,882,957 
      1,575,022,323   1,460,479,382 
 Less: Provision for doubtful debts    (254,897,247)  (263,821,355)
      1,320,125,075   1,196,658,026 
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14 Other receivables
Other receivables represent receivable on accounts of promotional expense to be reimbursed by Akzo 
Nobel and interest income from FDR.

15 Inter-company receivables

  In Taka         30 June 2025   30 June 2024 

 ACI PLC   1,990,274,108   1,557,717,915 

 ACI HealthCare Limited   53,332,939   48,023,912 

 Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd   7,198,295   6,817,098 

     2,050,805,342   1,612,558,924 

 Inter-company receivable is operated under normal course of business maintaining a common policy 
of charging interest to ensure efficient fund management and optimize effective borrowing cost at 
group level.

15(a) Consolidated inter-company receivables

 In Taka    30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 ACI PLC   1,993,482,574   1,557,897,501 
 ACI HealthCare Limited   53,332,939   48,023,912 
     2,046,815,513   1,605,921,413 

16 Advances, deposits and prepayments

  In Taka         30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
Advances:

 Staffs   9,196   259,454 
 Supplier and others   15,424,427   21,409,369 
 VAT current account   24,965,155   22,265,948 
     40,398,777   43,934,770 

Deposits:
 Security deposits   10,145,573   10,070,573 
 L/C margin   147,557,310   122,232,828 
 Bank guarantee margin   2,339,137   4,784,073 
     160,042,021   137,087,474 

Prepayments:
 Prepaid expenses   1,602,097   2,796,417 
     1,602,097   2,796,417 
     202,042,895   183,818,661 
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16(a) Consolidated advances, deposits and prepayments

  In Taka         30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
Advances:

 Staffs   9,196   365,854 
 Suppliers and others   15,788,587   21,771,879 
 VAT current account   24,965,155   22,265,948 
     40,762,938   44,403,681 
   Deposits:    

Security deposits   10,145,573   10,070,573 
 L/C margin   147,557,310   122,232,828 
 Bank guarantee margin   2,339,137   4,784,073 
     160,042,021   137,087,474 
  Prepayments:    

Prepaid expenses   1,602,097   2,796,417 
     1,602,097   2,796,417 
     202,407,056   184,287,572

17 Cash and cash equivalents

  In Taka  Note        30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Cash in hand   8,356,049   7,066,769 
 Collection in hand 17.1  23,643,496   22,615,527 
 Cash at bank 17.2  210,556,470   173,970,895 
     242,556,015   203,653,191 

17.1 This represents cash in hand at depots which was collected against cash sales and payment 
instruments collected against credit sales at the end of the reporting period.

17.2 Cash at Bank

  In Taka         30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
Standard Chartered Bank   37,374,344   27,593,457 

 The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation (HSBC)   35,250,413   15,721,410 
 AB Bank PLC   1,391,651   33,275,050 
 Agrani Bank PLC   1,293,986   4,529,929 
 Janata Bank PLC   12,631,117   16,069,619 
 Sonali Bank PLC   1,147,053   497,716 
 BRAC Bank PLC   31,406,939   13,609,083 
 ONE Bank PLC   6,895   8,965 
 Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC   12,681,126   633,213 
 Prime Bank PLC   25,963,814   43,530,783 
 Pubali Bank PLC   -   261,133 
 Dutch Bangla Bank PLC   6,519,700   5,652,773 
 Mercantile Bank PLC   41,383,941   4,706,200 
 Bengal Commercial Bank PLC   3,388,708   2,538,462 
 Al Arafa Islami Bank PLC   41,553   5,216,931 
 The Trust Bank PLC   45,451   46,141 
 Jamuna Bank PLC   29,777   80,029 
     210,556,470   173,970,895 
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17.3 Reconciliation of net operating cash flow

  In Taka   30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Profit after tax      367,321,869   323,102,029 

Adjustment for:
 - Depreciation and amortization   46,785,413   47,402,542 
 - Bad debts and inventory loss/(recovery)   54,319,804   31,977,976 
 - Net finance cost   265,863,877   210,312,751 
 - Unrealized gain/(loss) on translation of foreign currency receivables   (1,268,920)  (3,828,007)
 - Tax expense   118,399,902   97,842,499 
 - Contribution to WPPF   25,564,304   22,154,975 
 - Gain/ loss on asset disposal    (6,240,950)  (15,396,464)
 - Dividend income   (20,753,200)  (33,205,120)

 Changes in:
 - Inventories   (200,526,606)  345,084,361 
 - Trade and other receivables   (192,374,227)  (35,031,427)
 - Advances, deposit and prepayments   (18,224,233)  (151,018,444)
 - Trade and other payables, employment benefits'   59,470,167   214,334,160 

Cash generating from operating activities   498,337,199   1,053,731,831   
 Paid to WPPF   (22,154,976)  (16,410,955)
 Interest paid   (259,209,896)  (171,748,406)
 Income tax paid   (189,698,916)  (169,527,876)

Net cash from operating activities   27,273,410   696,044,594 

17(a) Consolidated cash and cash equivalents

  In Taka Note  30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Cash in hand   8,441,954   7,152,674 
 Collection in hand 17.1  23,643,496   22,615,527 
 Cash at bank 17.2(a)  212,402,982   176,913,432 
     244,488,432   206,681,633 

17.2(a) Consolidated cash at bank

  In Taka   30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Standard Chartered Bank   37,374,344   27,593,457 

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (HSBC)  35,250,413   15,721,410 
 AB Bank PLC   1,391,651   33,275,050 
 Agrani Bank PLC   1,293,986   4,529,929 
 Janata Bank PLC   12,631,117   16,069,619 
 Sonali Bank PLC   1,147,053   497,716 
 BRAC Bank PLC   31,406,939   13,609,083 
 ONE Bank PLC   6,895   8,965 
 Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC   12,681,126   633,213 
 Prime Bank PLC   25,963,814   43,530,783 
 Pubali Bank PLC   664,407   1,898,307 
 Dutch Bangla Bank PLC   7,701,805   6,958,137 
 Mercantile Bank PLC   41,383,941   4,706,200 
 Bengal Commercial Bank PLC   3,388,708   2,538,462 
 Al Arafa Islami Bank PLC   41,553   5,216,931 
 The Trust Bank PLC   45,451   46,141 
 Jamuna Bank PLC   29,777   80,029 
     212,402,982   176,913,432 
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17.3(a) Reconciliation of consolidated net operating cash flow

  In Taka   30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Profit after tax      370,975,251   325,089,838 

 Adjustment for:
 - Depreciation and amortization   46,803,836   47,624,773 
 - Bad debts and inventory loss/(recovery)   54,319,804   31,977,976 
 - Net finance cost   266,084,108   211,048,260 
 - Unrealized gain/(loss) on translation of foreign currency receivables   (1,268,920)  (3,828,007)
 - Tax expense   118,717,047   98,575,576 
 - Contribution to WPPF   25,564,304   22,154,975 
 - Gain/ loss on asset disposal    (6,240,950)  (15,396,464)
 - Dividend income   (20,753,200)  (33,205,120)

Changes in:
 - Inventories   (200,526,606)  345,084,361 
 - Trade and other receivables   (192,092,379)  (35,370,820)
 - Advances, deposit and prepayments   (18,157,833)  (150,887,031)
 - Trade and other payables, employment benefits'   58,854,159   212,200,502 

Cash generating from operating activities    502,278,620   1,055,068,819 

 Paid to WPPF   (22,154,976)  (16,410,955)
 Interest paid   (259,430,127)  (170,432,552)
 Income tax paid   (189,698,916)  (169,912,800)

Net cash from operating activities   30,994,600   698,312,512 

18 Share capital

  In Taka    30 June 2025   30 June 2024
 Ordinary shares (6,600,000 shares of Tk 10 each)   66,000,000   66,000,000 
 Bonus shares (34,750,000 shares of Tk. 10 each)     347,500,000   347,500,000 
 Right shares (5,900,000 shares of Tk. 10 each)   59,000,000   59,000,000 

In issue at reporting date - fully paid   472,500,000   472,500,000 
Authorised - par value Tk. 10   500,000,000   500,000,000 

18.1 Shareholding position

   Number of shares Percentage of holding Value (Taka)
    30 June 2025 30 June 2024 30 June 2025 30 June 2024 30 June 2025 30 June 2024
  Directors and sponsors  31,193,614   31,193,614  66.02% 66.02%  311,936,140   311,936,140 
  Institutions  10,480,595   10,014,404  22.18% 21.19%  104,805,950   100,144,040 
  General shareholders  5,575,791   6,041,982  11.80% 12.79%  55,757,910   60,419,820 
     47,250,000   47,250,000  100.00% 100.00%  472,500,000   472,500,000 



Page 98 l Annual Report 2024-2025

18.2 Share owning schedule

   Number of shareholders Number of shares Percentage of holding
  Shareholder's range 30 June 2025 30 June 2024 30 June 2025 30 June 2024 30 June 2025 30 June 2024
 Less than 500  3,237   3,755   514,007   637,369  1.09% 1.35%
 501 to 5000 shares  1,484   1,735   2,395,624   2,870,551  5.07% 6.08%
 5001 to 10,000 shares  145   155   1,050,468   1,176,494  2.22% 2.49%
 10,001 to 20,000 shares  66   63   943,107   936,473  2.00% 1.98%
 20,001 to 30,000 shares  12   14   296,324   525,326  0.63% 1.11%
 30,001 to 40,000 shares  10   11    345,421   348,217  0.73% 0.74%
 40,001 to 50,000 shares  12   10   567,137   608,152  1.20% 1.29%
 50,001 to 100,000 shares  17   16    1,256,822   955,767  2.66% 2.02%
 100,001 to 1,000,000 shares  18   18   4,460,980   3,771,541  9.44% 7.98%
 Over 1,000,000 shares  5   5   35,420,110   35,420,110  74.96% 74.96%
    5,006   5,782   47,250,000   47,250,000  100.00% 100.00%

19 Employee benefits

  In Taka Note  30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Defined benefit obligation 19.1  48,337,488   46,520,000 
 Other employee benefits   19,627,508   16,810,004 
     67,964,996   63,330,004 

19.1 Defined benefit obligation

  In Taka   30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Opening balance   46,520,000   50,470,000 
 Provision during the year   14,317,488   12,450,000 
 Paid during the year   (12,500,000)  (16,400,000)
 Closing balance   48,337,488   46,520,000 

19.1.1 Acturial gain/loss on remeasurement of defined benefit obligations and plan assets:

 In Taka   30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
Amount recognised in Statement of Financial Position:

 Defined benefit obligation at the reporting date   77,264,036   69,767,932 
 Fair value of plan assets at the reporting date    (28,926,548)  (23,247,932)
 Net defined benefit obligation at the reporting date   48,337,488   46,520,000

Movement in defined benefit obligation:    
 Defined benefit obligation at the end of prior year   69,767,932   64,498,985 

 Service cost   9,804,104   7,329,910 
 Interest cost on obligation    5,582,400   6,056,400 
 Benefits paid out   (7,890,400)  (8,117,363)
 Defined benefit obligation at the reporting date  77,264,036   69,767,932 
   

Movement in fair value of plan assets:  
 Fair value of plan assets at the end of prior year   23,247,932   14,028,985 
 Interest income on plan assets   1,069,016   936,310 
 Contributions received from employer   12,500,000   16,400,000 
 Benefits paid out from plan assets   (7,890,400)  (8,117,363)

Fair value of plan assets at the reporting date   28,926,548   23,247,932 
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20 Deferred tax liabilities

  In Taka Note  30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Opening balance   190,481,333   200,663,218 

Deferred tax (income)/expense through profit or loss 33  339,783   (10,181,885)
 Deferred tax (income)/expense through OCI   8,761,916   - 
 Closing balance   199,583,032   190,481,333 
  
   Taxable/ 
   Carrying  (deductible) Deferred tax
   amount on  temporary  liabilities/

In Taka reporting date Tax base difference (assets)
 At 30 June 2025
 Land  2,104,949,001   -   2,104,949,001   247,700,765 
 Property, plant and equipment (other than land)  314,663,339   188,190,977   126,472,362   28,456,281 
 Allowance for inventory  32,203,760   -   (32,203,760)  (7,245,846)
 Allowance for doubtful debts  254,897,247   -   (254,897,247)  (57,351,881)
 Defined benefit obligation  48,337,488   -   (48,337,488)  (10,875,935)
 Temporary difference for IFRS 16 : Lease  4,890,458   -   (4,890,458)  (1,100,353)

Taxable/(Deductible) temporary differences  2,759,941,293   188,190,977   1,891,092,410   199,583,032 
 Applicable tax rate for land     15%
 Applicable tax rate for other than land    22.50%

Deferred tax liabilities      199,583,032 

At 30 June 2024
 Land  2,062,493,908   -   2,062,493,908   238,938,849 
 Property, plant and equipment (other than land)  316,645,098   191,898,870   124,746,228   28,067,901 
 Allowance for inventory  26,881,349   -   (26,881,349)  (6,048,304)
 Allowance for doubtful debts  263,821,355   -   (263,821,355)  (59,359,805)
 Defined benefit obligation  46,520,000   -   (46,520,000)  (10,467,000)
 Temporary difference for IFRS 16 : Lease  2,890,262   -   (2,890,262)  (650,309)

Taxable/(Deductible) temporary differences  2,719,251,973   191,898,870   1,847,127,169   190,481,333 
 Applicable tax rate for land    6%
 Applicable tax rate for other than land    22.50%

Deferred tax liabilities     190,481,333 

20(a) Consolidated deferred tax liabilities

  In Taka Note  30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Opening balance   190,481,333   200,663,219 
 Deferred tax (income)/expense for the year 33(a)  339,783   (10,181,885)
 Deferred tax (income)/expense through OCI   8,761,916   - 
 Closing balance   199,583,033   190,481,333 

21 Bank overdrafts

  In Taka   30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 BRAC Bank PLC   -   10,312,939 
 Bengal Commercial Bank PLC   103,125,940   103,072,865 
 HSBC   -   - 
 Prime Bank PLC   27,615,129   22,701,304 
 Standard Chartered Bank   -   - 
 Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC   63,550,615   16,581,002 
 One Bank PLC   50,742,569   51,375,463 
     245,034,253   204,043,573 
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22 Loans and borrowings

  In Taka   30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 BRAC Bank PLC   319,996,950   336,299,558 
 The City Bank PLC   26,159,283   32,037,797 
 Prime Bank PLC   753,557,708   611,140,074 
 Bengal Commercial Bank PLC   597,216,190   450,000,000 
 Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC   876,260,400   738,259,293 
 Pubali Bank PLC   275,160,133   85,866,287 
 Al-Arafah Islami Bank PLC   500,000,000   500,000,000 
 Jamuna Bank PLC   171,344,408   217,949,224 
 Mercantile Bank PLC   23,358,614   9,540,000 
 ONE Bank PLC   100,000,000   50,000,000 
     3,643,053,687   3,031,092,233 

ACI Formulations PLC has following facility arrangements with banks as of 30 June 2025:

      Revolving Trust /
   Overdraft Short-term Long-term Acceptence Limit/ Bank Revolviong

In Taka limit  facilities limit loan limit Letter of credit Guarantee Loan
 HSBC  -   -   -     100,000,000   24,679   - 
 BRAC Bank PLC  10,000,000   -   -     450,000,000   50,000,000   150,000,000 
 City Bank PLC  -   -   -     800,000,000   -   - 
 Prime Bank PLC  30,000,000   150,000,000   -     500,000,000   20,000,000   - 
 Bengal Commercial Bank PLC  100,000,000   450,000,000   -     200,000,000   -   - 
 Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC  -   450,000,000   -     800,000,000   -   - 
 Pubali Bank PLC  -   -   -     241,417,692   -   - 
 Al-Arafah Islami Bank PLC  -   500,000,000   -     -   -   - 
 Mercantile Bank PLC  -   -   -     23,625,705   -   - 
 ONE Bank PLC  50,000,000   50,000,000   -     500,000,000   30,000,000   - 
 Jamuna Bank PLC  -   -   -     177,868,000   -   - 

   Securities against the facilities
a) Demand promissory note and letter of continuation for Tk 6,716,000,000.
b) Registered hypothecation over stock and book debts of the Company on pari-pasu basis for Tk 4,550,000,000.
c) Corporate guarantee from Advanced Chemical Industries PLC supported by board resolution.
d) Letter of Set Off between different accounts maintained with the bank.
e) Cross Corporate guarantee among Advance Chemicals Industries PLC, ACI Formulations PLC, ACI Salt Ltd, ACI 

Pure Flour Ltd, Premiaflex Plastics Ltd., & ACI Motors Ltd. for Prime Bank PLC.
f) Post dated Cheque BDT 1,875,000,000 to -Prime Bank PLC, Bengal Commercial Bank PLC, and Al-Arafah Islami 

Bank PLC.

22(a)Consolidated  Loans and borrowings

  In Taka   30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 BRAC Bank PLC   319,996,950   336,299,558 
 The City Bank PLC   26,159,283   32,037,797 
 Prime Bank PLC   753,557,708   611,140,074 
 Bengal Commercial Bank PLC   597,216,190   450,000,000 
 Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC   876,260,400   738,259,293 
 Pubali Bank PLC   275,160,133   85,866,287 
 Al-Arafah Islami Bank PLC   500,000,000   500,000,000 
 Jamuna Bank PLC   171,344,408   217,949,224 
 Mercantile Bank PLC   23,358,614   9,540,000 
 ONE Bank PLC   100,000,000   50,000,000 
     3,643,053,687   3,031,092,233 
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23 Trade payables

  In Taka   30 June 2025   30 June 2024
 Related party   12,733,404   6,562,613 
 Other than related parties   150,693,116   222,075,607 
     163,426,520   228,638,220 

23(a) Consolidated trade payables
  In Taka   30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Related party   12,733,404   6,562,613 
 Other than related parties   151,009,662   222,392,153 
     163,743,066   228,954,766 

24 Other payables

  In Taka Note  30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Creditors for expenses 24.1  384,701,593   359,119,304 
 Advance from customer   18,752,938   23,274,214 
 Interest payable   95,494,667   88,840,686 
 Security money payable   107,207,409   37,891,295 
 Withholding tax and VAT   19,536,966   15,062,818 
 Workers' profit participation fund 24.2  25,564,303   22,154,975 
     651,257,876   546,343,292 

24.1 This includes accrued selling, manufacturing and other accrued expenses.

24.2 Workers' profit participation fund

  In Taka   30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Opening balance   22,154,975   16,410,955 
 Addition during the year    25,564,304   22,154,975 
 Interest accrued during the year   970,892   650,626 
 Paid during the year   (23,125,868)  (17,061,581)
     25,564,303   22,154,975 

24(a) Consolidated other payables

  In Taka Note  30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Creditors for expenses 24.1  385,007,863   359,404,136 
 Advance from customer   18,752,938   23,274,214 
 Interest payable   95,494,667   88,840,686 
 Security money payable   107,207,409   37,891,295 
 Withholding tax and VAT   19,536,966   15,062,818 
 Provision for workers' profit participation fund 24.2  25,564,303   22,154,975 
     651,564,146   546,628,124 
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25 Unclaimed dividend account

  In Taka   30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Unclaimed/ unpaid dividend   1,698,634   1,349,911 
     1,698,634   1,349,911 

26 Inter-company payables

  In Taka   30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 ACI AgroChem Limited   22,372,085   19,630,269 
     22,372,085   19,630,269 

  This arises due to common cost sharing and working capital financing with ACI AgroChem Limited.

27 Current tax liabilities/(assets)

  In Taka Note  30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Opening balance    759,665,506   651,641,121 
 Provision made during the year   118,060,119   108,024,384 
     877,725,625   759,665,506 
 Advance income tax paid 27.1  (1,364,572,961)  (1,174,874,044)
     (486,847,336)  (415,208,539)

27.1 Advance income tax
  In Taka   30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Opening balance   1,174,874,044   1,005,346,169 
 Additions   189,698,916   169,527,876 
     1,364,572,961   1,174,874,044 

27(a) Consolidated current tax liabilities/(assets)

  In Taka Note  30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Opening balance    761,092,663    654,147,196 
 Provision made during the year   119,448,463   108,757,461 
 Paid/Adjustment during the year   (1,264,406)  (1,811,994)

Closing balance   879,276,720   761,092,663 
 Advance income tax paid 27.1(a)  (1,364,572,961)  (1,175,529,554)
     (485,296,241)  (414,436,891)

27.1(a) Consolidated advance income tax
  In Taka   30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Opening balance   1,175,529,554   1,007,428,749 
 Additions   189,043,406   168,100,806 
     1,364,572,961   1,175,529,554 

28 Revenue

    Note For the year ended For the year ended
 In Taka   30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Agrochemical products 28.1  3,927,188,946   3,816,007,126 
 Consumer products 28.2  1,242,997,658   1,117,510,665 
     5,170,186,604   4,933,517,791 

  In view of innumerable items of sales and diversified quantities, it is not practicable to disclose the quantities 
against each items of sale.
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28.1 Agrochemical products 

     For the year ended For the year ended
 In Taka   30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Local   3,887,561,446   3,716,407,927 
 Export   39,627,500   99,599,199 
     3,927,188,946   3,816,007,126

28.2 Consumer products

     For the year ended For the year ended
 In Taka Note  30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Coil   28.2.1   1,593,387   4,452,078 
 Aerosol  28.2.1   726,286,886   720,840,107 
 Vanish  28.2.1   15,075,010   14,280,916 
 Paint   500,042,376   377,937,564 
     1,242,997,658   1,117,510,665 

28.2.1 On 24 April 2015 ACI PLC entered into agreements with S. C. Johnson & Son, Inc. (a corporation 
incorporated under the laws of the state of Wisconsin, USA) whereby S. C. Johnson & Son, Inc. has 
purchased the brands of these products on mutually beneficial terms. As per contract, ACI 
Formulations PLC produces these products for S.C. Johnson & Son, Inc., which are marketed  by ACI 
PLC through its own channel. ACI Formulations PLC will continue to be the manufacturer of these 
products for a period of 5 years from 24 April 2015. The agreement was subsequently renewed and 
ACI Formulations PLC continue to be act as manufacturer as per agreed terms and conditions.

28(a) Consolidated revenue

     For the year ended  For the year ended
 In Taka Note  30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Agrochemical products  28.1(a)   3,927,188,946   3,816,007,126 
 Consumer products  28.2(a)   1,246,876,363   1,119,447,329 
     5,174,065,309   4,935,454,455 

28.1(a) Agrochemical products

     For the year ended  For the year ended
 In Taka   30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Local   3,887,561,446   3,716,407,927 
 Export   39,627,500   99,599,199 
     3,927,188,946   3,816,007,126 

28.2(a) Consumer products

     For the year ended  For the year ended
 In Taka   30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Coil    1,593,387   4,452,078 
 Aerosol   726,286,886   720,840,107 
 Vanish   15,075,010   14,280,916 
 Paint   500,042,376   377,937,564 
 Herbal cosmetics   3,878,704   1,936,664 
     1,246,876,363   1,119,447,329 
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31 Manufacturing, administrative, selling and distribution expenses

         For the year
      For the year ended 30 June 2025  ended
         30 June 2024
    Manufacturing Administrative Distribution Selling Total Total
  In Taka expenses expenses  expenses  expenses
    Salary and wages   142,337,238   210,024,747   52,279,395   271,580,622   676,222,001   657,894,829 
   Traveling and conveyance   1,305,738   9,842,775   28,026,191   71,920,581   111,095,285   108,499,788 
   Service charge, rates and fees   2,035,804   1,367,120   -   6,693,361   10,096,285   4,820,053 
   Expenses for short term rents   237,436   -   5,665,110   5,284,844   11,187,390   9,913,526 
   Charge on right-of-use rent agreements   -   -   7,340,297   7,951,989   15,292,286   16,461,316 
   Repair, maintenance & spares   16,490,842   9,150,752   1,365,308   1,063,354   28,070,256   25,843,780 
   Fuel and power   15,100,049   6,204,657   2,630,856   7,959,690   31,895,252   34,182,854 
   Postage, telephone and fax   673,716   410,937   3,414,614   3,981,209   8,480,476   7,721,440 
   Printing and stationery   1,079,850   1,429,337   5,759,397   562,081   8,830,665   9,825,643 
   Promotional expenses   42,610   -   -   27,628,416   27,671,026   31,595,747 
   Sample expenses   -   -   -   1,561,398   1,561,398   1,084,702 
   Annual conference   -   -   -   11,431,584   11,431,584   7,087,513 
   Publicity & advertisement   -   -   -   1,511,160   1,511,160   117,574 
   Entertainment   1,038,792   4,100,905   1,764,474   3,309,262   10,213,433   8,954,547 
   Vehicle maintenance & bridge toll   1,115,053   3,840,899   3,843,904   8,044,806   16,844,662   12,155,206 
   Doubtful debts   -   -   -   54,319,804   54,319,804   31,977,976 
  Carriage and handling   2,115,235   -   9,908,501   195,055   12,218,791   17,928,127 
   Legal and professional charge   -   176,000   -   1,079,594   1,255,594   2,273,721 
   Audit fees   -   1,062,300   -   -   1,062,300   935,100 
   Insurance   3,707,113   89,028   123,420   674,437   4,593,998   4,800,708 
   Directors' fees   -   15,000   -   -   15,000   30,783 
   Bank charges   -   2,789,959   -   1,281,148   4,071,107   4,798,090 
   Sundry expenses   171,724   -   -   -   171,724   114,905 
   Product development expenses   -   -   -   1,549,498   1,549,498   1,789,512 
   Training expenses   411,703   -   -   935,640   1,347,343   3,244,263 
   Customer & field demonstration   -   -   -   48,732,759   48,732,759   21,195,341 
   Depreciation   31,758,207   1,039,292   242,852   13,745,062   46,785,413   47,402,542 
   Lab chemical and apparatus   586,240   -   -   -   586,240   1,051,701 
   Meeting expenses   -   461,600   -   4,118,317   4,579,917   3,820,432 
   Security Services   5,523,331   -   -   30,681   5,554,012   1,174,077 
     225,730,680   252,005,308   122,364,320   557,146,352   1,157,246,659   1,078,695,795 
   Recovery of expenses for toll    
   manufacturing service charges:   (6,975,228)  -   -   -   (6,975,228)  (8,658,228)
     218,755,452   252,005,308   122,364,320   557,146,352   1,150,271,431   1,070,037,567 
 (A) Manufacturing expenses      218,755,452   223,405,072 
 (B) Administrative, selling and distribution expenses      931,515,980   846,632,495 
         1,150,271,431   1,070,037,567 
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31(a) Consolidated administrative, selling and distribution expenses

     For the For the
    year ended year ended
 In Taka   30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Administrative expenses   252,633,845   245,043,114 
 Distribution expenses   122,364,320   118,590,797 
 Selling expenses   557,146,352   483,530,215 
     932,144,517   847,164,127 

32 Finance costs, net

     For the For the
    year ended year ended
 In Taka   30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Bank loan interest (net of interest income)   262,333,537   206,450,762 
 Interest on lease liabilities   2,559,448   3,211,364 
 Workers' profit participation fund   970,892   650,626 
     265,863,877   210,312,752 

32(a) Consolidated finance costs, net

     For the For the
    year ended year ended
 In Taka   30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Bank loan interest (net of interest income)   260,541,980   205,134,908 
 Interest on lease liabilities   2,559,448   3,211,364 
 Workers' profit participation fund   970,892   650,626 
     264,072,320   208,996,898 

33 Income tax expense

     For the For the
    year ended year ended
 In Taka Note  30 June 2025   30 June 2024 

Current tax expense
 Charged during the year 27  118,060,119   108,024,384 
     118,060,119   108,024,384 

Deferred tax expense/(income)
 Change in deferred tax liabilities 20  339,783   (10,181,885)
     339,783   (10,181,885)

Tax expense/(income)   118,399,902   97,842,499 

33.1 Reconciliation of effective tax rate:

     For the For the
    year ended year ended
 In %   30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
 Regular tax rate of the Company  22.50% 22.50%
 Effect of disallowance & other  1.66% 1.91%
    24.16% 24.41%
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33(a) Consolidated income tax expense

     For the For the
    year ended year ended
 In Taka Notes  30 June 2025   30 June 2024 

Current tax expense
 Charged during the year  27(a)   119,448,463   108,757,461 
     119,448,463   108,757,461 

Deferred tax expense/(income)   
 Change in deferred tax assets 20(a)  339,783   (10,181,885)
     339,783   (10,181,885)
 Tax expense/(income)   119,788,246   98,575,576 

34 EPS, NAV per Share and NOCFPS:

34.1 Basic earnings per share
 The calculation of basic earnings per share based on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 

and weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding is as follows:

     For the For the
    year ended year ended
 In Taka/Number   30 June 2025   30 June 2024 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (number)    47,250,000   47,250,000 
 Profit/(loss) attributable  to the owners of the Company (Taka)  367,321,869   323,102,029 

Earning per share (Taka)   7.77   6.84 

34.2 Net asset value (NAV) per share
 Net assets attributable to equity holders of the Company   3,566,892,400   3,260,377,354 
  Net asset value (NAV) per share (Taka)    75.49   69.00 

34.3 Net operating cash flow per share (NOCFPS)
 Net cash (used in)/from operating activities   27,273,410   696,044,594 

Net operating cash flows per share (NOCFPS)    0.58   14.73 

34(a) Consolidated EPS, NAV per Share and NOCFPS:

34.1(a) Basic earnings per share
 The calculation of basic earnings per share based on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 

and weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding is as follows:

     For the For the
    year ended year ended
 In Taka/Number   30 June 2025   30 June 2024

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (number)    47,250,000   47,250,000 
 Profit/(loss) attributable  to the owners of the Company (Taka)   370,778,222   324,944,114 
 Earning per share (Taka)    7.85   6.88 

34.2(a) Net asset value (NAV) per share
 Net assets attributable to equity holders of the Group   3,567,623,377   3,257,651,978 
 Net asset value (NAV) per share (Taka)    75.51   68.94 

34.3(a) Net operating cash flow per share (NOCFPS)
 Net cash (used in)/from operating activities   30,994,600   698,312,512 
 Net operating cash flows per share (NOCFPS)    0.66   14.78 
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34.4 Diluted earnings per share
 No diluted EPS was required to be calculated for the year ended 30 June 2025 since there was no 

scope for dilution of shares.

35 Financial risk management
 The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

● Credit risk (see 35(ii)); 
● Liquidity risk (see 35(iii)); and 
● Market risk (see 35(iv)). 

   (i)  Risk management framework  
The Company's management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk 
management framework. The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks 
faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk 
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the 
Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain 
a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

   (ii) Credit risk 
 Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial 

instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. Company's exposure to credit risk primarily relates to 
trade receivables and balance with banks including short and long term deposits.

 The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. 
However, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, 
including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate.  

 The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of financial asset in the 
statement of financial position.

   (a) Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum 
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

    Carrying amount
 In Taka Notes  30 June 2025   30 June 2024 

Trade receivables 13(a)  1,575,022,323   1,460,479,382 
 Other receivables 14  63,685,472   48,795,705 
 Inter-company receivables 15(a)  2,046,815,513   1,605,921,413 
 Deposits 16(a)  160,042,021   137,087,474 
 Bank balances 17(a)  212,402,982   176,913,432 
     4,057,968,311   3,429,197,405 

  At reporting date, the maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables by 
geographic regions was as follows:

    Carrying amount
 In Taka   30 June 2025   30 June 2024 

Bangladesh   1,583,577,569   1,469,286,120 
 India   55,130,226   39,988,967 
     1,638,707,795   1,509,275,086 
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   (b) Ageing of trade receivables 
The aging of trade receivables at reporting date was as follows:

    Carrying amount
 In Taka   30 June 2025   30 June 2024

Dues below 6 months   1,057,596,855   871,500,788 
 Dues over 6 months   517,425,467   588,978,594 
     1,575,022,323   1,460,479,382 

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of receivables during the year was as 
follows:

 In Taka Note  30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
Opening balance 13(a)  263,821,355   234,925,728 

 Impairment loss recognised   54,319,804   31,977,976 
 Amounts written off/ write in   (63,243,912)  (3,082,349)
 Closing balance   254,897,247   263,821,355 
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(iv)  Market risk

Market risk is the risk that any change in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest 
rates will affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective 
of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable 
parameters, while optimising the return.

    a) Currency risk 

The Group is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies 
in which purchases are denominated and the respective functional currency of the Company. The 
functional currency of the Company is Bangladesh Taka (Taka/TK/BDT). The foreign currency in which 
these transactions are denominated is US Dollar (USD).

Exposure to currency risk 

The summary quantitative data about the Groups's exposure to currency risk as at balance sheet date 
was as follows.

 In USD   30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
Cash at bank  3,848  5,639 

 Loans and borrowings   (6,810,903)  (4,176,629)
     (6,807,055)  (4,170,990)

The following significant exchange rates have been applied during the year:

     30 June 2025 30 June 2024
     Average Year-end Average Year-end 

In Taka   rate    spot rate rate    spot rate 

 USD       120.65   122.80   115.50   118.50 

Sensitivity analysis 

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of foreign currency against functional currency at  
30 June would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in a foreign 
currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes 
that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignore any impact of forecast 
sales and purchase.

                        Equity, net of tax
                            Profit/(loss)                    increase/(decrease)

Effect in Taka Strengthening Weakening  Strengthening Weakening 

30 June 2025
 USD (5% movement)     41,063,557   (41,063,557)  31,824,257   (30,233,044)

 30 June 2024
 USD (5% movement)     24,087,468   (24,087,468)  18,667,788   (17,734,398)
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    b) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that arises due to changes in interest rates on borrowings. The Company 
has not entered into any type of derivative instrument in order to hedge interest rate risk as at the 
reporting date.

Exposure to interest rate risk  

The interest rate profile of the Group's interest-bearing financial instruments as at balance sheet date 
is as follows.

                                    Nominal Amount
 In Taka Note  30 June 2025   30 June 2024 

Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets

 Investment in FDR 10(a)  61,528,803   56,804,767 

Financial liabilities
 Lease liability  9(a)   42,487,728   33,634,374 
 Bank overdrafts 21  (245,034,253)  (204,043,573)
 Loans and borrowings 22(a)  (2,806,674,858)  (2,536,161,697)
     (2,947,692,580)  (2,649,766,129)

Variable rate instruments
Financial assets

 Loans to Advance Chemical Industries Limited 15(a)  2,046,815,513   1,605,921,413 

Financial liabilities
 Offshore loan 22(a)  (836,378,828)  (494,930,537)
 Loans from ACI AgroChem Limited 26  (22,372,085)  (19,630,269)
     1,188,064,600   1,091,360,607 
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36 Commitments and contingencies

36.1 Commitments
 On the statement of financial position date, the Company is enjoying unfunded credit facilities from 

the following banks:

  In Taka   30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
a) Revenue expenditure (Letters of credit)

  Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC   172,235,781   134,430,350 
  The City Bank Limited   -   - 
  Pubali Bank Limited   13,909,549   141,849,148 
  Mercantile Bank Limited   11,176,147   169,106,845 
  BRAC Bank Limited   80,615,615   402,634,815 
  Jamuna Bank   109,432,000   119,175,000 
  Prime Bank Limited   227,224,445   113,133,700 
     614,593,537   1,080,329,858 

b) Capital expenditure 
  Approved and contracted for     189,347,296   72,386,094 
     189,347,296   72,386,094 

36.2 Contingent liabilities 

  In Taka   30 June 2025   30 June 2024 
Bank guarantee       

 Pubali Bank Limited   33,166,100   48,774,029 
 BRAC Bank   3,340,766   3,340,766 
     36,506,866   52,114,795 

Performance guarantee
 Standard Chartered Bank   191,544   191,544 
     191,544   191,544 
     36,698,410   52,306,339 

37 Production capacity 

 The production status (business wise) for the year ended 30 June 2025 are as follows:

 Business Segment Capacity Unit Actual % of utilisation
 Crop Care and Public Health  27,300  M Ton   9,020   33.04 
 Mosquito Coil  1,098,000  Carton   -   - 
 Aerosol  11,400,000  Can   5,021,602   44.05 
 Vanish  12,000,000  Can   260,325   2.17 
 Paint  3,000  M Ton   1,635   54.51 

 The production status (business wise) for the year ended 30 June 2024 were as follows:

 Business Segment Capacity Unit Actual % of utilisation
 Crop Care and Public Health  27,300  M Ton   8,938   32.74 
 Mosquito Coil  1,098,000  Carton   2,510   0.23 
 Aerosol  11,400,000  Can   5,098,750   44.73 
 Vanish  12,000,000  Can   282,080   2.35 
 Paint  3,000  M Ton   1,497   49.90 
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39 Other disclosures    

39.1 Number of employees        

At 30 June 2025, number of regular employees receiving remuneration of Tk. 36,000 or above per 
annum was 994 (30 June 2024: 1034)

39.2 Subsequent events    

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 28 October 2025 have recommended cash dividend  
@ 25% i.e Taka 2.5 per share of Taka 10 each aggregating to Taka 118,125,000 for the year ended 
30 June 2025 subject to approval of the shareholders' in the Annual General Meeting scheduled to be 
held on 28 December 2025.

The financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2025 do not include the effect of these dividends 
which will accounted for in the period when shareholders' right to receive payment is established.

There are no other events identified after the date of the statement of financial position which require 
adjustment or disclosure in the accompanying financial statements.

40 Name of auditors of the group companies  

Name of the company Status of the company Name of auditors 

Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd Subsidiary Shiraz Khan Basak & Co. 

ACI AgroChem (Pvt) Limited Subsidiary Ashraful Haque Nabi & Co. 
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Annexure - A

Report on Valuation of Land & Buildings
of

ACI Formulations PLC
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

ACI Formulations PLC (hereinafter referred to as “the Company” or “ACIFL” or “the Entity”) is a public limited 
company incorporated in Bangladesh. It was incorporated as a private limited company on 29 October 1995 and 
converted to a public limited company on 4 May 2005. The Company was listed with both Dhaka Stock Exchange 
Limited (DSE) and Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited (CSE) on 30 October 2008. The registered office of the 
Company is at 245 Tejgaon Industrial Area, Dhaka-1208, Bangladesh.

The purpose of the valuation is to determine the fair value of Land and Buildings of the Company for the financial 
reporting purpose. The concept of “Fair value” has been kept in mind while valuing the Land and Buildings.

M/s. Aziz Halim Khair Choudhury & Co, was appointed to carry out the valuation exercise with specific Terms of 
Reference. We have obtained both quantitative and qualitative information about the Company and its Land and 
Buildings. Our valuation team has carried out the physical verification of Land and Buildings of the Company.

Summary of valuation is as under:

Land:

Total Land Area:

The Company has total 4,285.19 decimals of Land as per Deed and 4,202 decimals of Land as per Mutation located 
at Gojariya and Dholadia Mouza in Sreepur, Gazipur as on 30 June 2025.

Approach and Methodology:

The parcels of Land have been revalued at market value. However, out of total Land of 4,285.19 decimal as per 
deed, the parcels of Land with the total area of 111.68 decimals, do not fall under the scope of upward revaluation 
as per BSEC notification dated August 18, 2013 vide SEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/150/Admin. Therefore, the fair value 
of these Land has been considered as the Deed Value of Land amounting to BDT 18,194,000.

Valuation of Gojariva Razabari, Sreepur, Gazipur Land:

The Company has total 4,197.19 decimals of land as per deed and 4,114 decimals of land as per Mutation located 
at Gojariya, Razabari, Sreepur, Gazipur with Deed value of BDT 445,057,018.00 which has been revalued to BDT 
2,060,949,000 as per Deed and BDT 2,056,997,500 as per Mutation as on 30 June 2025. 

Valuation of Dholadia, Rajabari, Sreepur, Gazipur Land:

The Company has 88 decimals of land as per Deed and as per Mutation located at Dholadia. Rajabari, Sreepur 
Gazipur with Deed value of BDT 9,002,704 which has been revalued to BDT 44,000,000 as per Deed and as per 
Mutation as on 30 June 2025.

Summary of Valuation of Land: Figures in BDT

   Area of Land Area of Land Total fair value  Total Value of
Company Location as per Deed as per Mutation  of Land as per Land as per

   in Decimal in Decimal Deed in decimal Mutation in decimal

  Gojariya, Bhawal, Rjabari, 
4,197.19 4,114.00 2,060,949,000 2,056,997,500

ACI Formulations PLC
 Sreepur, Gazipur

  Dholadia, Bhawal, Rjabari, 
88.00 88.00 44,000,000 44,000,000  Sreepur, Gazipur

  Total 4,285.19 4,202.00 2,104,949,000 2,100,997,500
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Buildings:

The Company has various civil constructions notable Buildings includes, Research Building, Aerosol Building, 
Sub-station, multiple sheds of different types, RMS Building, and multiple different types of buildings comprising total 
floor area of 369,108 sq ft. The buildings have R.C.C foundation frame structure, 10” & 5” brick super structure wall. 
Whereas other structures have R.C.C foundation and different types of walls. The buildings have been built during the 
year 1998 to 2023 with different expected life between 20 years and 50 years based on the condition and structure 
of Buildings.

Approach and Methodology:

No upward valuation has been done in line with the pertinent paragraph of BSEC notification. Buildings have been 
revalued on the basis of Depreciated Replacement Cost and was conducted with the assistance of an external expert 
surveyor. However, the Company has total floor area of 369,108 sq ft and we estimate that the written down value 
of buildings BDT 179,820,249 as on 30 June 2025 approximates the Fair Value.

Summary of valuation of Buildings: Figures in BDT

  Total  Total Book  Accumulated  Written Down     Depreciated 
 Address Floor Area value as on Depreciation Value (WDV  Replacement  
  (Sft.) 30 June 2025 as on as on Adjustment   Cost (Fair
    30 June 2021 30 June 2025  Value) as on
       30 June 2025

 Gojariy, Bhawal, Rjabari,
 Sreepur, Gazipur    369,108 254,576,465 74,756,216  179,820,249 - 179,820,249

 Total  369,108 254,576,465 74,756,216 179,820,249 - 179,820,249

Overall Valuation Conclusion:

Following an in-depth examination incorporating our assumptions, restrictions and qualifications, and considerations 
outlined in the report, coupled with a comprehensive analysis, we conclude the fair value of land of the Company is 
determined to be of BDT 2,104,949,000 as per deed and BDT 2,100,997,500 as per Mutation. The fair value of 
Buildings of the Company is determined to be of BDT 179,820,249.

USE OF EXPERTS

In order to ensure quality of the assignment an experienced engineering and survey firm namely Mridha & Associates 
Ltd, has been hired to carry out the valuation of Land and Buildings independently. We have checked and confirmed 
that Mridha & Associates Ltd. is independent with respect to the assignment. The assumptions, judgments, methods 
of valuation, relevance and reasonableness of their findings and conclusion have been reviewed by us.

INDEPENDENCE

We confirm that M/s. Aziz Halim Khair Choudhury & Co., Chartered Accountants, its partners and staff are 
independent, with respect to the Company, in accordance with the independence requirements of the IESBA Code of 
Ethics for Professional Accountants adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) and 
International Valuation Standard Council (IVSC). No part of our fee is contingent upon the conclusions reached in the 
valuation or any action or event contemplated in or resulting from the use of the Valuation. The principal valuator and 
other staff involved in the preparation of the Valuation acted independently and objectively in completing this 
engagement.

COMPOSITION OF TEAM AND KEY PERSONNEL

Realizing the needs of the assignment and areas to be covered, efforts have been made to ensure the quality of the 
work and reporting thereon. Accordingly, we deployed our resources and deputed a team of technical personnel for 
carrying out the assignment. The Engagement Manager constantly monitored the assignment under the guidance of 
the Engagement Partner in order to ensure timely and quality reporting.
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 The composition of the valuation team is as follows:

  Engagement Partner : Golam Fazlul Kabir FCA

  Engagement Manager : Jewel Das

  Associates : Ta ha Hasib

  Valuation Surveyor :  Mridha & Associates Ltd.

 The overall team has been referred to as “we” in this report.

VALUATION DATE

30 June 2025 has been considered as “valuation date” and accordingly all information is based on the information 
provided by the management as on that date and certain explanations and clarifications made available to us for the 
purpose of the current exercise on valuation.

VALUATION RESULT

Based on our assumptions, professional judgement, restrictions and qualifications, and analysis presented       
above, we conclude the fair value of Land of the Company is determined to be of BDT 2,104,949,000 as per      
deed and BDT 2,100,997,500 as per Mutation respectively under Market Value Approach. The fair value of 
Buildings of the Company is determined to be of BDT 179,820,249 under Depreciated Replacement Cost method 
as at 30 June 2025.
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Date: 08 September 2025

Valuer's Report and Fairness Opinion

We confirm the following in relation the valuation of Land and Buildings of ACI Formulations PLC:

1. The valuation has been undertaken in accordance with the International Valuation Standards 
(IVS) and we have verified that the ownership, possession and use of the assets are with the 
company.

2. We have maintained the Fundamental Principles of Ethical Conduct namely Integrity, 
Objectivity, Professional Competence, Confidentiality and Professional Behavior regarding the 
valuation and have taken all possible steps to avoid or mitigate possible threats to compliance 
of these principles.

Golam Fazlul Kabir FCA
Partner
Aziz Halim Khair Choudhury
Chartered Accountants

Aziz Halim Khair Choudhury
Chartered Accountants
Corporate Office
House # 75/A, Abasar Bhaban (2nd Floor),
Road #5/A, Dhanmondi, Dhaka-1209

Tel: +8809613339090-92
E-mail: pkfahkc.co@pkfahkcbd.com
Website: www.pkfahkcbd.com

Aziz Halim Khair Choudhury Chartered Accountants is a member of PKF Global, the network of member firms of PKF
International Limited, each of which is a separate and independent legal entity and does not accept any responsibility or
liability for the actions or inactions of any individual member or correspondent firm(s).
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Aziz Halim Khair Choudhury
Chartered Accountants
Corporate Office
House # 75/A, Abasar Bhaban (2nd Floor),
Road #5/A, Dhanmondi, Dhaka-1209

Tel: +8809613339090-92
E-mail: pkfahkc.co@pkfahkcbd.com
Website: www.pkfahkcbd.com

08 September 2025

The Board of Directors
ACI Formulations PLC
245, Tejgaon Industrial Area
Dhaka 1208, Bangladesh.

Dear Sirs,
Valuation of Land and Buildings

of
ACI Formulations PLC

We, M/s. Aziz Halim Khair Choudhury & Co. (hereinafter referred to as “we” or “us” or “the Firm”) have been 
appointed to prepare valuation report (“Report”) setting out the fair value of Land and Buildings of ACI 
Formulations PLC (hereinafter referred to as “the Company” or “ACIFL” or “the Entity”) as at 30 June 2025 
which is considered as “Valuation Date”. The purpose of the valuation is to determine the fair value of Land 
and Buildings of the Company for the financial reporting purpose.

We have considered and relied upon the facts, figures and information provided by the management of the 
Company. We consider, on reasonable grounds, that this information is reliable and not misleading. In this 
regard, the Company has represented to us that all information held by the management of the Company that 
may influence our analysis to be accurate and complete. The information used by us in preparing this Report 
has been obtained from the management and also some other variety of sources as indicated within the 
Report. Accordingly, we assume no responsibility for and make no representations with respect to the accuracy 
or completeness of any information provided to us by and on your behalf. Management has reviewed a draft 
version of this Report and has confirmed that the information provided to us and as presented in this Report is 
accurate and that no significant information essential to our Report has been withheld.

We thank you for the opportunity to provide our valuation services to you. Please do not hesitate to contact us 
if you have any questions about this Report or if we may be of any further assistance. This letter should be 
read in conjunction with our Report, which is attached.

Sincerely yours,

Golam Fazlul Kabir FCA
Partner
Aziz Halim Khair Choudhury
Chartered Accountants
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Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd. has achieved remarkable growth, recording a 100% increase in sales to     
BDT 39 million in fiscal year 2024-25, driven by increased focus on the category in both sales both sales & 
marketing front of ACI Neem Original along with revision of royalty rate. 

Building on the rising consumer preference for natural products, the brand capitalized this momentum with 
an expanded distribution drive, ensuring wider reach and availability. Alongside this, communication was 
refreshed to highlight regular usage positioning Neem soap as a natural care solution for everyday life rather 
than only an occasional choice.

By driving eco-friendly initiatives across both online and offline platforms, including the continuation of its 
signature tree plantation campaign, the brand strengthened its bond with consumers and reinforced its 
standing as a trusted and responsible natural brand. 

The operating results as per audited accounts of the company for the year ended on 30 June 2025 are as 
follows:

Key Financial Results Value (BDT)

Revenue   3,878,704

Operating profit 3,761,818

Profit before tax  2,805,156

Profit after tax  2,103,867

Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd.
Directors' Report to the Shareholders
For the year ended on 30 June 2025

On behalf of the Board

Dhaka, 13 October 2025

Shusmita Anis
Director

Nasreen Sattar
Director
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C H A R T E R E D  A C C O U N T A N T S
SHIRAZ KHAN BASAK & CO.
(An associate firm of D. N. Gupta & Associates)

R. K. TOWER (Level-10 & 6)
86, Bir Uttam C.R. Datta Road
(312, Sonargaon Road). Dhaka-1205
Tel : 88-02-9635139, 88-02-223364597
Mobile : 01552- 575775, 01711- 520770
  01922-117370, 01757-941837
  01312-501076, 01711-535885
  01645-738747, 01920-719463
E-mail : shirazkhanbasak@yahoo.com
Website : www.shirazkhanbasak.com.bd

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Neem Laboratories (Pvt.) Ltd (“the Company”), which comprise 
statement of financial position as at 30 June, 2025, and the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
company as at 30thJune, 2025, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994 and other 
applicable laws and regulations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International 
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together 
with ethical requirement that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Bangladesh, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in 
accordance with IFRSs, the Companies Act, 1994 and other applicable laws and regulations and for such 
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.

Independent Auditor's Report
to the Shareholders of

Neem Laboratories (Pvt) Ltd.
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 



C H A R T E R E D  A C C O U N T A N T S
SHIRAZ KHAN BASAK & CO.
(An associate firm of D. N. Gupta & Associates)

Chaity Basak, FCA (Enrol # 1772)
Partner
Shiraz Khan Basak & Co.
Chartered Accountants
DVC:2510131772AS262582

Place : Dhaka  
Dated : 13 October 2025
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R. K. TOWER (Level-10 & 6)
86, Bir Uttam C.R. Datta Road
(312, Sonargaon Road). Dhaka-1205
Tel : 88-02-9635139, 88-02-223364597
Mobile : 01552- 575775, 01711- 520770
  01922-117370, 01757-941837
  01312-501076, 01711-535885
  01645-738747, 01920-719463
E-mail : shirazkhanbasak@yahoo.com
Website : www.shirazkhanbasak.com.bd

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to 
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

• We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act 1994, we also report the following:
a) We have obtained all the information and explanation which to the best of our knowledge and belief 

were necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as 

it appeared from our examination of those books;
c) The statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income dealt with by the report 

are in agreement with the books of accounts and returns;
 d) The expenditure incurred was for the purpose of the Company’s business.



Place : Dhaka  
Dated : 13 October 2025
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An associate firm of D.N. Gupta & Associates

Chaity Basak, FCA (Enrol # 1772)
Partner

Shiraz Khan Basak & Co.
Chartered Accountants

DVC: 2510131772AS262582

Shusmita Anis Nasreen Sattar Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman
 Director Director Company Secretary

  As per our separate report of even date annexed.

Shusmita Anis Nasreen Sattar Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman

In Taka  30 June 2025 30 June 2024

Assets
 Property, plant and equipment:     4   45,292  

Total non-current assets   4   45,292 

Deferred tax asset   -   - 

 Inventories   -   -   
 Trade receivables   1,772,906   898,227  
 Inter-company receivable   3,142,066   179,586  
 Advances, deposits and prepayments   364,161   362,511  
 Cash and cash equivalents   1,268,011   1,391,269  

Total current assets   6,547,143   2,831,593 

Total assets   6,547,147   2,876,885 

Equity and liabilitie

Equity
 Share capital   500,000   500,000  
 Retained earnings   (3,142,907)  (5,246,774)

Total equity   (2,642,907)  (4,746,774)

Liability    
 Trade payables   316,546   316,546  
 Other payables   236,832   229,332  
 Inter-company liabilities   7,773,760   6,817,098  
 Current tax liability   862,916   260,683  

Total current liabilities   9,190,054   7,623,659 

Total liabilities   9,190,054   7,623,659 

Total equity and liabilities   6,547,147   2,876,885 

NEEM LABORATORIES (PVT.) LTD.
Statement of Financial Position
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Place : Dhaka  
Dated : 13 October 2025

Chaity Basak, FCA (Enrol # 1772)
Partner

Shiraz Khan Basak & Co.
Chartered Accountants

DVC:2510131772AS262582

Shusmita Anis Nasreen Sattar Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman
 Director Director Company Secretary

  As per our separate report of even date annexed.

NEEM LABORATORIES (PVT.) LTD.
Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income

   For the year ended For the year ended
In Taka  30 June 2025 30 June 2024
Revenue   3,878,704   1,936,664 
Cost of  sales   -   - 
Gross profit   3,878,704   1,936,664 
Administration, selling and distribution expenses   (116,886)  (320,209)
    3,761,818   1,616,455 
Other income   -   - 
Result from operating activities   3,761,818   1,616,455 
Finance cost   (956,663)  (735,508)
Profit / (loss) before income tax   2,805,156   880,947 

Income tax expenses :
        Current tax expenses   (701,289)  (222,112)
        Deferred tax income   -   - 
    (701,289)  (222,112)
Net profit / (loss) after tax   2,103,867   658,835 
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An associate firm of D.N. Gupta & Associates

Place : Dhaka  
Dated : 13 October 2025

Chaity Basak, FCA (Enrol # 1772)
Partner

Shiraz Khan Basak & Co.
Chartered Accountants

DVC:2510131772AS262582

Shusmita Anis Nasreen Sattar Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman
 Director Director Company Secretary

  As per our separate report of even date annexed.

NEEM LABORATORIES (PVT.) LTD.
Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 June 2025
   Share Retained TotalIn Taka   capital earnings

Balance on 1 July  2024  500,000   (5,246,774)  (4,746,774)

Net profit for the year  -   2,103,867   2,103,867 

Other comprehensive income  for the year  -   -   - 

Total comprehensive income for the year -   2,103,867   2,103,867  

Balance at 30 June 2025  500,000   (3,142,907)  (2,642,907)

  

Balance on 1 July  2023  500,000   (5,905,609)  (5,405,609)

Net profit for the year  -   658,835   658,835 

Other comprehensive income  for the year  -   -    - 

Total comprehensive income for the year -   658,835   658,835 

Balance at 30 June 2024  500,000   (5,246,774)  (4,746,774)
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NEEM LABORATORIES (PVT.) LTD.
Statement of Cash Flows

An associate firm of D.N. Gupta & Associates

Place : Dhaka  
Dated : 13 October 2025

Chaity Basak, FCA (Enrol # 1772)
Partner

Shiraz Khan Basak & Co.
Chartered Accountants

DVC: 2510131772AS262582

Shusmita Anis Nasreen Sattar Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman
 Director Director Company Secretary

  As per our separate report of even date annexed.

   For the year ended For the year ended
In Taka  30 June 2025 30 June 2024

A) Cash flows from operating activities        
 Cash receipts/(paid)  from /(to) customers   3,004,026   1,597,270 
     3,004,026   1,597,270 

Cash paid for:   
 Operating expenses   (65,748)  (79,961)
     (65,748)  (79,961)

Cash generated from operations   2,938,278   1,517,309 

 Financing cost   (956,663)  (735,508)
 Income tax   (99,056)  (155,787)
     (1,055,719)  (891,295)

Net cash used in operating activities   1,882,559   626,015 

B) Cash flows from investing activities
 Purchase of property, plant and equipment   -   - 

Net cash from (used in) investing activities   -   -  

C) Cash flows from financing activities
 Inter-company debts  (paid)/received   (2,005,817)  (225,212)
 Net cash flows from financing activities   (2,005,817)  (225,212)

D) Net cash flow from all activities (A+B+C)   (123,258)  400,803 

E) Cash and cash equivalent at 01 July 2024   1,391,269   990,466 

F) Cash and cash equivalent at 30 June 2025  (D+E)   1,268,011   1,391,269 

Closing balance represents:
 Cash in hand and at bank     1,268,011   1,391,269 
     1,268,011   1,391,269 
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On behalf of the Board

Dhaka, 12 October, 2025

ACI AgroChem Limited was incorporated in 22 June 2022 as a limited company. The principal activities of 
the Company are to manufacture, market and distribute agrochemicals and various kinds of agricultural 
inputs. The Company already started the registration formalities for upcoming new molecules/formulations 
that usually take several years subject to regular meetings and approval by regulatory authorities. ACI 
Formulations PLC holds 90% shares of ACI AgroChem Limited.

The operating results as per audited accounts of the company for the year ended on 30 June 2025 are as 
follows:

Key Financial Results Value (BDT)

Revenue  - 

Operating profit/ (Loss) (508,427)

profit/ (Loss) before tax   2,236,570

profit/ (Loss) after tax    1,550,321

ACI AgroChem Limited
Directors' Report to the Shareholders
For the year ended on 30 June 2025

Shusmita Anis
Director

Nasreen Sattar
Director
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Avkivd& Dj nK bex GÛ †Kvt
ASHRAFUL HAQUE NABI & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Dilara Tower (3rd Floor), 4F.
77 Bir Uttam CR Dutta Road
Hatirpool, Dhaka-1205
Tel : 44611751
Email: ashrafulnabi@yahoo.com
minhaz@ashrafulhaquenabi.com

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of “ACI AgroChem Limited” which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2025, and the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of “ACI AgroChem Limited” as at 30 June 2025, and its financial performance and its cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Organization in accordance with the ethical 
requirement that is relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Bangladesh, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 
and Internal Controls
Management is responsible for the preparation of financials statement that give a true and fair view in 
accordance with IFRSs and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material  

Independent Auditor's Report
to the Shareholders of

ACI AgroChem Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
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Avkivd& Dj nK bex GÛ †Kvt
ASHRAFUL HAQUE NABI & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Dilara Tower (3rd Floor), 4F.
77 Bir Uttam CR Dutta Road
Hatirpool, Dhaka-1205
Tel : 44611751
Email: ashrafulnabi@yahoo.com
minhaz@ashrafulhaquenabi.com

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business 
activities within the organization to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible 
for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit 
opinion.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that an uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statement, including the 
disclosure, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that gives a true and fair view.

• We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act 1994, we also report the following:
a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 

were necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;
b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the organization so far 

as it appeared from our examination of those books; 
c) the statement of financial position and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 

income dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of accounts.

Dated: Dhaka, 12 October, 2025

Ashraful Haque Nabi & Co.
Chartered Accountants. 

Firm Registration No: CAF-001-005
Signed by: Minhaz Shahid, FCA
Proprietor/Enrolment No.1446
DVC #2510121446AS547202
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Ashraful Haque Nabi & Co.
Chartered Accountants. 

Firm Registration No: CAF-001-005
Signed by: Minhaz Shahid, FCA
Proprietor/Enrolment No.1446
DVC #2510121446AS547202

Place : Dhaka  
Dated : 12 October 2025

Shusmita Anis Nasreen Sattar Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman
 Director Director Company Secretary

  As per our separate report of even date annexed.

In Taka  30 June 2025 30 June 2024

Assets
 Property, plant and equipment:     -   - 
 Accumulated depreciation   -   - 

Total non-current assets   -   - 

 Inter-company receivable   22,441,666   19,630,269 
 Advances, deposits and prepayments   -   106,400 
 Cash and cash equivalents   664,407   1,637,174 

Total current assets   23,106,073   21,373,843

Total assets   23,106,073   21,373,843

Equity and liabilities  

Equity  
 Share capital   20,000,000   20,000,000 
 Retained earnings   2,355,823   805,502 

Total equity   22,355,823   20,805,502

Liability   
 Other payables   61,000   55,500 
 Current tax liability   689,250   512,840 

Total current liabilities   750,250   568,340

Total liabilities   750,250   568,340

Total equity and liabilities   23,106,073   21,373,843

ACI AGROCHEM LIMITED
Statement of Financial Position
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   For the year ended For the year ended
In Taka  30 June 2025 30 June 2024
Revenue   -   - 
Cost of  sales   -   - 
Gross profit   -   - 
Administration, selling and distribution expenses   (508,427)  (211,423)
Result from operating activities   (508,427)  (211,423)
Finance cost/(income)   2,744,997   2,051,361 
Profit / (loss) before income tax   2,236,570   1,839,938 
        Current tax expenses   (686,249)  (512,840)
    (686,249)  (512,840)
Net profit / (loss) after tax   1,550,321   1,327,098 

ACI AGROCHEM LIMITED
Statement of Profit & Loss Account & Comprehensive Income

Ashraful Haque Nabi & Co.
Chartered Accountants. 

Firm Registration No: CAF-001-005
Signed by: Minhaz Shahid, FCA
Proprietor/Enrolment No.1446
DVC #2510121446AS547202

Place : Dhaka  
Dated : 12 October 2025

Shusmita Anis Nasreen Sattar Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman
 Director Director Company Secretary

  As per our separate report of even date annexed.
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For the year ended 30 June 2025

For the year ended 30 June 2024

  Share Share Money Retained TotalIn Taka  capital Deposit earnings

Balance at 1 July 2024   20,000,000   -   805,502   20,805,502 
Profit after tax   -   -   1,550,321   1,550,321 
Other comprehensive income for the year   -   -   -   - 
Total comprehensive income for the year  -   -   1,550,321   1,550,321 
Balance at 30 June 2025   20,000,000   -   2,355,823   22,355,823 

  Share Share Money Retained TotalIn Taka  capital Deposit earnings

Balance at 1 July 2023   20,000,000   -   (521,595)  19,478,405 
Profit after tax   -   -   1,327,098   1,327,098 
Other comprehensive income for the year   -   -   -   - 
Total comprehensive income for the year  -   -   1,327,098   1,327,098 
Balance at 30 Jun 2024   20,000,000   -   805,502   20,805,502 

ACI AGROCHEM LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity
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ACI AGROCHEM LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows

   For the year ended For the year ended
In Taka  30 June 2025 30 June 2024
A) Cash flows from operating activities
 Cash receipts/(paid)  from /(to) customers   -   - 
 Cash receipts from other income   -   - 
     -   - 

Cash paid for:
  Purchase of inventory   -   - 
  Operating expenses   (502,927)  (178,923)
  Advances, deposits and prepayments   106,400   (1,400)
 Cash generated from operations   (396,527)  (180,323)

  Financing income/(loss)   2,744,997   2,051,361 
  Income tax   (509,840)  (229,137)
     2,235,157   1,822,224 

Net cash used from operating activities   1,838,630   1,641,901 

B) Cash flows from investing activities
     -   - 
 Net cash from (used in) investing activities   -   - 

C) Cash flows from financing activities
 Inter-company debts  (paid)/received   (2,811,397)  (1,812,044)

 Net cash flows used in financing activities   (2,811,397)  (1,812,044)

D) Net cash flow from all activities (A+B+C)   (972,767)  (170,143)

E) Cash and cash equivalent at 01 July    1,637,174   1,807,317 

F) Cash and cash equivalent at 30 June  (D+E)   664,407   1,637,174 

Closing balance represents:
 Cash in hand and at bank   664,407   1,637,174 
     664,407   1,637,174 
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ACI FORMULATIONS PLC
Registered Office

ACI Centre, 245 Tejgaon Industrial Area, Dhaka-1208

I/We 

of

being a Member of ACI Formulations PLC, hereby appoint

of

whose signature is appended below as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our  

behalf at the 29th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Sunday, 28 December 2025 at 

10:00 am and/or at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my hands this                                   day of                              2025.

P R O X Y    F O R M

(Signature of the Proxy)

Note :   A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint a proxy to 
attend and vote on his/her behalf. The Proxy Form, duly completed, must be deposited at the 
Share Office of the Company at 9 Motijheel C/A, Dhaka 1000, not later than 48 hours before 
the time fixed for the meeting.

Signature on
Tk.100

Revenue Stamp

(Signature of the Shareholder)

Registered Folio/ BO ID No.  

No. of Shares held

Date
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ACI FORMULATIONS PLC
Registered Office

ACI Centre, 245 Tejgaon Industrial Area, Dhaka-1208

Signature of Shareholder(s)

ATTENDANCE SLIP

I hereby record my Attendance at the 29th Annual General Meeting being held on Sunday, 28 December 2025 

at 10:00 am through digital platform.  

Name of Member/Proxy 

Registered Folio/ BO ID No

No. of Shares held
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